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VISION

To be a world leader in the provision
of horse racing, sporting and betting
entertainment, and Hong Kong’s
premier charity and community
benefactor.
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MISSION

To provide total customer satisfaction
through meeting the expectations

of all Club customers and stakeholders
— the racing and betting public; lottery
players; Club Members; charities

and community organisations;
Government; and, ultimately, the
people of Hong Kong — and thereby
be one of Hong Kong’s most respected
organisations.
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INTEGRATED
BUSINESS MODEL

The Hong Kong Jockey Club
IS a not-for-profit enterprise
dedicated to community betterment.

We have one single purpose:
to always act for the betterment
of Hong Kong,.
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The Club’s integrated business model of world-class racing B g a8 mERR - 454 ik R AP E &% 5
and racecourse entertainment, membership, responsible g - @ B A R M 2 3 AL I B
wagering, and charity and community contribution, enables 4 J M #% B % 75 5 17 B35 A 5 K i 58 Bk &1
it to maximise its economic and social value E

for the benefit of all.

Racing
& Racecourse
Entertainment
15 J% J6 1

Through our world-class racing
we bring pride to Hong Kong, providing
a racecourse spectacle filled with
entertainment and sporting energy.
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Wagering 5 W 31 L% B Membership
& Lottery Club
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Through our responsible and
best-in-class wagering
and lottery services we help
meet public demand, channelling it
away from illegal operators.
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Through their ownership
of top-class thoroughbreds, and
despite Hong Kong’s small
horse population, our Members make
Hong Kong'’s racing success
globally possible.
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Through our tax contribution,
charitable donations and proactive
community engagement,
we work to improve Hong Kong’s
quality of life.
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OUR VALUES A0 EAE

World-class Uncompromising Serving Continuous
integrity the community development

leadership
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PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

2015/16 FINANCIAL YEAR

Amounts Bet Betting and

202.7

by Customers e Lottery Revenue
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Football

Horse
Racing
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Football
Betting
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Horse
Racing
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Mark Six
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Mark Six NE¥
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lottery prizes
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32.7

HK$Billion
HEET

Revenue
Distribution
WA S B

Betting Duty

& Profits Tax
paid to HKSAR
Government
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Operations
BEKEEE

0.5

HK$Billion
TRET

6.5

HK$Billion
BT
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Operating Lotteries Fund
Surplus donated  ®%E%

to Charities Trust
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Surplus after tax donated

to Charities Trust
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Operating Surplus
after donations to
Charities Trust
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The Hong Kong Jockey Club

has a unique and very special
commitment to Hong Kong.
Through our business model, which
brings together racing, membership,
responsible wagering and
philanthropy, we have the privilege
of being able to contribute, very
substantially, to the economic and
social development of our city.

To sustain and grow this commitment, over the last
ten years the Club has sought to achieve a world-
class standard of excellence across every aspect of
its business. By developing the quality of our racing
and sporting entertainment, and so gaining the
loyalty of fans, we ensure that the Club can continue
contributing to the betterment of Hong Kong. The
new global heights achieved this year, in the face
of an uncertain economic environment, clearly
demonstrate the success of this strategy and the
robustness of the Club’s integrated business model.

Thanks to the investments of our Owners, supported
and incentivised by the Club, Hong Kong now
stands at a pinnacle of achievement and in the top
rank of world racing. This season saw 23 Hong
Kong horses listed in the LONGINES World’s Best
Racehorse Rankings, equalling our record set last
year, while all ten of our eligible international Group
1 races featured in the World’s Top 100 Races, with
the Audemars Piguet QEIl Cup being ranked ninth.
Indeed with six races in the Top 25, Hong Kong is
now home to one in four of the world’s top 25 races.
Also, with the elevation of the Club to Part | of the
Blue Book, the highest status a racing jurisdiction
can earn, Hong Kong has received official recognition



as one of the world’s leading racing jurisdictions.
In fact, Hong Kong is the first, and so far the only,
racing jurisdiction without a breeding industry to be
included in Part |, which is a remarkable measure of
the respect our racing now commands worldwide.

These achievements have brought not only
pride to Hong Kong, but very real and direct benefits
to the community. This year, the Club made record
payments of HK$20.91 billion in tax and betting duty
to Government, while the Charities Trust donated a
record HK$3.90 billion to 215 charity and community
projects. The latter exceeds the HK$3.87 billion the
Trust donated last year, a figure which led to it being
ranked sixth in the World Charity Index for 2015 and
first in Asia for charity donations.

COMPETITIVE AND SUSTAINABLE

The Club, like every other business in Hong Kong,
has been impacted by the slowing economy.
Nonetheless, owing to the success of our world-
class racing and wagering, and of the customer-
centric strategies pursued over the last few years,
we managed a 6% increase in total turnover, with
football and the Mark Six putting in particularly
strong performances, up respectively 11% and 10%

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

on last year. As noted this enabled us to provide
record levels of support to Government and charity.
Indeed, based on current projections, the Club plans
to maintain its charity donations at present levels for
the next few years.

The Club is, however, very mindful of the
changing market environment, not least the
increasing globalisation of wagering, both legal
and illegal. In short, even as we achieve new global
heights, we must constantly improve our products
and seek new opportunities to develop our business.
In this respect, this year saw a number of important
developments.

Firstly, in June, we were pleased to finalise
the renewal of the Sha Tin Racecourse land lease,
which has been extended for a further 50 years. This
crucial agreement gives the Club the firm basis it
needs to take racing forward in Hong Kong, and
specifically to continue investing in major capital
projects for racecourse improvement and supporting
infrastructure.

Also in June came the welcome news that
Government had acceded to the Club’s request for
five additional racedays and eight more simulcast
days. This will increase our total race meetings from
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83 to 88 and simulcast days from 15 to 23 from next
season. The extra racedays will enable us to provide
more mid-week night racing, mostly at Happy Valley.
This will not only meet the huge demand from local
fans and tourists, but with more races available will
provide opportunities to expand our Ownership
base. Meanwhile, the additional simulcast days
will help us meet the demand for more access to
overseas racing, particularly when Hong Kong
horses are competing.

But perhaps the most encouraging development
has been the growth of commingling. Taking full
advantage of the high profile Hong Kong racing has
attained worldwide, two years ago the Club entered
into commingling partnerships overseas. From just
two overseas partners in 2014, the Club now has 13,
and turnover has seen significant growth, up 31.5%
this season. Nothing could more firmly underline the
success of our world-class racing or the very real
and tangible benefits it is bringing Hong Kong, with
the prospect of even greater benefits to come.

STRENGTHENING OUR COMMITMENT

The Club’s contributions to Hong Kong, it must be
stressed, extend far beyond monetary support. Our
focus, pure and simple, is the betterment of our
city, and we seek to achieve this in multiple ways,
whether it be through the employment we provide,

the tourist economy we support, or the added profile
we bring Hong Kong overseas through our sporting
achievements. Nor must we forget the essential
role that the Club’s wagering channels perform in
safeguarding Hong Kong from the dangers of illegal
gambling and the attendant criminality.

The Club also seeks to play a proactive role
in society. Leveraging on our core competencies
in sport, the Club is actively promoting community
football and equestrian sports. This year’s Riding
High Together Festival, now an annual event,
brought 26,000 people to Sha Tin Racecourse and
Penfold Park to build community spirit through horse
encounters and edutainment activities. And through
The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust, the
Club works in close partnership with Government,
academia and NGOs to initiate solutions to
community needs, most notably through its Trust
Initiated Projects.

Now the Club is expanding its role. While
continuing to support a very broad range of
community needs, starting last year, and continuing
over the next few years, the Club is focusing on
three strategic areas. Aware that young people are
the key to Hong Kong’s future, but also that many
find it difficult to chart their career and life paths,
the Club is seeking to enhance youth development.
With Hong Kong’s population rapidly ageing, the
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Club is seeking to transform Hong Kong into an
age-friendly city, supportive of active, healthy,
and more socially-inclusive ageing. And given the
compelling evidence of the huge benefits sports
and exercise bring to society, the Club is promoting
active participation in sport across every age
group. Accordingly, approximately half of the Trust’s
HK$3.9 billion in donations this year were allocated
to projects in these three sectors. Details of these,
and of the Club’s other charity and community
activities, can be found in the Operations Review
of this report.

Equally important is the expertise the Club
has developed through its years of community
engagement, as well as the many partnerships it
has forged. Building on these, the Charities Trust is
organising the Philanthropy for Better Cities Forum
from 22nd to 23rd September as part of Hong Kong
International Philanthropy and Social Enterprise
Week. Bringing together 1,000 delegates and top
international speakers, the forum will be the first
in the Asia Pacific region to focus on metropolitan
social issues and the role philanthropy can play
in addressing them. Our hope is that it will be the
beginning of an ongoing and wide-ranging dialogue
among philanthropists in the region, and most
especially Greater China, on the issues facing our
cities in the 21st century.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Equally important is the
expertise the Club has
developed through its
years of community
engagement, as well as
the many partnerships it
has forged.

CENTRAL POLICE STATION

This year has not, however, been without its
challenges. At the end of May, one of the buildings
being restored by the Club in partnership with
Government as part of the Central Police Station
revitalisation project suffered a partial collapse.
Fortunately there were no injuries. The building has
since been stabilised and enquiries are underway
to establish the possible causes. While this has
delayed progress, | wish to make it clear that the
Club remains fully committed to completing the
project, and to ensuring that our fellow citizens
and overseas visitors will soon be able to enjoy the
heritage and cultural experiences of this important
Hong Kong landmark.
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STRENGTHENING OUR MEMBERSHIP
AND OWNERSHIP BASE

Ultimately, it is through our Members and Owners,
and their support for racing and community, that the
Club will be able to maintain its commitment to Hong
Kong. Fundamental to this is our ability to recruit
and develop a healthy membership base. It is with
this in mind that we have embarked on the Happy
Valley Clubhouse extension. When it opens in 2020,
the extension, together with the Main Clubhouse and
Sports Complex, will constitute what we are now
calling “The Hilltop in the Valley”. While the ambience
of the Main Clubhouse will be maintained, the new
extension will provide more facilities for families
and younger members, and for those who want to
pursue a more active lifestyle. In terms of progress,
the foundations are being laid and the design of the
facade and superstructure has been finalised. We are
now working on the detailed interior designs and will
provide more details in due course.

Equally important for the future of the Club
is the new Conghua Training Centre being built in
Guangdong. This will provide the additional capacity
we need to meet the strong demand for horse
ownership, and, we hope, encourage more Members

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

to become actively involved in the sport. Its state-
of-the-art facilities will undoubtedly provide an ideal
training ground for Hong Kong’s future generations
of thoroughbred champions. Progress this year has
been good and the Centre remains on track to open
in 2018.

With these prospects ahead | would like to
thank the Board of Management, which under the
able leadership of Chief Executive Officer Winfried
Engelbrecht-Bresges, has once again enabled the
Club to scale new heights. | look forward to the
coming season, and to the Club continuing to do
what it always does best: providing outstanding
sporting entertainment and unparalleled support to
our community.

Simon SO Ip
Chairman
22 July 2016
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT

This has been another outstanding year for

the Club, with combined turnover on racing,
football and lottery reaching HK$202.70
billion and the Club delivering its highest
return to the community, paying HK$20.91
billion in tax and duty to Government and
donating a record HK$3.90 billion to charity.
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This latter exceeded the HK$3.87 billion the Club
donated last year, a sum which ranked the Club
number six in the world for charity contributions —
an accolade we are proud to share with everyone
in Hong Kong.

All of this was achieved despite a challenging
economic environment. Indeed, racing turnover, at
HK$106.14 billion for the full season, and net margin
on racing, at HK$4.72 billion for the full season,
although down by 1.7% and 0.5% respectively,
were still the second highest in the Club’s history.
Meanwhile, football recorded another strong
performance, with turnover up 11% to HK$86.80
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billion, generating HK$5.95 billion in tax payments,
with a similar amount retained by the Club. And the
Mark Six, which had more snowball draws this year,
including its largest ever for its 40th Anniversary,
saw a jump of 10% to HK$8.55 billion, reversing
last year’s decline and generating HK$2.14 billion
in duty and HK$1.28 billion for good causes via the
Lotteries Fund.

What has enabled the Club to achieve these
excellent results in racing is the development of
a world-class racing product combined with a
rigorous focus on customer centricity.

With the support of Owners, Hong Kong has
succeeded in building up a population of top-class
thoroughbreds. This year, for the second year in
succession, 23 Hong Kong horses featured in the
LONGINES World’s Best Racehorse rankings while
all ten of our eligible races were listed in the World’s
Top 100 for 2015, with the Audemars Piguet QEIl
Cup ranked ninth. It is this level of performance,
delivered consistently, which earned the Club
promotion to Part | of the Blue Book, putting Hong
Kong firmly in the premier league of world racing
jurisdictions, despite lacking a breeding industry.
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Through pursuing a customer-centric approach,
providing differentiated value propositions,
dedicated customer service and technology
applications tailored to customer segments, we
have also succeeded in growing our customer
base. Our HK$6.5 billion racecourse revitalisation,
which this year saw the opening of five new or
refurbished venues, has seen Happy Valley and
Sha Tin racecourses substantially upgraded. Happy
Valley, through its distinct Happy Wednesday
brand, is now firmly established as the mid-week
social and entertainment event of choice, while
Sha Tin weekend meetings are the recognised
venue for Hong Kong’s world-class races, notably
the LONGINES Hong Kong International Races
in December, the Audemars Piguet QEIl Cup at
the end of April, and the Champions Mile and
Chairman’s Sprint Prize in May. All this, together
with the excitement generated by top-class horses
like this year’s Champion Award winners Werther,
Peniaphobia, Blazing Speed, Sun Jewellery, Mr
Stunning and Fabulous One, and star jockeys like
Champion Jockey Joao Moreira and Most Popular
Jockey Kei Chiong, helped push racecourse
attendance to just over two million for the fourth
consecutive year.

Fundamental to our customer-centricity has
been the development of new digital products to
meet customer demand for speed, convenience
and connectivity. We have pioneered digital
applications such as the HKJC TV App, which
from this season provides a one stop service for
all HKJC programming and data, and the newly
launched SpeedPRO, which provides enhanced race
analysis. Two years ago, the Club was also the first
racing organisation in the world to use Longitude

advanced odds calculation technology in its pool
betting products. Utilising this technology we have
relaunched the popular Quartet bet, created a
merged pool for the Quartet and First Four, and this
year launched Composite Win as an alternative way
to place Win bets.

To take forward our world-class racing, the
Club is now building the Conghua Training Centre
in Guangdong. This is undoubtedly the most
significant project the Club has undertaken since
the construction of Sha Tin Racecourse. Indeed,
with Sha Tin’s facilities now almost forty years old,
and working at full capacity, Conghua is essential if
we are to meet the strong demand for ownership.
In terms of project progress, construction is on
schedule, pre-opening preparations are well in hand,
and recruitment and training of staff, including of the
first work riders, has begun. A successful trial of the
cross-border movement of horses has also been
carried out. We look forward to the opening in 2018.

Alongside the progress made here in Hong
Kong, it has also been encouraging to see Mainland
China continuing to develop its own racing industry.
In this regard, in September 2015 the Club was
pleased to sign memoranda of understanding for
strategic co-operation with the two key governing
bodies, the Chinese Equestrian Association and
the China Horse Industry Association. The Club
has since lent its assistance to both organisations,
and we look forward to the further development of
the sport.
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Fundamental to

our customer-
centricity has been
the development of
new digital products
to meet customer
demand for speed,
convenience and
connectivity.
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COMMINGLING

The strongest indicator of the attractiveness of Hong
Kong’s world racing brand is its growing presence
overseas, both through the broadcast of races
and through commingling. The Club now has 13
overseas commingling partners in Australia, New
Zealand, Macau, Singapore, South Africa, Europe
and the U.S.A.

What attracts overseas racing fans is the
competiveness of our racing, the depth of our
wagering pools and above all our reputation for
integrity. Their enthusiasm is already bringing
significant benefits to Hong Kong. Commingling,
which only began two seasons ago, had a turnover
of HK$3.48 billion this racing season, up 31.5% on
last season and representing 3.3% of total racing
turnover. It is a very promising area of growth, rich
with potential benefit for Hong Kong.

FOOTBALL BETTING

One of the Club’s great success stories has been
football. Since its launch in 2003 with the objective
of combating rampant illegal betting on football,
the Club’s service has provided a highly effective
wagering channel. Indeed, though racing turnover
again exceeded HK$100 billion this year, football
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was undoubtedly our key revenue driver. With a
turnover of HK$86.80 billion, yielding a return of
HK$5.95 billion to the Club, football contributed
very significantly to our operating surplus. In fact, the
Club’s record charity donations of HK$3.90 billion
this year, compared with the HK$1.01 billion we
donated in 2002/03, would not have been possible
without the success of football betting.

FOR THE BETTERMENT OF HONG KONG
As | continually emphasise, everything the Club does
is for the betterment of Hong Kong. This is what
makes our integrated business model so unique.
Through Members’ support for racing, the success
of our world-class racing and responsible wagering
services, and our commitment to return surpluses to
the community, the Club is able to provide superior
levels of support for Hong Kong, with charity
donations doubling over the last four years alone.
This substantial increase in charity funding has
enabled the Club to simultaneously maintain its
existing support for charity and community while
embarking on a significant programme to address
three key areas of need, namely youth, elderly and
sports. This year, for example, saw the launch of
a major initiative to teach primary school children
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computational thinking and coding, which are
essential skills for the 21st century economy. To
help Hong Kong cope with its ageing population,
the Club has established a project to evaluate
the age-friendliness of the city, with a view to
implementing district level projects. One initiative
already in progress is an E-health project to promote
self-management of health needs and to build up
community capacity in providing health support. And
with 2016 being an Olympic year, a key focus has
been “Sports for All”, with a variety of programmes
launched to encourage everyone, from kindergarten
children to retirees, to make sport and fitness a part
of their daily routine.

All of the Club’s charity and community support,
| should stress, is ultimately dependent on the
success of the Club’s core business operations
and results. This year, thanks to the success of
the business strategies | have outlined above, the
Club’s operating surplus after tax was HK$3.96
billion, of which HK$3.50 billion, or 88%, was
donated to the Charities Trust. It is to better reflect
this key connection between the Club’s business
performance and charity donations that from this
year the Club is adopting operating surplus after
tax, and before taking into account aspects like
financial investments and the results from the sale of
properties, as the basis for determining its donations
to the Charities Trust.
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OFFSHORE AND UNAUTHORISED
OPERATORS

It is important to keep the Club’s contributions
in mind in view of the complex and challenging
wagering landscape Hong Kong is now facing.

Over the last few years, Macau casinos have
undergone a wholesale transformation, significantly
increasing their capacity. With a slowing economy
and a drop in VIP customers they are now
aggressively targeting Hong Kong. The opening of
the Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macau Bridge in 2017 will
undoubtedly exacerbate the problem.

Hong Kong is also a major target for illegal
operators. lllegal gambling is not a new problem, as
the high-profile arrests of criminal gangs during Euro
2016 reminded us. But in addition to locally based
operators, Hong Kong is increasingly threatened
from overseas. Based in jurisdictions which have
little or no respect for the rights of others, these
unauthorised operators use the Internet and digital
technology to target Hong Kong and other law-
abiding jurisdictions. It must also be stressed that
these operators have no regard for the social costs
of their activities, offering credit betting, targeting
youngsters, and in many cases being involved in
criminal activities such as money laundering.
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To combat illegal operators, the Club’s principal
strategy has been to develop the strength and
coverage of its products, which as | have shown are
world-class. But when it comes to the key issue of
price, the Club has to overcome the disadvantage
of having one of the highest betting taxes in the
world. lllegal and unauthorised operators by
contrast pay little or no tax and are therefore able
to offer a higher return. Until this fundamental issue
is properly addressed, Hong Kong will remain at a
disadvantage. If it is not, there is a real possibility
that the Club will no longer be able to sustain its high
levels of tax and charity support.

GOING FORWARD
Mindful of these challenges, the Club continues to
invest in its sustainability and future.

First, we are continuing to focus on making
racing and racegoing a unique customer experience,
including expanding the reach of the Happy
Wednesday brand. In this regard, the addition of
five weeknight race meetings and eight simulcast
days from next season, taking the total to 88 and
23 respectively, will help utilise the full potential of
both racecourses as well as ensure that racing fans
and tourists will be able to enjoy more of our popular
mid-week race meetings.
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Second, we will continue to develop
commingling as a major driver of the Club’s strategic
growth. In addition to further developing the potential
of current markets we will develop partnerships in
new jurisdictions, especially in Europe. Furthermore,
with Japan now taking simulcasts of overseas
races featuring Japanese horses, we will broadcast
major events such as the LONGINES Hong Kong
International Races and the Audemars Piguet
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QEIl Cup to Japan, with the potential, in time, of
developing commingling in Japan.

Third, to maintain our position as a technology
leader, we will move ahead with our multi-billion
next generation customer information and wagering
system. We will also continue to provide an
innovative customer experience through our front-
end digital platforms, improving our connectivity with
customers and their lifestyles.

Fourth, having helped to develop its original
technology platform and subsequent versions, we
will continue to support the China Sports Lottery,
including providing management and training, as
it takes forward its football and basketball sports
lottery products through over 80,000 terminals
across Mainland China.

Fifth, we will maintain our charity and
community support at approximately current levels
over the next few years to ensure our strategic focus
on youth, elderly and sports is fully maintained.

Last, but by no means least, is our significant
investment in the new extension at Happy Valley
Clubhouse. Members are fundamental to the Club,
not only because as Owners they purchase and
race the horses that are essential to our growth, but
because they are at the heart of our commitment to
Hong Kong. As the Chairman has reported, good

progress has been made this year and we look
forward to the opening of the new extension in 2020.

| would like to close by offering my thanks to
the Board of Stewards, and most particularly our
Chairman, Dr Simon S O Ip, for their guidance and
support. And, as always, my deepest appreciation
to the management team and our staff for their hard
work and outstanding performance this year.

Winfried Engelbrecht-Bresges
Chief Executive Officer
22 July 2016
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RACING

NTO A NEW
"RA

The 2015/16 season was another landmark in the
onward and upward journey of Hong Kong racing.

If Hong Kong’s position as a leading force in world
racing was already well established, the promotion to
Part I of the International Cataloguing Standards
and International Statistics Book from next season
confirmed it. With 17 pattern races upgraded to
international status and all international Group races
now open to overseas entries, Hong Kong is set for a
new era of top-class racing.
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Adding to this good news is the addition of five
weeknight race meetings and eight simulcast
days from next season. Racing fans at home, and
increasingly overseas, can now enjoy even more of
Hong Kong’s stunning night time racing as well as
the best of international competition.

It all adds up to another major advance as Hong
Kong reaches new heights in racing and racecourse
entertainment.

WORLD-BEATING HORSES

Hong Kong horses have long featured in the
world rankings, and this season saw that position
consolidated, with a record-matching 23 horses
in the 2015 LONGINES World’s Best Racehorse
Rankings. This included Able Friend who, on the
back of a sensational win in October’s Premier Bowl
Handicap, achieved the world’s top sprint rating and
was the equal fifth best horse in 2015.

Able Friend’s stablemate, Designs On Rome (123),
was also ranked in the top ten at joint-eighth thanks
to his impressive weight-carrying effort in the HKG3
Centenary Vase Handicap in February 2015, while
Blazing Speed (121), Gold-Fun (120) and Military Attack
(120) made it five Hong Kong horses in the world’s
top 50, a figure matched by horses trained in Japan
and Australia. Ireland was just ahead with six in the
top 50 while Great Britain and France led the way
with nine each.

In total, Hong Kong horses produced seven
individual performances with a rating of 120 or
more, representing 10% of all performances around
the world rated 120 or higher. It is also worth noting
that ten of the 70 performances rated 120 or higher
occurred in Hong Kong. In other words 14% of the
world’s top runs occurred on Hong Kong turf. No
small achievement for a jurisdiction with fewer than
800 races per season.

Military Attack on his
way to victory in the
LONGINES Jockey

Club Cup (right).

Able Friend was the
world’s top sprinter

in 2015 (below).
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Hong Kong Horses in
World Rankings
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TOP GROUP 1 RACES

Hong Kong races also continued to rise up the ranks
at elite world level. All ten of the Club’s eligible races
made the World’s Top 100 Group 1 Races in 2015,
with the Audemars Piguet QEIl Cup leading the way,
a prominent ninth.

Overall, the Club registered eight of the world’s
top 50 Group 1 races, with six in the top 25. Only
Great Britain registered more races than Hong
Kong in the top 50, with 11. France and Japan had
six each.

The World’s Top 100 G1 Races are ranked by
taking an average rating of the top four finishers in
Group/Grade 1 races (for three-year-olds upwards)
over the past three years. The Audemars Piguet QEII
Cup achieved a three-year average of 120.83, rising
to ninth from 19th in 2014. Following A Shin Hikari’s
stunning victory over a top-class field in December,
the LONGINES Hong Kong Cup (120.50) rose from
joint 25th to equal 11th alongside Japan’s Arima
Kinen and the UK’s Eclipse Stakes.

Three of the Club’s newest Group 1 races made
their debut on the list in their first year of eligibility.
The Stewards’ Cup was rated 16th, the Citi Hong
Kong Gold Cup debuted at joint 22nd, while the
Queen’s Silver Jubilee Cup entered the table at
joint 28th.




Peniaphobia won this
year’s LONGINES Hong
Kong Sprint.
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RACES
IN THE WORLD’S
TOP 50 GROUP 1
RACES

Starters per Race #55 i E KL H

2014
HK 7 12.55
SAF ik 11.60
FR [ 11.16
JPN Hzs 11.01
UAE Flivg 110.58

SIN #ims 10.56
IRE &#n | 10.36
NZ #vas  [10.33
AUS ## 9.71
GB [ 8.93
USA £H 7.71

NOTE: DATA SHOWN IS LAST FULL YEAR COMPILED BY INTERNATIONAL FEDERATION OF
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2012
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11.71
11.15
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11.06
10.63
10.68
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2014
1,232,320
1,145,956
470,733
362,248
262,196
241,424
212,970

196,441

178,046
119,494
69,571

2013

1,134,228

842,372
369,849
323,934
229,867
193,834
181,887
147,860
133,120

92,591

54,089

2012

1,106,203
1,038,121

427,088
458,273
242,407
202,687
206,690
161,278
129,358

92,246

73,958

Prize Money per Race in HKS &5 #H 54

2011

1,058,804
1,008,344

424,421
462,394
235,145
223,473
178,968
149,328
119,109

94,471

73,766

2010

1,015,051

963,499
404,828
414,078
220,448
221,406
162,412
134,901
119,797

89,614

90,798

NOTE: HK DATA DERIVED FROM THE CLUB FOR SEASON BEGINNING IN YEAR SHOWN. OTHER COUNTRY
DATA SHOWN IS LAST FULL YEAR COMPILED BY INTERNATIONAL FEDERATION OF HORSERACING
AUTHORITIES (IFHA).
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PROMOTION TO PART I BY IRPAC

In April, the International Race Planning Advisory
Committee (IRPAC) approved the promotion of
Hong Kong from Part Il to Part | of the International
Cataloguing Standards and International Statistics
Book, commonly known as the “Blue Book”, with
effect from 1 September 2016. With this promotion,
17 pattern races in Hong Kong will be upgraded to
international status for the 2016/17 season.

Prior to this promotion, Hong Kong was one
of twelve jurisdictions in Part Il of the Blue Book,
with a limited number of races in Part | — eleven
Group 1 races and three Group 2 events, including
the Chairman’s Sprint Prize, which was upgraded
to international Group 1 status in October 2015.
Now all international Group races will be open to
overseas entries.

PRIDE OF OWNERSHIP

Through their investment in top-class thoroughbreds,
Hong Kong’s Owners have made a significant
contribution to the success of Hong Kong racing.
Equally, the Club has worked hard to incentivise
them. Last season, for example, saw prize money

OPERATIONS REVIEW RACING AND RACECOURSE ENTERTAINMENT

in excess of HK$1 billion distributed across 784
races. As part of the Club’s incentive strategy, the
High Achievement Bonus scheme, implemented in
the 2014/15 season, was continued with payouts of
HK$21.25 million to 27 highly-promising horses.

A further initiative to strengthen the quality
of horses in Hong Kong, and also to provide
more choice to Owners, is the annual Hong Kong
International Sale (HKIS). The sale is supplied
with horses purchased by the Club at the world’s
foremost thoroughbred auctions and pre-trained in
England and New Zealand. In March, 24 lots passed
through the ring in a glamorous evening event at Sha
Tin Racecourse, with total sales grossing HK$100.5
million, a 5.9% increase over the previous year. An
Australian-bred gelding by Starcraft secured a top
bid of HK$8.5 million, the second most expensive
purchase in the history of the HKIS.

A bonus of HK$600,000 is available to
graduates of the HKIS that gain a win in Class 3
handicaps before the end of their first season
following the year of purchase. Two horses
earned the bonus in the 2015/16 season, totalling
HK$1.2 million.
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SIMULCASTING

The growth of international racing, which has seen
both more Hong Kong horses competing abroad
and more overseas horses racing in Hong Kong,
means that local fans are increasingly engaged with
world racing.

This season a total of 15 overseas race
meetings were simulcast to Hong Kong, along with
10 individual races occurring on the same day as a
Hong Kong meeting. These included some of the
world’s top racing events, such as the Prix de I’Arc
de Triomphe, British Champions Day, the Melbourne
Cup, the Japan Cup, the Dubai World Cup, The
Championships from Sydney and Royal Ascot.

The addition of eight simulcast days from next
season, taking the total to 23 overseas meetings
plus 10 individual races, will therefore be welcome
news to Hong Kong racing fans.

COMMINGLING
PARTNERS

COMMINGLING

The success of the Club’s racing, and the increasing
interest it is attracting overseas, is reflected in the
growth of commingling. Under this arrangement,
overseas racing fans place bets on Hong Kong
races with the Club’s overseas commingling
partners, the data being shared with the Club for
odds calculation purposes.

Currently Hong Kong racing is broadcast in nine
jurisdictions with commingling taking place in seven.
With the addition of two new commingling partners,
Tab Limited in Australia and Phumelela Gaming
and Leisure Limited in South Africa, the Club now
has 13 commingling partners.

Commingling turnover has grown from
a nominal figure in 2013/14, when it was first
introduced, to HK$2.64 billion last season. This
year, commingling rose to HK$3.47 billion, a 31%
increase. This included a new single day record
of HK$74 million at the season finale meeting on
10 July.

APPRENTICE JOCKEYS

MAKE THEIR MARK

Hong Kong has long attracted top overseas
jockeys and trainers, but the Club is equally
intent on developing home-grown talent. Racing
trainees receive a well-rounded education with
an emphasis on horsemanship, sportsmanship
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LUBHOUSE ANNIVERSARY C

Kei Chiong celebrates her historic fourth win in a
single day (top) and with members of the racing
trainee programme (above).
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and integrity, while those who Appremtice Jockey

graduate to the Apprentice

Jockeys’ School spend time K@| Cthﬂg Created hiStory
abroad to refine their race- A9 J[h@ ﬂrst woman to ride

riding skills.
The programme was

four winners at a Hong

further enhanced this season by KQﬂg race meetiﬂg. Only

the appointment of legendary
jockey Felix Coetzee to coach

licensed to ride in

apprentices in race riding and to HOﬂg KOﬁg Ia Septem ber
help match them with suitable QO/I 5 She r@d@ a J[Ota|

overseas and local trainers.

The success of these Of 37 winners over the
efforts was demonstrated by season

the remarkable results achieved
by apprentices, both locally
and internationally. Apprentice

Jockey Jack Wong represented Hong Kong in
the 2015 Asian Young Guns Challenge in Seoul,
finishing second and winning the major local group/
listed race of the day. Meanwhile, Apprentice
Jockey Kei Chiong created history as the first
woman to ride four winners at a Hong Kong race
meeting. Only licensed to ride in Hong Kong in
September 2015, she rode a total of 37 winners
over the season, and was the inaugural winner of
the Tony Cruz Award given to the leading freelance

or apprentice jockey.
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LEADERSHIP IN INTERNATIONAL RACING
Hong Kong plays an increasingly important role
in advancing the racing industry worldwide. The
Club’s Chief Executive Officer is Chairman of
the Asian Racing Federation and Vice Chairman
of the International Federation of Horseracing
Authorities. Club officials also hold senior positions
in international regulatory and racing development
bodies.

This year’s Asian Racing Conference, the
flagship event of the Asian Racing Federation, held in
Mumbai in January, was an important opportunity for
Club officials to share their experience and learning
with international delegates. In a keynote speech,
Club CEO Winfried Engelbrecht-Bresges identified
significant industry trends and outlined his vision for
racing’s future, while other Club speakers shared
insights on the Club’s marketing innovations and the
progress of its Conghua Training Centre. A key area
of focus, drawing on the Club’s extensive intelligence
data, was to map out the current trends in illegal
betting in Asia, an issue on which the Club is taking
a leadership role.

The Club also hosted a series of racing industry
conferences throughout the year, including the 6th
International Conference for the Health, Safety
and Welfare of the Jockey, the IFHA International
Movement of Horses Committee, the IFHA

International Harmonisation Committee Meeting,
and meetings of the IFHA on Anti-Doping Control/
Horse Welfare.
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Hong Kong plays an
iINncreasingly important role
N advancing the racing
industry worldwide.

RACING LABORATORY PIONEERS NEW
DOPING CONTROL METHODS

The Club is recognised worldwide for its excellence
in equine doping control. Significant steps were
undertaken this year to ensure that the Racing
Laboratory remains in the vanguard, including
work on the development of biomarker and hair
testing. Peer-reviewed research by the Racing
Laboratory on biomarkers has received wide
acknowledgement. Hair testing is now used as an
additional safeguard, alongside blood and urine
testing, for out-of-competition horses.
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CONGHUA TRAINING CENTRE

Good progress was made this year on the
development of the new Conghua Training Centre
in Guangdong, which will provide the Club with a
world-class training facility and expanded stabling
when it opens in 2018. It is expected that the Centre
will enable the Club to increase the total number of
horses in training to nearly 1,400 by the 2019/20
season, with further growth in subsequent years. This
will allow the Club to meet the growing demand for
horse ownership in Hong Kong and so ensure that
racing remains competitive and world-class. It will
also facilitate a thorough refurbishment of the existing
stables complex at Sha Tin.

According to current plans, Conghua will have
three tracks — one 2,000-metre turf track and two
dirt tracks measuring approximately 1,780 and
1,600 metres in circumference. It will also have an
approximately 1,100-metre, synthetic-surfaced uphill
gallop. There will be two sand rings, a series of spelling
paddocks and a dedicated staff training facility.
These will be supplemented by an equine hospital,
farriers’ forge and equine swimming pool, featuring
the latest technology. All these will provide trainers
with an even higher level of training and care than is
currently available at Sha Tin. Owners’ facilities are
also planned, with the aim of ensuring a comfortable
and enjoyable experience for visiting Owners.

The Conghua Training
Centre will provide

the Club with a
world-class training
facilitiy and expanded
stabling when it opens
in 2018.

Movement of horses between the two sites
will be carefully managed by the Club’s racing,
transport and veterinary departments. The first
horse trial movement was successfully completed
in March 2016 and further trials are planned. The
facilitation of cross-border horse movement has
been enabled by the designation of the Conghua
site as an Equine Disease Free Zone, a legacy
of the Club’s support of the 2010 Asian Games.
Movement between Hong Kong and Conghua will
be on specifically agreed routes and using specially
designed horse floats developed to ensure the care
and well-being of both horses and grooms during the
journey. The Club intends to host regular trackwork,
trials and showcase races at Conghua, similar to the
successful Owners’ Carnival at Sha Tin.
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Aerial view of the new Conghua Training Centre in Guangdong.
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MAINLAND PARTNERSHIPS

In September 2015, the Club signed Memoranda of
Understanding (MOU) for strategic co-operation with
the two key governing bodies of the horse racing
industry in Mainland China, the Chinese Equestrian
Association (CEA) and the China Horse Industry
Association (CHIA).

Since the signing of the MOU with the CEA,
the Club has shared technical expertise and
implementation experience in racing control and
regulation. This includes assistance to revise the
CEA’s rules of racing, and training sessions for
Mainland officials to boost their understanding
of the revised rules. The Club supervised the
implementation of the rules by providing on-site
technical advice in racing operations and anti-doping
control. It also helped categorise Mainland riders by
sending experienced riding instructors to assess
their capabilities.

As regards the CHIA, the Club’s long-term
endeavour is to play a key role in developing an
effective doping control programme, supporting
ongoing horse care and veterinary training, and
promoting a sound stud book. In 2016, the Club
assisted the CHIA’s attendance at the 36th Asian
Racing Conference in Mumbai and supported their
application for affiliate membership of the Asian
Racing Federation.
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Conghua’s three training tracks are starting to take shape.
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HIGHLIGHTS

SRACES

The 2015 LONGINES Hong Kong
International Races (HKIR) held in
December yielded a diverse set of classy
winners amidst the backdrop of a record
crowd of more than 85,000 at Sha Tin
Racecourse. Japan landed an HKIR
double with Maurice, the 2015 Horse of
the Year in Japan, taking the LONGINES
Hong Kong Mile before A Shin Hikari led
from start to finish in the LONGINES
Hong Kong Cup.

Hong Kong’s leading jockey Joao

Moreira navigated a winning path from

 ONGINES
HONG KONG
NTERNATIONAL

the widest barrier to claim success in the
LONGINES Hong Kong Sprint aboard
Tony Cruz-trained Peniaphobia, yielding
a win for the home team. Legendary
trainer Aidan O’Brien trained his first
winner in Hong Kong when Highland
Reel scored for Ireland in the LONGINES
Hong Kong Vase.

Turnover for the meeting was
HK$1.45 billion, the second highest in
the history of the event. Of the 53 runners
in the four feature races, 29 were already

international Group 1 winners, compared
to the previous record of 22.

Meanwhile, in the warm-up prelude
to the HKIR, Gavin Lerena, South Africa’s
champion jockey, won the last two races
of the LONGINES International Jockeys’
Championship to take the trophy in the
world’s richest riding competition. Lerena
was the first jockey representing South

Africa to win the event.
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HIGHLIGHTS

GIANT TREASURE
IPNZE Y

STEWARDS’
CUP

Giant Treasure, second in the LONGINES Hong
Kong Mile seven weeks earlier, just edged the 2015
BMW Hong Kong Derby winner Luger to land the
Stewards” Cup. Trained by Richard Gibson and
ridden by Christophe Soumillon, Giant Treasure

achieved his first win at Group level.
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QUEEN'’S SILVER
JUBILEE CUP

Contentment, Hong Kong’s Most Improved Horse in
the 2014/15 season, earned a breakthrough win at
the international Group 1 level, winning the Queen’s
Silver Jubilee Cup. The win was the second in the
race for both jockey Brett Prebble and trainer

John Size.
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CITI HONG KONG
GOLD CUP

John Moore brought home his 11th winner in
the Citi Hong Kong Gold Cup, and his fourth
consecutive win in the race, as Designs On Rome,

ridden by jockey Tommy Berry, triumphed for

a second straight year. With the double, Designs #
On Rome became the third horse in the last nine )53
runnings to land back-to-back editions of )53
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BMW HONG KONG
DERBY

Following second placings in the Hong Kong Classic
Mile and Hong Kong Classic Cup, Werther held off
stablemate Victory Magic in a thrilling renewal of the
BMW Hong Kong Derby, giving trainer John Moore
a fifth win in the race, matching the professional-era
record set by Brian Kan. Attendance for the day was
nearly 60,000.
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AUDEMARS PIGUET
QEIlI CUP

4

Werther scored a devastating 42 length success in 422" 1& ﬁ‘ % JZIE

the 2016 Audemars Piguet QEII Cup, the largest —OTAEEBLE - TWATH] S A2
SeRBCE TR )RR R A JUILIUAE TR A I B
R D, 2R e A T P BELR o WP ARE S G A4
S TR T ML IE R A > AR LN B HR I R A SO IR B
B RE o A SO 8 A B AT T T B B3 A 4T
Bowman, who partnered Werther to success a month MEREE - B TR T ML AR AR AR = D
earlier in the BMW Hong Kong Derby. Werther TR TR 2R T WK S S SR Tl o ST =
became the third horse in the last twelve years to win By ARSI Q> R O~ =R LR
both the Derby and QEII Cup in the same season. ﬁirfﬁ%t g > 58 =2 0 — O — TLAR L 4 ef

margin of victory in the history of the race since it
was promoted to international Group status in 1999.
The win was the fifth in the race for trainer John

Moore and first for visiting Australian jockey Hugh

Hong Kong horses held the first three positions as
2013 QEII Cup winner Military Attack rallied for
second while 2015 winner Blazing Speed was third.
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HIGHLIGHTS

CHAUTAUQUA
EZT

CHAIRMAN'’S
SPRINT PRIZE

Chautauqua launched a furious last-to-first rally in
the home straight to record an historic win in the
Chairman’s Sprint Prize, Hong Kong’s newest race
at the international Group 1 level. The win marked
the first success by an Australian-based horse in
Hong Kong since Falvelon took the second of his
Hong Kong Sprints in 2001. Under Tommy Berry for
trainer Michael Hawkes, Chautauqua was the world’s
top-rated sprinter at the time of his Sha Tin success.
* Hong Kong horses held the next seven positions at
the finish, headed by Lucky Bubbles in second and
Strathmore in third.

MAURICE
EL T

CHAMPIONS MILE

After success in December’s LONGINES Hong Kong % E N n@ g

Mile, Maurice returned to his native Japan for a I AT S A E [ 4E05 | > 3 = B AR
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deserved spell. His first start back to racing was the
Champions Mile in May and he did not disappoint,
scoring a two-length win. Ridden by Joao Moreira
for trainer Noriyuki Hori, Maurice became only
the second overseas raider to win the Champions
Mile and the third horse to land the Hong Kong
Mile and Champions Mile within the same season.
The win was his seventh straight victory and
fourth consecutive international Group 1 success.
Hong Kong milers Contentment and Packing Pins
completed the top three placings.
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STANDARD
CHARTERED
CHAMPIONS &
CHATER CUP

A thrilling photo finish capped the Standard
Chartered Champions & Chater Cup, the final
Group 1 of the season, with Blazing Speed edging
Victory Magic and Werther to claim the crown for the
second time in three seasons. It was also the fourth
consecutive win in the race for trainer Tony Cruz.
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A YEAR OF

CHAMPIONS

There were no surprises when Werther claimed the
lion’s share of this year’s Champion Awards, being

named Hong Kong’s Horse of the Year, Champion
Middle-Distance Horse and Most Popular Horse
off the back of wins in the BMW Hong Kong Derby
and the Audemars Piguet QEIl Cup. Blazing Speed
won his first title as Champion Stayer after landing
his second Standard Chartered Champions &
Chater Cup following success in the race in 2014.
Peniaphobia, winner of the LONGINES Hong Kong
Sprint and Sha Tin Vase, and a strong third in the Al
Quoz Sprint in Dubai, was Champion Sprinter. And
Hong Kong Classic Mile and Hong Kong Classic
Cup winner Sun Jewellery, who defeated eventual

Horse of the Year Werther in both races, and added
a late season win in the Premier Cup, took the title
as Champion Miler.

b N B B AR

Johnson Chen, Owner of this year’s SERBBEABRNARE  2RBBES
Horse of the Year, Werther. T EEPERERESEMETYEA
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2015/16 CHAMPION AWARDS

Horse of the Year Werther
HEEE WIHTH
Champion Middle-Distance Horse Werther

St h B RS WA T
Most Popular Horse of the Year* Werther

B 2R I * WIHTH
Champion Miler Sun Jewellery
It mLg LN
Champion Stayer Blazing Speed
RIS 5
Champion Sprinter Peniaphobia
IetERIE S SERE
Champion Griffin Mr Stunning
eI ALAEER
Most Improved Horse Fabulous One
s KIE G T BRE
Champion Trainer John Size

5t FE A B3l
Champion Jockey Joao Moreira
Tony Cruz Award Kei Chiong
e Ak

Most Popular Jockey of the Year* Kei Chiong
S SN B i * T

Most Admired Overseas Horse of the Year*
ot 327V F A TR DA DC *

A Shin Hikari (Japan)
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* public vote HIAMRBESRE
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Champion Trainer John Size.
528 T ARG HT AR 60 o

John Size prepared three of the four nominees
in the Champion Giriffin category, with Mr Stunning
taking the prize following three wins in the season.
Fabulous One, whose rating increased 61 points over

The season closed on an all-time high, with
turnover exceeding HK$1.82 billion, a new record for
an 11-race meeting, while the crowd of 45,783
pushed the season’s total attendance beyond two

the course of the season, was named the Most million for the fourth consecutive
Improved Horse. Joao Moreira established the new year. Joao Moreira was on Th@ Season C|OSed on

mark for wins in a single season, claiming 168 races  sparkling form, closing out the ' ' '
gese ng Theras g orm £0%ind O B8 an all-time high, with

to earn a second consecutive Champion Jockey title ~ season with five wins. Meanwhile .

while trainer John Size earned his eighth Champion ~ all eyes were on Hong Kong's LLIIMNOVET eXCeedlﬂg

Trainer award with 68 wins. Apprentice jockey Kei Most Popular Jockey, apprentice H |’<$,] 82 bIHIOD a new
Chiong won 37 races in her inaugural Hong Kong Kei Chiong, whose double ' '

season to take the Tony Cruz Award for the leading  propelled her to sixth in the record for an 11-race

lockeys" premiership. meeting, while the crowd
of 45,783 pushed the
season’s total attendance
beyond two million...

freelance or apprentice jockey.

Most Popular Jockey Kei Chiong and Champion
Jockey Joao Moreira.
$5 B KO0 B 16 7 e e S S R B . o
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HONG KONG-TRAINED HORSES THAT ACHIEVED AN INTERNATIONAL RATING

OF 115 OR ABOVE IN 2015/16
“O—H/—AEERBE TS — A T A S B AR

125 124 121 119 119 119
ABLE FRIEND WERTHER BLAZING SPEED AEROVELOCITY CONTENTMENT DESIGNS ON ROME
SHK © HATE o H#E ISR 1 ® HEas & HER &
John Moore I John Moore Anthony Cruz Paul 0’Sullivan John Size g John Moore
HEED "'\ HEED @ HRE m HIRE m 848 '@\ HHED ﬁﬁé
Dr & Mrs Cornel Li Fook Kwan Johnson Chen Fentons Racing Syndicate Daniel Yeung Ngai Benson Lo Tak Wing Cheng Keung Fai
TREBERKA ‘il ERESERE B3R EER B3 1
119 119 119 119 119 118
GIANT TREASURE GOLD-FUN LUCKY BUBBLES MILITARY ATTACK PENIAPHOBIA BEAUTY FLAME
X EDER4R - KEH & EEWME 2 EEHE ja ) EREY o) EEZE &
Richard Gibson g Richard Gibson g Francis Lui Caspar Fownes Anthony Cruz Anthony Cruz
R 'g\ = E '@\ 2R @ B EM m HRE m HRE m
Pan Sutong Pan Sutong Lucky Syndicate Canny Leung Chi Shan Huang Kai Wen Kwok Siu Ming
EEB BERIE HHEEE I =X ENOL
118 117 117 117 117 116
NOT LISTENIN'TOME  BEAUTY ONLY DAN EXCEL HELENE PARAGON LUGER HELENE HAPPY
#HHAE & EEXH o  TAEA @& - EE%E O BAHE @  STAR )
John Moore Z& Anthony Cruz Zm John Moore Zm John Moore m John Size ﬂ EEERE n
KD HRE KD HHED B8 T o
Matthew Wong Leung Pak Eleanor Kwok Law Kwai Chun David Philip Boehm Sir Po-shing & Lady Woo, Terry Fok Kwong Hang KRR
ER & Patrick Kwok Ho Chuen BRE Wilson Woo Ka Wah, Jackson EET - -
SREIEY BELE S Woo Ka Biu and Dawson Woo %{I:;r;svcgnogé lﬁ:ﬁ VJV;);;son
g;gg% LREA - \é\fg ::ngiu and Dawson Woo
ASREE - SAREREREARER HEEELERA -
HASREE - tARERERARER
116 116 116 115 115
PACKING PINS STRATHMORE VICTORY MAGIC GUN PIT REWARDING HERO
BEXH S HEmEH & AL O  EERE S EmEEE @
Ricky Yiu m Anthony Millard ﬂ John Moore ﬁ Caspar Fownes n John Moore &
B rE HEE HEEE TR FEM W
Lee Wan Keung & Lee Wong Mr & Mrs lain Bruce Mr & Mrs Sebastian Man Cheng Chung Wah Lee Fung Tai
Wai Kuen HELTEERKA Shiu Wai EpiEEE TER
FERETEER NEREERRA
Rating %%
HORSE
B
Trainer
BRESHD
Owner
5

NOTE: ALL RATINGS TO BE RATIFIED BY THE LONGINES WORLD’S BEST RACEHORSE RANKINGS CONFERENCE IN DECEMBER 2016.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW RACING AND RACECOURSE ENTERTAINMENT

TH
RACING
=ART

OF HONG KONG

The Club’s two racecourses at Sha Tin and
Happy Valley are at the heart of the Hong
Kong entertainment experience. Sha Tin with
its top-flight international races and edge-of-
the-seat racing action. Happy Valley with its
electric atmosphere of racing under the lights
right in the heart of the city.

HE-FHBAEARE

5 7 R0 U FEL B B0 S o i T A G 355 R 7 vl 0 4
B i R o b H R WR IR M E R > G
F o T L O O B 8 O A B 1 T o
FE Ty o

e

%ﬁ
354

57



The Provincial
S

Both racecourses are major tourist attractions,
receiving over 200,000 visits from overseas visitors
each year. They are also important contributors
to the economy, providing direct and indirect
employment to thousands of Hong Kong people.

The good news is that with the addition of
five weeknight race meetings, many more people,
especially tourists, will be able to enjoy the thrill of
racing. For as this season has shown, there is no
lack of action. At Sha Tin, each month is focused
around one of its Magnificent Ten racedays, ranging
from the glamour of Sa Sa Ladies’ Purse Day, to
the showpiece LONGINES Hong Kong International
Races, to the thrills of the BMW Hong Kong Derby.
Meanwhile the award-winning Happy Wednesday
brand has firmly entrenched Happy Valley as the
place for mid-week entertainment.

RACECOURSE REVITALISATION

To provide for the needs of racegoers, both now and
in the future, the Club has embarked on a HK$6.5
billion racecourse revitalisation programme. This has
already seen a major transformation of racecourses,
and this season saw the opening of five new or
refurbished venues.

At Happy Valley, The Provincial, a brand new
restaurant commanding stunning views across
the racecourse, offers Members an incomparable
Chinese dining experience. Priority Card holders
can now enjoy the new Silver Lining, named for
one of Hong Kong’s most famous racehorses and
serving up tasty cha chan tang favourites. And as part
of the ongoing upgrade of public facilities, Farrier
on 2, a completely renovated betting hall, features
a 10-metre wide TV wall and over 400 terrace seats
for an up-close view of the racing action.

Over in Sha Tin, the popular Pak Hop restaurant
has been thoroughly renovated with a fresh and
contemporary look. And the Hong Kong Sixties
offers diners a touch of nostalgia, while also making
sure that they do not lack for the latest technology,
with a video wall and dedicated TV screens at
all tables.

The Club has embarked
on a HK$6.5 billion
racecourse revitalisation
programme. This has already
seen a major transformation
of racecourses, and this
season saw the opening

of five new or refurbished
venues.

The Silver Lining
R vk



Farrier on 2
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FEATURE

RACEDAYS

Racing is such a huge part
of Hong Kong life that many
citizens mark the rhythm of the
year by its racedays. From the
anticipation of season opening,
to the celebrations for National
Day and Chinese New Year, to
the glamour of Sa Sa Ladies’
Purse Day and the spectacular
finale of season close, the
racing year is packed with
colour and excitement.

FEEEFRH

HEEFBANEGDLEMEE > AP
TR Y A 9 T D AR B S BRI - A

W] B 7 B o B I R % U AR SEASON
KEH MBI ELXEBEHAND Y OPENING
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LUCKY START
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SA SA
LADIES’
PURSE
DAY
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RACEDAYS
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DIGITAL NIGHT

WINES
IN THE VALLEY

PARTY

ON!

When it comes to mid-
week partying there is
really only one place

to be — the Valley! And
when they could tear
themselves away from
the racing action, this
season’s thrill-seekers
were busy indulging in
one of the racetrack
parties — quenching their
thirst at Wines in the
Valley, checking out the
latest hi-tech at Digital
Night, pulsating to the
drums of Japan Night, or
sampling haute cuisine
In celebration of French
Night. Even James Bond
got in on the action!

e T !
AREVE P IRE > AR E M !
Br 7 R F TR A s T
I FEIREET RS H > HK
7] JA Wines in the Valley i fk »
"] 7 Digital Night#t Bt &5 B # £
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CARNIVALE
OF ACTION

FRANCE IS Of

JAPPY WEDN

FRENCH
NIGHT

BY.

S CNY
HAPPY HAPPY WEDNESDAY
CHRISTMAS EASTER | OKTOBERFEST
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TAKING

'HE CLUB

SVWARD

OPERATIONS REVIEW MEMBERSHIP

Members of the Club have long enjoyed one of the most unique lifestyle
and membership experiences in Asia, with access to some of the finest
hospitality and events, opportunities to take part in Hong Kong’s
world-class sport of racing, as well as to support the Club’s contribution
to the betterment of Hong Kong.

This year has seen Members enjoying top-class
cuisine brought by Michelin-starred chefs, joining
exclusive tours to overseas destinations and taking
part in community activities. As horse owners,
Members have again tasted success against top
international competition, bringing pride to Hong
Kong. And with the new extension to Happy Valley
Clubhouse taking shape, Members will soon be able
to enjoy an even more enhanced lifestyle.

THE HILLTOP IN THE VALLEY
Comprising almost 47,000 square metres of space,
the new extension will effectively double the area

FR FERE T RZEERTMHERE

of Happy Valley Clubhouse. Together with the Main
Clubhouse and Sports Complex, it will form what is
now being called “The Hilltop in the Valley”, offering
the most extensive and diverse range of premium
membership facilities in Hong Kong.

This year has seen good progress. The exterior
design has been finalised and work is underway on
the foundations. The objective is to open in 2020.

In terms of the design, the lower part of building
consists of a podium, which will contain car parking,
back-of-house facilities and building services.
Immediately above will be a 50 metre swimming
pool, and above this will be four floors of Members’
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dining and recreation facilities, with tennis courts on
the roof. There will be a link bridge for connectivity
and convenience between the new extension and
the Main Clubhouse. With a view to future needs, the
building has been designed with maximum flexibility
in mind.

With regard to specific offerings, details are
being developed taking account of Members’
feedback from surveys and focus groups. The broad
objective is to maintain the ambience of the existing
Main Clubhouse while providing more opportunities
for families, for younger Members, and for those
who want to pursue more active lifestyles in the
extension. Indeed, with family areas moved to the
new extension, the Main Clubhouse will become a
quieter space.

RACECOURSE REVITALISATION
CONTINUES

At the heart of the Club are its two iconic racecourses
at Happy Valley and Sha Tin. In keeping with the
world-class sporting entertainment out on the track,
the Club has been progressively expanding and
upgrading Members and Owners’ facilities, with an
additional 5,000 square metres of space added since
2009. This year saw the opening of three venues.
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Hong Kong Sixties
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Located on the top floor of the Grandstand
in Happy Valley, The Provincial offers panoramic
views across the racecourse and city skyline.
A contemporary Chinese-style venue, it is the
racecourse’s flagship Chinese restaurant, serving
up provincial delicacies from across the country.
Over in Sha Tin, the Pak Hop has been completely
refurbished, offering a lighter and more spacious
ambience. Meanwhile, the Hong Kong Sixties offers
a refreshing take on vintage sixties décor.

HORSE OWNERSHIP

To become a horse owner is the ultimate aspiration
of many Club Members. The Club is certainly keen
to help Members engage with and learn more about
racing. With five more race meetings from next
season there will be more opportunities available.
The new Conghua Training Centre, currently under
construction in Guangdong, will likewise offer
unparalleled training, spelling and rehabilitation
facilities for Owners’ horses when it opens in 2018.

ENHANCING LIFESTYLES

The Club continues to provide Members with unique
and memorable lifestyle experiences. A particular
highlight this year was the Michelin Star guest chef

The Provincial

S B S

OPERATIONS REVIEW MEMBERSHIP

programme, which, in a first for Hong Kong, brought
six Michelin 3-star chefs to Happy Valley and Sha Tin
clubhouses. These included the World’s No.2 Best
Chef (and now No 1. Best Chef), Massimo Bottura,
whose sold-out dinners set new attendance records.

Members also had plenty of opportunities to
sample the best of Chinese cuisine, with visiting
master chefs serving up dishes from Hubei,
Huaiyang and Shanxi. Meanwhile, the Club’s own
chefs demonstrated their prowess in the Invincible
Club Chef Challenge, while four brought home
honours, including two golds, from the annual
FHA Culinary Awards Competition in Singapore.
There were further honours in “The United Tastes of
America — Asian Chef Challenge 2016”, which saw
Club chefs beat competitors from Hong Kong and
Macau to take home three prizes.

CONNECTING WITH THE COMMUNITY

In the spirit of community service, which is
the guiding principle of the Club, Members
continue to be strong supporters of the Members
CARE@hkjc Volunteer Team, taking part in 16
activities over the year and contributing more than
2,000 hours of community service. These included
a visit to Food Angel, a charity that uses edible

FRIE SFEEBETSVEEERR
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WP EHNER > SEEMIAREY
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THE CAPITAL AT BEIJING CLUBHOUSE

This year, The Capital at Beijing Clubhouse achieved the distinction
of being ranked China’s top restaurant by LA LISTE, the official list
of the 1,000 best restaurants in the world, sanctioned by France’s
Foreign Ministry and Tourism Board.
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With the introduction of the Badges Mobile App last season,
Members had the option of viewing Badges on their iPads. This
season, following the launch of Badges+, the magazine has gone
truly mobile, with coverage now available on Android phone and
tablet as well as on iPhone & iPad.

Badges EIEARRNEFHE - FETE A PadBIEEE AT c &=
# HH A9 Badges+ B B REHERF B IE Android B R FAREAS - LUKk
iPhone fiPadBI:ES & AT ©

=
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HEEFTEALT - SEEEBEXW - Ry
SHEBRM RBIHEPLIRERE - S8
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{LIBEE - 1ot BRSEHERERS R
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PEAETFEHEETHNEZERANGES
EREMAFEFH c —O—hHF » LFER
HESHSBHA—ENTETARE X
FUNERHsRFEELENEXEEREANE
R B AR EEE -

surplus food to create nutritious meals for the needy,
where Members rolled up their sleeves to help with
food preparation, and later served up the food in
a community centre. They also helped out on a
special ecotour organised for children of the Heep
Hong Society to visit the Jockey Club Museum of
Climate Change at The Chinese University of Hong
Kong. Meanwhile, Voting Members gained insights
into community needs through a series of agency
visits and engagement programmes.

The Beijing Clubhouse has also continued to
reach out to communities in Mainland China. Since
2008, it has been providing support to the “Group
the Power of Love” charity fund administered by the
Ministry of Civil Affairs-China Association of Social
Workers as well as to other good causes. In 2015,
the Beijing Clubhouse and its members donated
around RMB2.4 million to the Jigme Gyaltsen
Welfare School, located in a remote part of the
Qinghai-Tibetan plateau, to help build a new school
building for students.

Members lend a helping
hand at Food Angel.
TE&EY [




OPERATIONS REVIEW WAGERING AND LOTTERY

E 3
#
]
B

Wagering




In recent years the Club has led
other major jurisdictions with

its innovative and customer-
centric strategies. The objective
has always been to ensure that the
Club can continually meet the
expectations of its million plus
customers through the provision
of responsible and world-class
wagering services.

MEETING

- XPECTATIONS
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In this respect, the addition of five weeknight
race meetings and eight simulcast days from next
season will strengthen the Club’s efforts to combat
illegal gambling. They will also help ensure that
any proceeds continue to benefit the community
as a whole.

CELEBRATING 40 YEARS

OF THE MARK SIX

The 40th anniversary of the Mark Six this year
provided a timely reminder of these benefits.

It was back in 1975 that the Club was
authorised by Government to organise a lottery to
combat illegal lotteries such as the “Che Fa”, which
were then rampant across Hong Kong. The Mark Six
was launched the following year.

Since then the Mark Six has brought hope to
millions of people and generated HK$39 billion in
Lottery Duty and HK$21 billion in Lotteries Fund
contributions. More than 20,000 projects involving
over 300 organisations have been supported. Elderly
services, rehabilitation facilities, family and child
welfare, youth activities, and many more besides —
all have benefited thanks to the Mark Six.

It was therefore no surprise that March’s
anniversary draw saw an unprecedented response.
With the largest ever Snowball of HK$75 million
and the First Division Prize Fund estimated to
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OPERATIONS REVIEW WAGERING AND LOTTERY

reach HK$100 million, people queued around the
block at Club retail branches to buy tickets. In the
event total turnover set a new record of HK$446
million and five lucky people went away with first
division prizes worth HK$27 million each.

SELLING NOW

The Mark Six 40th
anniversary draw

saw a huge turnout

at retail branches
(opposite page).

Popular former host
Kenneth Ng, alias “Uncle
Winter”, returned for

the special anniversary

RECORD FOOTBALL PERFORMANCE

A further testament to the success of the Club’s
efforts to direct customer demand to regulated and
responsible channels was the record football betting

broadcast (above).
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turnover of HK$86.8 billion achieved this year, which
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in turn delivered a record HK$5.95 billion in betting
duty to Government.

Essential to this performance was enhanced
coverage of leagues and tournaments, for example
the U23 Asian Cup, and strong customer interest in
the Copa America Centenario and the early stages
of Euro 2016.

Ongoing enrichment of customers’ live and
digital football experience via the HKJC TV App,
which offers free football live streaming and live
analytics, was also an important factor.

ENRICHING THE DIGITAL EXPERIENCE
Customers increasingly seek to engage with racing
and wagering through digital technology. Indeed it
is @ major driver of the Club’s business. With this
in mind the Club continues to enhance its digital
information and entertainment offerings, while
also seeking to leverage the opportunities new
technologies are opening up.

The HKJC TV App, launched last season as a
mobile platform to provide football information and
live games, was this season extended to include live
racing and all pre-recorded programmes, as well as
live Mark Six lottery draws. It is now a one-stop shop
for all HKJC programming.

The Racing Touch horse racing and betting
application was enhanced, with new versions
released on iPad and Android platforms, offering a
complete set of racing bet types, quick-key functions
and racing trivia.

SpeedPRO, a significantly upgraded version
of the hugely popular SpeedPower was launched.
Offering enhanced functionality and taking account
of additional factors, it provides further insight into
horse performance and race analysis.

A new pre-purchase racecourse admission
service was introduced utilising WeChat Pay.
Customers can also use it to make online
reservations in public racecourse restaurants.
The Club is one of the first partners of WeChat to
introduce services on WeChat Pay.

Looking ahead, the Club is exploring the
exciting possibilities of Virtual Reality. Using the
latest VR technology, fans at Digital Night parties at
Happy Valley this season were able to visit locations
around the racecourse and get a jockey’s eye view
of arace, giving them a totally immersive experience
of the racing action.

NEXT GENERATION CUSTOMER
INFORMATION AND WAGERING SYSTEM
This year saw further progress on a new integrated
customer information and wagering system. The
system will provide much greater speed and
flexibility in responding to customer demand as
well as improving the Club’s ability to combat illegal
betting operators.

Work also started this year on a new customer
relationship management (CRM) system. The aim
is to fully integrate the Club’s CRM capabilities to
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Trying out the latest
Virtual Reality
technology (above).
The HKJC TV App
provides a one-stop
service for racing,
football and the Mark
six (right).
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The Club’s new
state-of-the-art
broadcasting studio.
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provide a single view of customers across all their
touch points, with the ultimate objective of improving
the customer journey and experience.

SHA TIN COMMUNICATIONS AND
TECHNOLOGY CENTRE

Much of the development work for the Club’s
systems is taking place at the new Sha Tin
Communications and Technology Centre (SCTC)
which opened in August 2015. An integrated hub
for the Club’s IT departments and betting channels,

OPERATIONS REVIEW WAGERING AND LOTTERY

it allows for much greater synergy between these
core functions.

SCTC also provides a brand new home for Sha
Tin Telebet, featuring the latest communications
technology, a new “dumbbell” layout to facilitate
communication between workstations, and
ergonomically designed seating for the 1,000
operators who work there during peak hours.

Another beneficiary is the Club’s broadcasting
team, which now has a fully integrated broadcast
centre, with three studios and full post-production
facilities. Given the substantial increase in broadcast
hours, with viewers across a wide range of customer
segments, and a growing audience overseas, this
represents a significant step-up in the Club’s ability
to reach out both at home and abroad.

RETAIL REVITALISATION

This season saw the launch of 12 new-look retail
branches, adding to the six rolled out last season.
The branches have been designed to cater to the
increasingly differentiated needs of customers, in
particular for interactive and digital services.

A key feature of all 102 branches is a dedicated
“Caring Hearts” community service counter, part of
a major effort to enhance the role of branches as
good neighbours in their community. Branches are
now equipped with automated external defibrillators
(AEDs) and provide free Wi-Fi, mobile device
charging and umbrella lending services.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW RESPONSIBLE GAMBLING

Tried and tested, the Hong Kong system
of responsible gambling has served the
community for decades. It is the strength and

shield of Hong Kong.

Simply put, the Club is authorised by Government to
provide betting services on horse racing, football and
the Mark Six lottery. In doing so the Club provides
a regulated channel to meet gambling demand, and
works with Government to promote responsible
gambling and to protect the public from the dangers
of credit betting, illegal gambling and associated
crimes such as money laundering. It also ensures
that any proceeds benefit the community as a whole,
whether in the form of tax and duty to Government
or through the Club’s own charitable donations.

ILLEGAL GAMBLING IS A THREAT TO
HONG KONG

Whether based in Hong Kong or offshore, illegal
bookmakers are a huge threat to our society.
Offering round-the-clock betting on all kinds of
unauthorised sports, promoting unlimited high-
frequency casino games and encouraging credit

betting, their activities are strongly associated with
excessive and pathological gambling.

lllegal gambling is also connected with criminal
activities such as loan sharking, money laundering,
fraud and bribery, and is a major source of funding
for organised crime. Half of all illegal bookmaking
operations raided by the Hong Kong Police between
2011 and 2014 were found to be associated with
organised criminal groups.

lllegal gambling is such a huge threat to society
that the fight against it must be ongoing. Exploiting
technology, particularly mobile devices, illegal
bookmakers continually find new ways to target
the public. Every year, an estimated HK$12 billion
in community funding is lost as a result of Hong
Kong residents betting illegally on racing, football
and other sports. Constant vigilance and strong law
enforcement must be maintained.
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THE CLUB PROACTIVELY ADVOCATES
RESPONSIBLE GAMBLING
The Club proactively advocates responsible gambling
practices and has established a comprehensive
range of measures to ensure that those who want to
bet can do so responsibly. The Club does not permit
credit betting and has strict protocols in place to
prevent underage gambling. It prominently displays
messages to encourage responsible gambling in
all betting channels, including providing treatment
and counselling service hotline information. It also
ensures that all front-line betting staff are fully trained
in implementing its Responsible Gambling Policy.
These practices were recognised by the World
Lottery Association (WLA) in 2011 when the Club
was granted Level 4 accreditation, the highest
attainable, under the WLA's Responsible Gambling
Framework. The accreditation, which is re-evaluated
every three years, was renewed in 2015.

PROMOTING RESPONSIBLE GAMBLING
This year, the Club continued to strengthen its
support for responsible gambling.

During Euro 2016, the Club ran a campaign to
promote public awareness of the dangers of illegal
gambling and to encourage responsible gambling.
Messages were delivered through online and offline
channels including via radio and TV info segments.

Starting from this year, the
Club has doubled its annual
funding of the Ping Wo
Fund, from HK$20 million
to HK$45 million. The

Fund, established with Club
support in 2003, finances
and co-ordinates preventive
and remedial measures to
address gambling related
problems.

The Club funded a HK$1.2 million two-year pilot
project, run by the Tung Wah Group of Hospitals
Youth and Family Section, to reach out online to
high-risk teenagers and young adults who either
have, or may potentially develop, gambling related
problems. The funds also support tertiary level
training courses in social work and counselling.

Starting from this year, the Club has doubled its
annual support for the Ping Wo Fund, from HK$20
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million to HK$45 million. The Fund, established with
Club support in 2003, finances and co-ordinates
preventive and remedial measures to address
gambling related problems. The additional funding
is intended to support preventive and counselling
services for high-risk groups, notably those
susceptible to credit betting and junket activities.
Educational programmes targeting families and
young people will also be launched.

ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING

The Club is committed to preventing its operations

from being used for money laundering and has put

in place an Anti-Money Laundering (AML) policy
and framework, which makes reference to the
internationally recognised Financial Action Task

Force recommendations and industry best practice.

This includes:

e Taking all reasonable steps to establish and
verify the true and full identity of each betting
account holder. No anonymous or fictitious
accounts are permitted. Betting accounts will
not be opened for customers residing in certain
jurisdictions where offshore gambling is illegal.

e Ongoing monitoring procedures to identify
suspicious transactions and to conduct
additional due diligence where necessary.

e Reporting all suspicious transactions to Hong
Kong’s Joint Financial Intelligence Unit, a unit

BEXERE=RSOERFTE LU REERE

OPERATIONS REVIEW RESPONSIBLE GAMBLING

of Police and Customs tasked with receiving all
Hong Kong reports of suspicious transactions.
Providing training to all employees who conduct
activities that may be exposed to money
laundering risks.

Conducting compliance monitoring and
internal audits to independently assess the
effectiveness of the AML policy and framework.
With respect to commingling, only entering
business relationships with overseas

commingling partners after thorough due
diligence has been conducted. During this
process, they must demonstrate that they have
the necessary rights to legally operate in the
relevant jurisdiction and that they adhere to their
local AML laws and regulations.
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FOR THE

betterment of all.

Today the Club donates 88% of its annual operating
surplus after tax to the Charities Trust and its support
covers ten areas of need: arts, culture & heritage;
education & training; elderly services; emergency
& poverty relief; environmental protection; family
services; medical & health; rehabilitation services;
sports & recreation; and youth development.
Thanks to significant improvements in the Club’s
business performance in recent years, the Club has
been able to substantially increase its support.
This season the Charities Trust donated a record
HK$3.9 billion to 215 charities and community
projects. It now ranks among the world’s top ten
non-government charitable foundations.
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The Club has been contributing to Hong Kong for over
a century, both directly and through The Hong Kong
Jockey Club Charities Trust. Through its integrated
business model of horse racing and racecourse
entertainment, membership, responsible wagering,
and charity and community contribution, the Club is
able to maximise its economic and social value for the
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Young people express their creativity at the Jockey
Club Make a Difference (MaD) School (above) and
Riding High Together Festival (left).
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OPERATIONS REVIEW CHARITIES AND COMMUNITY

PROACTIVE CONTRIBUTION

The Club engages with the community in multiple
ways. Through events like the Riding High Together
Festival, which this year brought 26,000 people to
Sha Tin Racecourse and Penfold Park, it seeks to
educate and inspire people with a positive can-do
spirit. Drawing on its sporting expertise, the Club
supports the development of community football,
golf and equestrian sports and promotes the benefits
of sport and exercise. Working in close partnership
with districts, it seeks to address community
needs at the local level, in many cases enlisting the
talent of employee volunteers. And in collaboration
with Government, academia and NGOs, the
Club helps initiate and fund projects that make a
substantive contribution to Hong Kong’s social and
development needs.

THE HONG KONG JOCKEY CLUB
CHARITIES TRUST

The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust is
the principal means by which the Club engages
with community need. Indeed, through its years of
engagement the Trust has developed a set of core
strengths which have enabled it to take a much
more proactive role. These include its ability to
raise awareness of societal issues and the potential
means of addressing them; its role as a convenor,
bringing together multiple and cross-sectoral parties
to tackle social needs that sometimes cut across
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professional disciplines; and its ability, utilising the
Club’s substantial resources, to make a difference
to specific areas of need, in some cases through
piloting new and innovative approaches through
Trust Initiated Projects.

For example, as part of the Club’s effort to
broaden the conversation on metropolitan social
issues and the role philanthropists like the Club
can play, from 22 to 23 September 2016 the
Trust is organising Hong Kong’s first international
philanthropy forum. Under the theme “Philanthropy
for Better Cities” it will launch Hong Kong
International Philanthropy and Social Enterprise
Week, serving as a platform for global and Asian
philanthropists and experts to share best practice
and facilitate collaboration. Over 1,000 delegates
from around the world are expected to attend.

The Hong Kong Jockey
Club Charities Trust is
the principal means by
which the Club engages
with community need.
Indeed, through its years
of engagement the
Trust has developed a
set of core strengths
which have enabled it
to take a much more
proactive role.

DEEPENING OUR COMMITMENT

Building on these strengths, and taking into account
the dynamic and changing needs of Hong Kong, the
Club is now expanding its role. While continuing to
support the broad range of community need, it is
seeking out specific areas where it can implement
planned responses that have substantive and
long-lasting social impacts.
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Children check out the
“Dancing Water Drops”
exhibit at the Riding
High Together

Festival (left).

Elite athletes
demonstrate their
skills at the new Jockey
Club Sports Building
(right).
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The first and major outcome has been a study
of Hong Kong’s emerging social needs. Through
consultation with local stakeholders and international
experts, and taking account of Government policies,
the Club’s Charities Trust has identified three areas
where it is now placing special emphasis:

YOUTH. Aware that young people are the
key to Hong Kong’s future, but also that many

find it difficult to chart their career and life paths,
the Club is seeking to enhance youth development
by cultivating an enabling environment rich with
opportunities, so that young people can unleash
their full potential and be prepared, connected and
engaged with society.

The Sixth Largest

Charity Foundation

In The World

L BB SR N R ik A5 0
The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities
Trust is the sixth largest non-government
charity foundation in the world according
to the World Charity Index 2015. This is
the first time an Asian foundation has
made it into the top 10.
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ELDERLY. With Hong Kong’s population rapidly
ageing, the Club is seeking to transform Hong Kong
into an age-friendly city, supportive of active, healthy,
and more socially-inclusive ageing.

SPORTS. Given the compelling evidence of the
huge benefits sports and exercise bring to society,
not only in improving health but in developing
strength of character and building social cohesion,
the Club is seeking to promote active participation
across every age group.

The Club’s initiatives this year to address these
three areas, as well as its contributions across its
other sectors of activity, are detailed under the
relevant sections below. A full list of Charities Trust
donations this year is on pages 136-148.

RANK ORGANISATION COUNTRY/ CITY DONATION IN 2014 (£)

Pt I 5%/ ki 20144 3k (e 85)

1 Bill & Melinda Gates USA £2,059M
Foundation K
LT B Tk 12 5 Ok Bk i 1
Wellcome Trust UK £556M
BT A
Novamedia/ Netherlands £469M
Postcode Lotteries 15 A
o L AL T AR 5

4 La Caixa Foundation Spain £350M
La Caixa ELZEZEAR it % [Ei %
TR

5 Ford Foundation USA £314M
FAF L B B3
The Hong Kong
Jockey Club
BWRENT

7 Silicon Valley Community ~ USA £287M
Foundation FH
o A4k i e 5

8 National Philanthropic Trust USA £285M
00 5K 783 £ ek 4 eS|

9 Atlantic Philanthropies UK £264M
KWFRESIEET el

10  Susan Thompson Buffett USA £252M
Foundation
BRAIRG 3 AR L IRA R

Source of Dec 2015 —~O—HA4F+— A ¥k
http://www.cityam.com/city-ams-world-charity-index-2015-whos-made-list-top-givers
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Sports and
Recreation

SPORTS AND
RECREATION

In this Olympic year, and under the banner of “Sports for All”, the Club has
launched various initiatives to promote sports and sportsmanship across the
community. Through cross-over activities that combine innovation with
sport, the aim is to motivate everyone to make sports and exercise a regular
and enjoyable part of their daily routine, benefiting health and also helping
to build character, self-esteem and community spirit. The following are some
of the major Charities Trust initiatives launched or in progress this year.

Learn to Swim Association with marine conservation Super Senior, Super Show!
Targeting around 16,500 non-swimming education provided by Ocean Park Hong Kong's retirees have a wealth of
Primary One pupils, the 18-month Jockey = Hong Kong. The aim of these cross-over experience and expertise. Many are keen
Club Learn-to-Swim Programme for activites is to teach students to become to give back to the community. Drawing
Primary Students combines swimming confident swimmers as well as on this talent, the St. James’ Settlement
lessons conducted by members of the conscientious protectors of Jockey Club “Super Senior, Super Show!”
Hong Kong Amateur Swimming the environment. will recruit and train young olds (aged
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50-65) as sports-entertainment
ambassadors, teaching them healthy
exercises they can pass on to their elders
(those aged 65 and above). The
programme will culminate in a Grand
Gala Show — The Super Senior, Super
Show! — featuring a sports-themed

group performance.

Jockey Club Keep-Fit Formula
for Children

Covering children aged 3 to 9 and
implemented by the Physical Fitness
Association of Hong Kong, China, this
three-year programme helps teachers and
parents integrate physical activities into
classroom lessons and home
environments. Over 19,000 students,
38,000 parents and 1,200 school
personnel will benefit, while 120 coaches
will be trained to deliver physical
development classes.

Jockey Club Athlete Incentive
Awards Scheme

As a long-term partner of the Hong Kong
Sports Institute, the Club has donated
over HK$900 million over the last 40

years, including to establish the HKJC
Elite Athletes Fund. This year saw the
Trust further strengthen its support. The
Jockey Club Sports Building, which
opened in October, provides a multi-
purpose elite training and coaching
centre, including for disabled athletes.
Meanwhile, in March the Trust donated
HK$18 million to support the Jockey Club
Athlete Incentive Awards Scheme over
the next three years. The scheme will
provide cash incentives to athletes
winning gold, silver or bronze medals in
top international competitions, including
the Olympics and Paralympics.

Active School Programme

This three-year programme will help
schools enhance physical education (PE)
activities with the aim of motivating
students at all levels. With expert support
from elite athletes, coaches and sports
associations, specially designed sports
activities will be organised during school
hours. Visits to sports competitions and
to meet elite athletes will further motivate
students. Lesson guidelines and sports
“tool kits” will enable PE teachers to

OPERATIONS REVIEW CHARITIES AND COMMUNITY

sustain the programme going forward.
Some 8,000 students from 80 schools will
participate, rising to 12,000 students in
120 schools in the final phase.
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SPORTS AND RECREATION

FOOTBALL

Drawing on its core sporting and event
organisation competencies, the Club is
playing an active role in developing
young people through community
football, not least as a means to
promote leadership, teamwork and
community spirit. In total it has invested
some HK$515 million in football over the
last decade.

Hong Kong’s first holistic
football development
programme

In its largest single donation so far, the
Charities Trust has donated HK$120
million to the Hong Kong Football
Association to launch the Jockey Club
HKFA 5-Year Football Development
Programme.
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Encompassing a wide range of
activities, the programme is designed
to promote football at every level.

A grassroots initiative will introduce
football to children aged 4-12, while a
youth programme will teach skills and
tactics to older youngsters and set up
leagues and tournaments. Futsal will be
promoted in schools and leagues set
up. A women’s football scheme will help
identify potential female footballers and
establish women’s football leagues.
There will also be support for sports
science and to develop football coaches
and referees. In all 26,000 young
footballers a year will benefit over the
five years of the programme.

Good progress is also being made
on the development of the Football
Training Centre at Tseung Kwan O.

The Trust is continuing to work with the

hFFERESREERS

Hong Kong Football Association to
ensure it will be ready for the public to
enjoy as soon as possible.

Putting their best feet forward
For the last three years the Club has
joined hands with international football
club Manchester United to bring the
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benefits of world-class football training
to Hong Kong’s young people.

Under The Jockey Club School
Football Development Scheme,
teachers and school team coaches have
been taught advanced coaching
techniques, with the very best receiving
accreditation as Manchester United
Soccer School coaches. This year the
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programme was extended to primary
schools, while an advanced course was
provided for teachers and coaches from
the previous two years.

The Jockey Club Youth Football
Leadership Scheme combines football
training with life skills workshops
conducted by celebrity mentors with the
objective of nurturing future community
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The Club is bringing
world-class football
training to Hong
Kong’s youngsters.
TS8R AU AR AR
AL BRI A

leaders. New features this year included
a day camp at the Hong Kong Sports
Institute, a workshop with a professional
trainer, and a team-building camp
conducted by social workers.
Meanwhile, this year saw the
conclusion of The Jockey Club Youth
Football Fitness Assessment Scheme.
Hong Kong’s first-ever football fitness
database of youth players, it will give
the Hong Kong Football Association and
coaches at various levels a scientific
reference to develop future fitness
programmes for its young players.
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HKJC Community Cup

More than 4,000 fans saw South

China beat Kitchee in the 2015 Hong
Kong Jockey Club Community Cup.

In addition to prize money, a portion of
the Club’s sponsorship was donated to
charities selected by the teams. Also
benefiting were 1,000 students and
less-privileged people who received free
tickets sponsored by the Club.

Girl power

Making its debut this year was The
Hong Kong Jockey Club N-League, the
city’s first district-based inter-school
girls football tournament. Seven girls
teams from schools in North District
competed in this eight-month long
competition.

Jockey Club Kitchee

Centre opens

Funded by a HK$63 million Charities
Trust donation, this purpose-built
football training centre has enabled
Kitchee to expand its free youth training
programmes. The facilities will be open
to the public for 30% of the centre’s
sessions. More than 100,000 users are
expected to benefit each year.

Jockey Club Youth Football
Development Programme -
Summer Scheme

A key component of the Jockey Club
HKFA 5-Year Football Development
Programme, this popular and long-
running programme gives boys and girls
aged 4 to 17 a chance to develop their
footballing skills over the summer
months. Over 10,000 young people
took part, many of them benefiting
from training tips from professional
footballers.
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The Jockey Club Kau Sai Chau
Public Golf Course

Hong Kong’s only public golf course,
The Jockey Club Kau Sai Chau Public
Golf Course has been promoting golf at
an affordable and accessible level since
1995. Through training programmes and
tournaments it aims to open up the
sport and develop the quality of golf in
the city.

Kau Sai Chau also reaches out to a
wider audience by offering community
programmes to the blind and mentally
disabled. Indeed, athletes from the
Kau Sai Chau Special Olympics Golf
Development Project, funded by the
Charities Trust, put in an exceptional
performance at the 2015 Special
Olympics World Summer Games held in
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the USA, winning five golds, three
silvers and two bronze medals.

Kau Sai Chau has received
numerous awards and certificates for
environmental management and last
year achieved a top ten placing in the
“Best Managed Golf Club in Asia
Pacific” category in the Asian Golf
Awards.
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SPORTS AND RECREATION

FQUESTRIAN

SPORTS

Equestrian sports have a long history
and heritage in Hong Kong. Drawing on
its horse management, venue
preparation and event expertise the
Club has been proud to support their
development. Today the Club’s three
public riding schools attract more than
60,000 visits a year. The Club has also
supported major equestrian events,
including at the Beijing 2008 Olympics
and the Guangzhou 2010 Asian Games.

Hong Kong Equestrian
Performance Plan

To further develop equestrian sports at a
competitive level, the Club has
established the HKJC Equestrian Team
and HKJC Junior Equestrian Training
Squad. This has enabled senior riders to

Joao Moreira on his way to victory

in the HKJC Race of the Riders at the
LONGINES Hong Kong Masters.
LR LR B o WA [IREER
T ST RAMTE | vp iy [R5 &5 R 15
g% ) 28 | 5 -

receive elite training in Europe, several
of whom have gone on to achieve
success in international competition.
This season the Club introduced
the Hong Kong Equestrian Performance
Plan. This expands the Club’s
sponsorship to encompass eventing
and dressage, meaning that
all three Olympic disciplines of show
jumping, eventing and dressage are
now supported. Riders now receive
professional performance planning and
mentoring, as well as sports science
and medicine support designed to
ensure that both horse and rider arrive
at competition in peak condition. Riders
on the programme are closely managed
and well rewarded, with funding
dependent on performance.
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LONGINES

Masters of Hong Kong

The Club has also continued to support
equestrian events, most notably as

The Club also provided plenty of
opportunities for Hong Kong audiences
to engage with equestrian sport,
including sponsoring 2,000 local

Founding Partner of the LONGINES
Masters of Hong Kong, one of Asia’s
largest 5-star international show

students and less privileged members
of society to attend the first day of
competition. And for members of the

BB S H

jumping events, which the Club HKJC Junior Equestrian Training Squad
supported for the fourth consecutive
year. A highlight this year was the
second edition of the HKJC Race of
the Riders, a relay race pairing top

Hong Kong jockeys with leading

there were master classes with visiting
equestrian riders, including Olympic
silver medallist Maikel van der Vleuten.

international equestrians.
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Jacqueline Lai represented Hong
Kong in the LONGINES Masters of
Hong Kong.
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Members of the HKJC Junior
Equestrian Training Squad.
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Youth
Development

YOUTH

DEVELOPMENT

Conscious that young people are the future of Hong Kong, but
also that many face significant challenges, the Club is seeking

to enhance youth development. By cultivating an enabling
environment rich with opportunities the aim is to help young
people unleash their full potential. Technology in particular is
providing new opportunities to reach out to and empower young
people. The following are some of the major Charities Trust
initiatives launched or in progress this year.

CLAP for Youth @ JC

This five-year HK$500 million
programme aims to help young people
identify and pursue their life and career

youth. Implemented from the start of the
academic year last September, it has
already provided services to over 7,000
students and 500 non-engaged youth.
In total it will reach about 200,000 young
people. The ultimate goal is to build an
effective and holistic career and life
planning model that can be sustained
long-term.

goals. It is the first such comprehensive
programme in the city, benefiting both
school students and non-engaged
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Computational Thinking and
Coding Education for

Primary Students

Recognising that computational thinking
and coding are essential skills in the
21st century, the Trust has joined hands
with the Education University of Hong
Kong, City University of Hong Kong, the
Massachusetts Institute of Technology
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and the private sector in a four-year
HK$216 million pilot programme in 32

primary schools. The programme will be
evaluated with a view to future
mainstreaming in primary schools
across Hong Kong.

Jockey Club Social-Tech
Incubation and Youth
Entrepreneurship Programme
Technology is a key driver of social
innovation. With this in mind, the Trust
has teamed up with the Hong Kong
Science and Technology Parks
Corporation to launch a three-year
programme to groom the next
generation of social-tech innovators.
With the help of experts in technology,

CLAP for Youth @ JC -
“Hang Out with Heart
2015” Fun Day.
[FEREHAE o Al
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social innovation and youth
development, 25 start-ups will be
equipped with the knowledge and
network to embrace a social angle to
their ventures while maintaining financial
viability. In addition, training, mentorship
and work placements will be provided
for 120 disadvantaged young people.

Social Career Online Volunteer
Matching Platform

Many young people are ready and
willing to volunteer their time to serve
others, but sometimes they are unaware
of the opportunities available. This new
online matching service, operated by
Social Career, will point them in the right
direction. NGOs can post volunteer

OPERATIONS REVIEW CHARITIES AND COMMUNITY

opportunities and manage rosters while
volunteers can share feedback on their
experience to motivate others.
Companies can also use the site to
organise corporate volunteering.

The hope is that a much broader and
sustainable base of volunteers will

be created.

Jockey Club Cyber Youth
Outreach

Changing lifestyles and the rapid growth
of the internet makes it increasingly
difficult to engage with young people.
This three-year project aims to
reconnect with hidden and/or at risk
youth, encouraging them to contribute
back to the society utilising their
technology knowledge. It also seeks to
build the capacity of social workers in
the application of technology. A
centralised database will capture and
analyse online data with the aim of
better understanding cyber youth and
developing technology enhanced social
work strategies.
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Elderly

Services

Jockey Club Age-friendly City
Project

With the aim of building age-friendly
momentum at the community level, the
initial phase of this project aims at
assessing the current age-friendliness of
Hong Kong and identifying appropriate
directions for action. Drawing on the
expertise of Hong Kong’s four
gerontology institutes, three priority
areas have been identified: building
Hong Kong into a more friendly city for
people of different ages; encouraging
the elderly to participate in community
activities; and promoting social

=& M5

ELDERLY SERVICES

In support of the Club’s strategic focus on the elderly, in
particular to help Hong Kong become an age-friendly city,
the Club has launched initiatives to promote active, healthy
and better quality ageing. The following are some of the
major Charities Trust initiatives launched or in progress

this year.

inclusion. Moving forward, project
teams will work with District Councils
and community partners in eight pilot
districts to develop three-year action
plans.

One important outcome has been
to evaluate elderly quality of life based
on Global AgeWatch Index reports and
to develop an AgeWatch Index
specifically for Hong Kong. This will
provide an objective and comparable
measure to evaluate improvements in
elderly well-being as well as the success
of related initiatives.
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Launch of the Jockey Club Age-friendly City Project’s
publicity and education programme.
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End-of-Life Community Care
The Jockey Club End-of-Life
Community Care Project is a three-year
HK$131 million initiative to improve the
quality of end-of-life care for elderly
people suffering from terminal illnesses.
A multi-institutional and cross-sectoral
collaboration, it covers hospitals, elderly
homes and community care settings.
Capacity building programmes for
healthcare personnel and public
education programmes will also be
organised. Over 1,400 terminally-ill
patients and about 6,300
professional and front-line
staff are expected to
benefit.

Community E-health
With Hong Kong’s elderly
population set to rise
dramatically, putting
pressure on resources,
community-based
healthcare solutions are
increasingly being
adopted. Harnessing the
latest technology, the

HK$138 million Community E-health
project aims to promote self-
management of the elderly and to build
community capacity in providing health
support. E-health corners will be set up
in 80 elderly centres for real-time
monitoring and follow-up by healthcare
professionals through tele-care and
outreach visits. Subsequent big-data
analysis will lead to a better
understanding of elderly healthcare
needs.

Holistic Support for

Elderly Mental Health

More than 100,000 older people suffer
from depression. To address their
needs, The University of Hong Kong is
joining hands with NGOs in a three-year
mental health project supported by the
Trust. Through outreach visits and
programmes some 4,000 vulnerable and
depressed elderly people will receive
help. The participating Integrated
Community Centres for Mental Wellness
and District Elderly Community Centres
will collaboratively carry out 2,000
prevention and intervention programmes.

OPERATIONS REVIEW CHARITIES AND COMMUNITY

Resource and Support

Centre for Carers

To help elderly people remain active and
independent within their home
environments, the Trust is providing
HK$99 million to Caritas — Hong Kong to
set up a carers resource centre in
Tseung Kwan O. As the largest such
centre in Hong Kong, it will provide
training, counselling and other support
services for professional carers

and family members with care
responsibilities. More than 68,000
people are expected to benefit over the
five years of the project.
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Education and
Training

EDUCATION
AND TRAINING

The Club puts a high priority on empowering people to achieve their full
potential, whatever their aspirations, background and talent. Its support

ranges across all forms of mainstream and vocational education and
encompasses extra-curricular activities that broaden horizons and open
up new opportunities. The aim is to help everyone achieve their goals
and realise their place as productive members of society. The following
are some of the major Charities Trust initiatives launched or in progress
this year.

From the next

academic year the Club
will offer Graduate
Scholarships at

Oxford and Harvard
universities.
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Jockey Club Scholarships
Since 1998, The Hong Kong Jockey
Club Scholarships have been awarded
to students studying at the city's tertiary
institutions. More than 440 students
have received scholarships to date.
Now the scholarships are
expanding in scope and scale. From the
coming academic year scholarships will
be provided to undergraduate students
with special education needs and non-
graduates who wish to undertake
vocational training. In addition,
scholarships will be available for
postgraduate studies at the University
of Oxford and Harvard University.
Jockey Club Scholars are
also expected to give back to the
community, taking part in learning,

social service and leadership activities,
which are now being co-ordinated by

a dedicated secretariat. Starting this
summer, 35 Scholars will also attend a
leadership programme at the University
of Oxford. A similar programme will be
held at Harvard University in 2017. The
aim is to shape Scholars as future
leaders of society, dedicated to its
service and betterment.

Meanwhile, The Hong Kong
Jockey Club Music and Dance Fund
Scholarships continue to support local
and overseas performing arts students
in their advanced studies. This year, the
Hong Kong Jockey Club Music and
Dance Fund Awardees Association was
established to enhance connections
between graduates.

Chinese Language Learning for
Ethnic Minority Students

For many ethnic minority Hongkongers,
Chinese proficiency is a barrier to
integration. The problem begins in
education, starting as early as
kindergarten. With this in mind, the Trust
has earmarked HK$237 million to carry
out a five-year project to build an
integrated model encompassing home,
school and community to help non-
Chinese speaking students learn
Chinese. Around 1,400 ethnic minority

OPERATIONS REVIEW CHARITIES AND COMMUNITY

kindergarten students will benefit.

The project will also provide capacity
training for teaching staff and social
service professionals, train ethnic
minority young people to become
teaching assistants, and provide out-of-
class learning opportunities and social
integration programmes for participating
students and their parents.

Make a Difference Social Lab
The Jockey Club Make a Difference
(MaD) School is a major initiative to
inspire Hong Kong youth. Through
innovative learning programmes and
forums it aims to empower young
people to become socially conscious
change-makers. Support is also
provided for those who want to
actualise their ideas within the
community.

With Trust funding of HK$13.58
million, MaD will launch the first social
lab in Hong Kong, bringing together
multi-disciplinary teams of young adults,
professionals and policy makers to
develop innovative solutions to pressing
social issues. Over the three years of
the project, there will be four separate
cycles, with teams giving public talks to
share their lab findings. Funding will
also be available to take actionable
ideas further.

SR WO g B A B P S
HADEBLE T RODBIRE
ME @ TP XRMAMIBEALS
HORETE - i R AR = AP
hWREBE - BHRRY  FEEE
EREESB_R=TtE8E
7T RR-ESMAFNETE
B HEENGEETRE - 2
N—ERANUEREN - BN
ERE - ERREBHENEE
ZHREBBEP - FFEIFENER
W—THBEELEEREHHRESR
& - FEREBEDE RS RS

ABREIEI - RARIFINDH
BEBFROHENE  AHS
MBERRREHREIINES
BERERTSHBIED -

[RIAS R | A gl B g =
BESE[AITE] 2k 5 M
THEFA  EBZT A
KB - MBEFANAERX
BFMERES  BHEEHRE
HEXE -
EEREFTESRX
—F=ZBE+N\BBRT EB

[BIFE ] BB E AL SR
BRE  BERETERLNFE
A~ BEALTHMBERSIEEER
—E . BRBAFESE  AEME
Mo STEIRE=F 0 HEHER
MmO ERIMERE - AEE
BRARHAERR WAL
ETATHER -

B I S M

ol

99



100

CE

Rehabilitation
Services

REHABILITATION
SERVICES

Hong Kong’s rehabilitation needs are wide-
ranging and fast changing. At one end of the
spectrum are those whose physical, mental

and social needs require institutional support
and home-based care. At the other end are
those who have the capacity, given the support,
to function and excel. Increasingly there is
recognition that everyone has potential and
that their talent needs to be nurtured, cherished
and recognised by society as a whole. The
following are some of the major Charities Trust
initiatives, launched or in progress this year.
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The arts studio at the Hong Chi Jockey Club Pinehill
Village (top) and activities organised by the Inclusive Arts
Project (above) are providing new opportunities for the
intellectually disabled to express themselves.
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Autism Support

Launched at the beginning of the school
year, JC A-Connect: Jockey Club Autism
Support is the first city-wide initiative to
address the needs of mainstream school
students with Autism Spectrum Disorder
(ASD) and their families using a holistic
approach. The three-year programme
provides school-based support for
autistic children in 311 primary and
secondary schools, together with
support services for families in 18
community centres, as well as public
education. The response has been so
positive that the programme will be
extended to 380 schools in the next
academic year, covering about 35% of
mainstream schools in Hong Kong.

In a related initiative, December
saw the opening of the Jockey Club
STAR Resource Centre in Ho Man Tin,
which supports people with ASD and
their families. It also provides vocational
and social skills training, job-matching
and on-the-job support, all with the aim
of helping people with ASD enhance
their employability in the community.

OPERATIONS REVIEW CHARITIES AND COMMUNITY

Jockey Club Rehabilitation
Complex

The Trust has been supporting The
Jockey Club Rehabilitation Complex in
Aberdeen, run by The Tung Wah Group
of Hospitals (TWGHSs), for 21 years. This
year saw the opening of an extension to
the complex — the TWGHs Jockey Club
Tsin Shing Day Activity Centre cum
hostel (Il) - for people with intellectual
disabilities. This provides 75 much
needed residential places and 75
training places at its day activity centre.
Complementing this, the TWGHs
Jockey Club Academy of Community
Rehabilitation provides training for
rehabilitation personnel. Around 4,000
people will benefit annually.

Inclusive Arts

Since 2010 the Trust has been
supporting the Inclusive Arts Project,
organised by the Arts with the Disabled
Association. The project was initiated

in recognition of the benefits that
participation in the arts can bring people
with disabilities, both therapeutically and

as a bridge to communication and social
inclusion. The Trust’s support provides
opportunities for abled and disabled
people to create art together. Master
classes led by overseas and mainland
professionals further enhance the artistic
and facilitation skills of local
practitioners, so they can provide
inclusive arts in their own communities.
Provision for the arts has also been
made at the Hong Chi Jockey Club
Pinehill Village, currently being
redeveloped with the aid of a Trust
donation of HK$600 million. Besides
providing a venue for multi-arts training
for people with intellectual disabilities,
the new arts studio and conference hall,
which opened in late 2015, serve as an
arts hub for performance, exhibition and
sale of art products — helping to
showcase the artistic talents of the
intellectually disadvantaged.
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Medical and
Health

MEDICAL
AND HEALTH

Over the years the Club has made a significant contribution
to community health, working with Government and local
institutions to build hospitals and clinics, to support research
and specialist medical services, and to promote public health
education. The following are some of the major Charities Trust
initiatives launched or in progress this year.
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Jockey Club Inpatient Facilities
Modernisation Scheme

This year saw a milestone in the
HK$253 million programme to install
ceiling hoists and electrically-operated
beds in public hospitals. Over 6,000
electrically-operated beds have now
been installed, accounting for one-third

of all such beds in public hospitals. The
installation of 520 ceiling hoists will be
completed in phases over the coming
two years.

Aside from bringing greater
convenience to both carers and
patients, the electrically-operated beds
will reduce medical complications

R i A
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by providing more effective
musculoskeletal support and greater
self-mobility. Likewise patients can use
the ceiling hoists for walking exercises
to facilitate recovery. Both ceiling hoists
and electrically-operated beds will also
help reduce occupational injuries to
healthcare staff.
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“Walking Hand-in-Hand” Cancer
Family Support

Fighting cancer can be a tough and
tiring journey. Under the HKACS -
Jockey Club “Walking Hand-in-Hand”
Cancer Family Support Project, the
Hong Kong Anti-Cancer Society
provides one-stop psychological
support and care services for cancer
patients, their families and carers. This
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includes a professional outreach team
to look after the needs of “hidden”
patients, especially the elderly living in
more isolated areas. The programme
will serve nearly 4,000 cancer patients
and their families, in addition to reaching
another 100,000-plus people through
training programmes, telephone
counselling and public education.

OPERATIONS REVIEW CHARITIES AND COMMUNITY

Ceiling hoists and
electrically operated
beds benefit patients
and healthcare staff in
public hospitals.
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Family
Services
Family Day 2016 Fun
Fair at Kowloon Park.
HIUBE A B BT 1Y
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FAMILY
SERVICES Faiy Doy 2076

In 2007, the Trust initiated FAMILY:

Over the years the Club has supported a wide range A Jockey Club Initiative for a

of activities and services that have helped build and Harmonious Society in partnership with
) ) h ) d h . § f 1 Th o The University of Hong Kong’s School

nurture happy and harmonious families. These range A e A

from support services that help cross-border students of Medicine.

d th . f l . ttl . t o St t This year, a series of “Family Day
and their families settle in, to programmes to promote 2016" events brought famiies together
family harmony and wellness. The following are some to take part in appreciation gift
of the major Charities Trust initiatives launched or in verkenops and family photo exhibitions,

) as well as to enjoy shopping and dining
progress thlS year. discounts at 600 business partners

across the city. The highlight was the
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Family Day 2016 Fun Fair at Kowloon
Park on 22 May, where families set a
new Guinness World Record by
assembling the world’s largest “Family”
pattern using 3,000 orange and purple
water bottle dumbbells.

Anderson Road Public
Housing Projects

The Anderson Road Public Housing
Development in Kwun Tong is a new
development which will house 48,500
residents, many of them from low-
income families.

To help residents settle in and
build a cohesive community, the Trust is
pioneering two community projects with
the Christian Family Service Centre and
Hong Kong Christian Service. One will
help residents in the transition period,
while the other aims to build community
relationships over the longer term.
Each year a large-scale event will
recognise residents and volunteers who
have contributed to the community.
It is hoped that these projects will
become reference models for future
housing projects.
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Social and Emotional Support
Service for Men

Most Government subvented family
service centres in Hong Kong are
women and children focused. The
Caritas Jockey Club Project Cedar,
which focuses exclusively on the needs
of men, fills an important service gap.
Programmes will help men expand
social networks, enhance family
relationships, and promote their physical
and mental health.

Child-focused Co-parenting
With the growth in divorce in recent
years, there is increasing recognition
that divorced parents have ongoing
responsibilities towards their children. To
address this need, the Club is partnering
with the Hong Kong Council of Social
Service and ten NGOs to implement the
three-year Jockey Club Child-focused
Co-parenting Project. Through public
education and social worker training, the
aim is to raise public understanding, with
the ultimate objective of helping
divorced parents become parenting
partners, working together to help their
children grow and develop.
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Forum discussion on child
focused co-parenting.
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Environmental
Protection

ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION

The Club’s commitment to environmental protection has grown

in scope and scale. From the development of Hong Kong's first air
pollution index and the launch of one of the largest glass bottle
recycling campaigns, to the setting up of Hong Kong's first museum
of climate change, the projects funded by the Club cover a wide
range of environmental issues. The following are some of the
Charities Trust's major environmental protection projects launched

or in progress this year.
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Mai Po Nature Reserve
Redevelopment

Operated by WWF-Hong Kong, Mai Po
is one of the most valuable ecological
assets in Hong Kong and an
internationally renowned wetland,
visited by thousands of people each
year. With the help of a HK$347 million
grant from the Trust it is undergoing a
major overhaul. The field studies centre
is being refurbished, a new training
block and bird hides constructed, and
footpaths widened to improve access
for wheelchair users. The new facilities
will enable the reserve to increase its
educational activities and provide
better support to visiting scientists

and conservationists.

St. James’ Settlement Jockey
Club Upcycling Centre

The first of its kind in Hong Kong, the
St. James’ Settlement Jockey Club
Upcycling Centre provides eight studios
for designers to create new products
from waste materials. It also provides
job opportunities for about 1,000 ex-
mentally ill and disabled people. To
spread the concept of upcycling, the
centre also organises regular
workshops, exhibitions, design

Upcycled musical
instruments in action.

TP 488 6 2% -

competitions and corporate training
programmes for over 7,000 participants

each year.

Hong Chi Jockey Club Glass
Bottle Recycling Project

This year saw the launch of phase three
of the Hong Chi Jockey Club Glass
Bottle Recycling Project. Initiated six
years ago, to date 3,900 tonnes of glass
bottles have been collected and
recycled. It has also provided job
opportunities for over 250 people with
intellectual disabilities. In phase three,
trainees will serve as Clean Recycling
Ambassadors, giving organisations
hands-on experience of glass waste
separation, while outreach workshops
will introduce glass upcycling and green
lifestyles. It is expected that a further
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created.

Initiative Gaia

2,200 tonnes of glass will be collected,
and 160 vocational opportunities

CUHK Jockey Club

Funded by a HK$70 million donation to
The Chinese University of Hong Kong,
Gaia is a five-year community
engagement programme. Among its

projects has been the establishment of
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the world’s first Museum of Climate
Change (MoCC). Taking the theme of
“climate change and biodiversity”, its
two-day roadshow this year showcased
ways to attain a green lifestyle. New
features included an original eco-themed
play created by Chung Ying Theatre
Company, and a demonstration of the
MoCC'’s new virtual tour of the museum.

Note: More information on the Club’s
environmental initiatives is provided
in the Environment Section of this
report, pages 124-135.
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Emergency and
Poverty Relief

EMERGENCY
AND POVERTY
RELIEF

The Club maintains a watchful eye on the poverty line and stands ready
to lend a hand in times of emergency. Over the years it has helped NGOs
operate food banks and hot meal services, assisted the disadvantaged

to improve their quality of life, and established a relief fund for those in
immediate distress. The following are some of the major Charities Trust
initiatives launched or in progress this year.
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Principal Chan Jockey Club

Tai Kok Tsui Talent
Development Centre

With the aim of bridging the opportunity
gap for students from low-income
families, this innovative educational
initiative provides equal learning
opportunities for disadvantaged
children, aiming to enhance their skill-

learn. The new centre offers one-on-one
talent development classes from
volunteer tutors, pre-school training and
playgroups for young children and their
parents, and a digital learning area to
facilitate online learning. In its first three
years it is expected to benefit more than
1,800 students and 2,500 pre-school
children.

sets, confidence and motivation to
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The centre has also brought the
innovative Design for Change concept
to Hong Kong, organising week-long
interactive training camps on outlying
islands to broaden students’ horizons
and enhance their interest in learning.

Jockey Club Emergency

Relief Fund

Established in the wake of a residential
building collapse at Ma Tau Wai Road in
2010, the Jockey Club Emergency Relief
Fund provides immediate financial relief
to victims of natural disasters and major
accidents. The money, which can be
allocated within days of an incident,
enables the Trust to give urgent and
much needed help to people in distress.
Beneficiaries have included families of
the victims of the Manila hostage
shooting, the Lamma ferry disaster and
the Tai O fire. This year, 28 families and
individuals received support from

the Fund.
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Arts, Culture
Heritage and
Conservation

ARTS, CULTURE
AND HERITAGE

Over the years the Club has been a staunch
supporter of Hong Kong’s arts, culture and
heritage. It funds flagship cultural events like

the Hong Kong Arts Festival and Le French

May Festival. It helps keep alive intangible
heritage like the Tai Hang Fire Dragon Dance,
the Cheung Chau Jiao Festival and the Tai O
Dragon Boat Water Parade. And through projects
like the Jockey Club Creative Arts Centre, and
the revitalisation of the Central Police Station
compound, now known as Tai Kwun, it helps
promote creative industries, enrich quality of life,
and preserve Hong Kong’s collective memory. The
following are some of the major Charities Trust
initiatives launched or in progress this year.
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Hong Kong Arts Festival

The Trust has supported the Hong Kong
Arts Festival since 1974, providing over
HK$301 million in funding. Since 2008,
The Hong Kong Jockey Club Series has
supported the Festival in bringing top
international performers to Hong Kong.
Meanwhile the Contemporary Dance
Series nurtures local choreographers
and dancers, while the Student Matinee
Programme promotes the performing
arts to students. Some 2,500 students
attended its programmes this year.
Another initiative is the Jockey

Club Local Creative Talents Series,
introduced at the 2015 Festival. In 2016
it supported the Festival to present
Danz Up, the first street dance drama

in town. Related outreach activities
attracted 4,500 students to learn and
appreciate this art form.

Jockey Club Power of Music
To share the pleasures of classical
music, the Trust is helping the Hong
Kong String Orchestra teach classical
music to students from low-income
families as well as giving them the
chance to perform in community
concerts. Participating students
receive a free violin and a three-year
complimentary violin training course
conducted by HKSO musicians.

Jockey Club Museum of Art

on Wheels

With the Hong Kong Museum of Art
closed for renovations, the museum is
taking the opportunity to reach out
through the Jockey Club “Museum of
Art on Wheels” Outreach Learning
Programme. Touring across Hong Kong,
this mobile art museum uses interactive
games and reproductions of art works
to bring art appreciation into schools
and local communities.

Hand in Hand Capable Theatre
IncluDrama Project

Each year for the next three years the
Jockey Club Hand in Hand Capable
Theatre IncluDrama Project will bring
disabled and abled people together to
learn basic theatrical skills, followed
by performances in schools and
community centres. There will also be

The Museum of Art on Wheels is taking art into the community.
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a major large-scale theatre production.
The experience will not only empower
participants but through engaging
volunteers, and through the production
of a documentary film, it will educate the
community about the capabilities and
needs of disabled people.

Youth Painting Education
Introduced in 2015, the Jockey Club
Young Artists Development Programme
teaches painting to underprivileged
young people. This year the programme
has been expanded to benefit more
underprivileged students and
youngsters, including children with
special education needs and mild
intellectual disabilities. Masterclass
workshops will be held and a city-wide
outdoor painting day will be organised
for 4,000 youngsters each year.
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ARTS AND CULTURE

CENTRAL

POLICE STATION

A partnership between The Hong Kong
Jockey Club and the Government of the
Hong Kong SAR, the Central Police
Station Revitalisation project is an
important initiative to conserve and
revitalise this historic compound, which
comprises 16 heritage buildings. The
aim is to transform the site into a
leading culture and leisure destination,
where heritage, contemporary art and
leisure elements are creatively
integrated for all to enjoy.

Management and oversight

The site will be managed and operated
by Tai Kwun, the trading name of The
Jockey Club CPS Limited, a not-for-
profit operator set up by The Hong Kong

Jockey Club Charities Trust. Tai Kwun,
or “big station”, is the old colloquial
name for Central Police Station. An
Advisory Committee has been set up to
advise the board of Tai Kwun on the
overall strategic direction for the
operation and management of the site.
Members of the committee include
distinguished individuals from the
heritage, arts, community, education
and business sectors as well as
members of the Central and Western
District Council, who were appointed to
represent views of the wider public.
Ex-officio members include The
Commissioner for Heritage of the
HKSAR Government, a senior
management representative of The

The Arbuthnot
Auditorium and

the Laundry Steps
underneath will

be venues for film
screenings and
educational activities.
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Hong Kong Jockey Club and a senior
management representative of
Tai Kwun.

Two voluntary working groups, the
Heritage Working Group and the Art
Working Group, are assisting Tai Kwun
management in formulating
programming policies and providing
expert advice on the content of the
heritage and art programmes.
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A centre for heritage and art
Tai Kwun is adopting a site-wide
interpretation strategy with the aim of
providing rich and diversified heritage
programmes, tours, thematic exhibitions
and educational activities. Tai Kwun is
also collaborating closely with local and
overseas art groups and organisations
to stage quality art exhibitions and
related educational programmes.

To enrich the visitor experience,
there will be a variety of retail shops and

The Old Bailey Galleries will
provide space for art exhibitions.
SRR S i P2 PE Al e BT 5 b o

food and beverage outlets. These will
occupy no more than 27% of the total
construction floor area and will be
compatible with the character of the
site. Income generated will help sustain
the operation of the site. Several retail
and food and beverage operators have
now been identified.

The police will also return,
establishing a service centre at the
former Headquarters Block. With due
consideration given to operational
efficiency, the interior will have elements
reminiscent of police reporting rooms of
former times.

Married Inspectors’ Quarters
The Club attaches great importance to
ensuring that the heritage buildings
within the Central Police Station
compound are properly cared for.
Leading local and international experts
have been appointed to the project
team. The partial collapse of the Married
Inspectors’ Quarters on the evening of
29 May was a reminder of the complex
and challenging nature of the project.
Fortunately there were no injuries.

The building has now been stabilised
to ensure public safety.

OPERATIONS REVIEW CHARITIES AND COMMUNITY

The debris has been salvaged as far
as practicable.

An independent review panel
comprising external local and overseas
experts has been set up to enquire into
the incident and identify the likely
causes of the partial collapse as well as
whether additional measures should
reasonably and practically have been
undertaken to prevent the incident. The
Club is also collaborating closely with
the Buildings Department’s statutory
investigation and continuing to update
the Government, the Central and
Western District Council and the public
on latest developments.

Looking ahead

In parallel with the investigation, the
Club is exploring options to recover the
collapsed building, with safety as the
top priority. Although the incident will
inevitably have an impact on the
opening date of Tai Kwun, the Club
nonetheless remains firmly committed
to ensuring that Hong Kong people will
soon be able to enjoy the heritage and
cultural experiences of the revitalised
Central Police Station compound.
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=IDING HIGH
TOGETHER

FESTIVAL

The Rldlng ngh Together FestiVal at With 2016 being an Olympic year, this year’s festival

was themed “Let’s Cheer for Sportsmanship”, with

Sha Tin Racecourse and Penfold Park, families and friends — some 26,000 people in all -

. . coming together to enjoy 70 activities in ten zones.
now an annual event’ 1S an Opportunlty A highlight was the setting of a new world record
fOI‘ the Chlb to connect Wlth the by 1,000 primary and secondary students who joined

together to create the world’s longest paper chain

community, to share its mission and to of cheering messages to promote sportsmanship.

Cheering them on were top Hong Kong athletes,

encourage eVerYOHG tO make d pOSitiVe including Olympic gold medallist in windsurfing Lee
diﬂ‘erence tO the Community Lai-shan and Paralympic gold medallist in wheelchair

fencing Benny Cheung Wai-leung.

[l .0 [ 25 [ 4 H ZONE 1
3 RIDING HIGH
N SERELEYDHEE S R E TOGETHER
ARBEHITEOFPFELGEH] > M EXHIBITION
ik B85S e ey > SE S — it [l a0 [l 25 Jé B
Kb w L& o A showcase of Hong Kong’s
world-class racing and sports
BECO— NREEE . SENELEEL history and a chance to try out
[Aems wame BIE R HEES sports-themed games.
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PEESGHEFZRERITRAERE 515
BRERBH  RINTHHRCHE EREBE
DA SERERRANSHEIZEMR ZONE 2
BEANRBHRBHIRSISEIERE B FAMILY LOVE
RiEipREE AND CARE

N EVY - N
Family-oriented games helped
promote family harmony.
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A chance to unleash creativity
through fun-filled sports and
Easter-themed workshops.
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ZONE 4
LET’S BUILD A
GREEN CITY

5 VU I I St o ¢ I

Motivating everyone to become
part of an environment-
friendly community.
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ZONE 5
KIDDILAND
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A chance for children to

develop their sporting skills.
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ZONE 6
FITNESS FOR ALL
SN [ [l 300 15 30 fig
Comprehensive fitness assessments helped
the health-conscious take their first step
towards an active lifestyle.
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ZONE 7
PURSUIT OF A
FOOTBALL DREAM

5P -G It I 38 e R 2

Over 380 boys and girls took part in a 4-v-
4 tournament organised in collaboration
with Manchester United. The best players
subsequently joined a Manchester United
Soccer School clinic, with the top four
being given the dream opportunity to
train at United’s UK training base.
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ZONE 8
LIVE
PERFORMANCES

)\ 7. M B £y Show

Hong Kong’s medal-winning cyclists
wowed festival-goers with stunt riding
performances.
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ZONE 9
INFLATABLE WORLD

LN G EER S

Families showed their sportsmanship by
tackling different challenges together.
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ZONE 10
HORSE
ENCOUNTERS
S8 [ 3R 8 XS 1

Thrilling up-close encounters with horses
at Penfold Park, including show jumping
and other demonstrations by the HKJC
Equestrian Team, as well as pony rides
for children, showcased the excitement of
equestrian sports.
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DISTRICT

~NGAGEMEN

The Club also seeks to engage with communities at the local
district level. Community projects, many of them supported
by the Club’s CARE@hkjc employee volunteer team, aim

to help disadvantaged and at risk groups such as the elderly,
young people and ethnic minorities function
more effectively within their neighbourhoods. -

CETERE

2§

Among the activities organised this year, some 200 In support of the Club’s
charitable mission, the employee
CARE volunteer team also
participated in Charities Trust-
sponsored events, including the
Jockey Club Community Green
Playground at the Hong Kong
Flower Show 2016 and the iRun —
Hong Kong Jockey Club Special
Marathon 2016.

CARE volunteers joined the Hong Kong Women
Development Association to deliver food packs to
over 13,000 underprivileged households in the New
Territories. To support local arts and culture and to
promote social inclusion, ethnic minority children,
new immigrant families and others joined together
to “Colour a Leisure Spot”, creating the largest 5D
ground painting in Hong Kong. To promote better
practices in handling food waste and green dining

habits, the Club supported the “Zero Food Waste
Cooking Competition” initiated by Greeners Action.
And continuing its support for ethnic minority youth,
the CARE team partnered with Hong Kong Children
& Youth Services in a youth project specifically
targeting their life and career development.

Meanwhile, through sponsorship of local events
and festivals, the Club sought to build community
spirit and foster good-neighbourliness. Around 100
such events were supported this year across all
18 districts, reaching out to almost 300,000 people.
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SICHUAN RECONSTRUCTION PROJECTS
The Club has periodically made donations in
situations of exceptional natural disaster, most
recently following the devastating Sichuan
earthquake of 12 May 2008, when the Club provided
emergency relief followed by funding support and
technical advice for seven reconstruction projects
in the province. These projects have now been
successfully completed, with three of them winning
an “Outstanding Quality Construction” award from
the Sichuan Provincial Government.

With the earthquake-stricken area and its people
entering an important stage of post-reconstruction,
the Club is now supporting initiatives to promote
the sustainable development of the seven Club-
supported projects. This follows the signing of a
memorandum of understanding (MOU) last year
with the Hong Kong and Macao Affairs Office of
the Sichuan Provincial Peoples’ Government on

MAINLAND CHINA

COMMUNITY
INITIATIVE

o B L N mas

BEERHBRERKFEHESS

ways to take forward the projects. There will also be
exchanges between Sichuan and Hong Kong as well
as other agreed charitable co-operation projects.
One of the Club-supported reconstruction
projects is The Sichuan University-Hong Kong
Polytechnic University Institute for Disaster
Management and Reconstruction (IDMR). IDMR
is China’s first tertiary institute to make use of
the Sichuan relief and reconstruction experience
to develop systematic teaching, research and
exchanges for better disaster management
and post-disaster reconstruction. This year, the
eighth anniversary of the earthquake, saw further
development of the IDMR, with an agreement
being signed for further co-operation and exchange
with Hong Kong Polytechnic, the Club-supported
Disaster Preparedness and Response Institute in
Hong Kong, and other overseas tertiary institutions.

COMPUTER RECYCLE AND

DONATION PROGRAMME

Also benefiting this year have been students and
teachers of Jilin Yong Ji No. 2 Experimental Primary
School in Jilin province. As part of a new Retired
Computer Recycle and Donation Programme, the
Club’s Shenzhen Technology Centre donated used
but fully functional computers to the school, which
were installed by the Club’s IT engineers. With
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the Mainland Government having established a
computer to primary student ratio of 7.5 computers
per 100 students, the school now well exceeds the
national target.

PROMOTING SPORTS AND FITNESS

The Club is always keen to support sports exchange
and to promote community fithess programmes.
The annual Guangdong — Hong Kong Cup, one of
the feature events of the Hong Kong Reunification
Raceday, celebrates, amongst other things, the
long-established co-operation in the area of sports
development between Hong Kong and Guangdong,
most notably for the equestrian events of the 2010
Guangzhou Asian Games. This year, the Club
further extended its support to fund sports parks in
Huizhou, Zhaoging City and Meizhou.

The Club’s support for equestrian sports in
Mainland China also extends to title sponsorship
of the Hong Kong Jockey Club Cup Guangzhou
Final, which is the closing leg of the China Tour. This
was the second time the Club has sponsored this
FEI 3-star competition, which is organised by the
China Equestrian Association. The competition took
place in what is now designated The Hong Kong
Jockey Club International Equestrian Arena, which

OPERATIONS REVIEW CHARITIES AND COMMUNITY

is part of the Huangcun Sports Training Centre. The
Club was pleased to support the upgrading of this
arena to an Olympic sand footing standard. The
Club also supported the upgrading of stables and
related training facilities at the equestrian centre in
the Huangcun Sports Training Centre, which is the
base of the Guangdong team.

This year saw the Club continue with its
support for Community Fitness Programmes.
Established in 2014 as a pilot project to support
the drive to improve community health, activities
included programmes to enhance the standard
and status of National Level Community Fitness
Instructors and to develop the skills of Qigong
instructors. Over the last two years, the National
Level Community Fitness Instructors programme
has reached 31 provinces and
equivalent jurisdictions, and
trained over 9,000 instructors,
benefiting 500,000 citizens.
The Qigong programme
culminated in cross-strait
Qigong competitions in
Guangzhou and Xiamen, with
over 232 participants from
Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan,
Fujian and Guangdong
attending.

The IDMR, a tertiary institute focusing on
disaster management and reconstruction,
was one of seven Sichuan reconstruction
projects supported by the Club.
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Employees




The Club is one of Hong Kong’s
largest employers, providing full
and part-time jobs to 22,000
people. It prides itself on offering
rewarding careers in an exciting
world-class organisation with the
opportunity to contribute to the
betterment of Hong Kong in a
truly unique way.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW EMPLOYEES

DEVELOPING OUR PEOPLE

To take the Club forward, and to help it grow both
its business and community contribution, the Club
seeks to recruit and develop individuals with the right
mix of knowledge, skills and personal effectiveness.
It also recognises that by helping staff grow
professionally and personally it contributes to the
skills base and well-being of Hong Kong as a whole.

The Hong Kong Jockey Club College,
established in 2010, is the main portal for the Club’s
development activities, delivering management,
leadership and skills training. From September
2016 it will be housed in a purpose-built campus at
Sha Tin Communications and Technology Centre,
comprising six training rooms equipped with best-
in-class learning facilities.

Development programmes are also available
through www.hkjcfamily.com, which provides all
current full and part-time staff with open access to
learning opportunities.
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In 2015/16 full and part-time employees
received an average of 42.9 and 9.4 hours of training
respectively.

BUILDING LEADERSHIP CAPABILITY
Leadership development is vital to the future growth
of the Club. The Club has established a Leadership
and Career Development Centre as part of The
Hong Kong Jockey Club College to equip leaders
with the relevant skills and competencies to lead
teams and projects.

Partnering with leading business schools and
world-class subject experts, the Centre provides a
Leadership in Action Programme and Leadership
Excellence Programme for Executives, and an
Assistant Executive Leadership Programme
for middle level managers. At junior levels, a
comprehensive supervisory leadership curriculum
helps employees manage the transition to
leadership roles.

GRADUATE TRAINEE PROGRAMME

To provide a healthy leadership pipeline, the
Club launched a graduate trainee programme in
2015, recruiting over 60 graduate trainees. The
18-month multi-divisional programme is designed

to build functional and professional skills. This is
accomplished through education, practical job
experience through job rotations, organisational
exposure via mentoring and networking, and through
performance feedback and evaluation.

CORPORATE WELLNESS

The Club is very aware of the need to support the
physical and mental well-being of employees. A
Corporate Wellness Programme has been in place
since 1999. Its most recent initiative, launched in
April 2015, is the Happy-at-work@hkjc programme,
which provides customised exercise and fitness
programmes, workshops focusing on stress
management and spiritual growth, and a range of
outdoor activities. Around 2,300 employees have
attended to date.

OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH
A Corporate Safety Committee reporting directly to
the Board of Management, and supported by eight
Departmental Safety Committees and the Human
Resources Department, oversees the implementation
of the Club’s safety policy at workplace level.
Occupational safety and health (OSH) skills
training programmes assist departmental safety
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Since 2003 an award has been made to the stable
with the Safest and Best Housekeeping. This year’s
winner was the stable of Derek Cruz.
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managers/officers in identifying, monitoring and
addressing potential OSH risks. Line departments
also organise their own safety promotion
programmes to raise staff awareness of OSH and
proactively reduce the likelihood of workplace
accidents.

COMMUNICATION AND ENGAGEMENT
With a large workforce distributed across Hong Kong
the Club recognises the importance of frequent and
timely communication. Club news and information
is disseminated through two employee portals,
MyJC.com and hkjcfamily.com, and via the staff
newsletter, Rapport, which is also available online.

The Club collects employee feedback through
surveys and focus groups as well as informal
channels such as “Tea and Chat” sessions and
“Brown Bag” lunches. A regular dialogue is
maintained with staff associations and unions, which
predominantly represent employees in racing and
betting operations. In addition, the human resources
team conducts proactive “Staff Pulse Checks” to
identify specific employee issues.

AN A
BSEEBKEAR TEHBEHREE Bt
ERNERNBBEAEZ - RMAA
MyJC.com #ll hkjcfamily.com i &l & T i@
A Uk EEE EREEHE T
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H URRBNFEBRSSHEARE K
SETER  WHEIERREBESERIRIEH
WETHBN TEERETE - lthh ANE
REIRR I BREE S TARSE - FEPEMEIIRE

HYRRE o
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SHA TIN COMMUNICATIONS AND TECHNOLOGY CENTRE

Opened in the summer of 2015, the Sha Tin Communications and Technology
Centre provides a centralised workspace for the Club’s technology and
communication functions and a new home for Sha Tin Telebet. Constructed
according to the latest BEAM standards, and taking account of different
operational requirements, the building was designed to facilitate connectivity
between teams, as well as to provide an employee-friendly work environment.

Telebet staff now sit at ergonomically designed workstations arranged in
“dumbbell” configurations for better team communication. Leisure and internet
zones are available for relaxation during breaks. Channels and IT staff, once
split between different sites, benefit from increased proximity and the availability
of collaborative work spaces. Broadcasting Services also now has its own state-
of-the-art broadcasting studios.

Meanwhile staff development needs will be taken care of through the new
campus of The Hong Kong Jockey Club College, arranged around a sunken roof
garden. This, along with the top storey, provides a green space for employees
to relax and enjoy the spectacular views across the racecourse to the Ma On
Shan hills.

¥ B R BB
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For the Club, environmental
sustainability is about much
more than being a responsible
corporate citizen. It is part

of our wider and long-
standing commitment to the
betterment of Hong Kong.

By optimising our energy efficiency, we can improve
our business performance and help keep the Club
competitive and sustainable. By reducing our carbon
footprint and minimising waste through reduction,
reuse and recycling, we can set an example to the
community at large, making full use of the Club’s

long-standing community partnerships to create a
greener, better Hong Kong for future generations. WOR KI NG FOR
In bringing this vision to reality, we seek to
identify and adopt international best practices and
embed sustainability into all of the Club’s major
processes and operations, setting measurable
targets for our use of energy and resources, and
fully engaging our employees so that we can move 3 o ‘ ‘ o q
continuously forward as a committed team. I I
HEBTEGBEKRK

| 1]
By
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MANAGING OUR HOOFPRINT

The Club has been monitoring and reporting its
environmental performance since 2009 and has
already implemented a wide range of energy-
saving and waste management measures. In
2015/16, it raised the bar even higher by including
key performance indicators (KPIs) for each area of
operation. The KPIs cover a set of sustainability
indicators related to electricity, environmental risk,
air pollution and waste. The Club is one of the few
organisations in Hong Kong to adopt this approach,
which accords with best environmental practice
overseas and uses internationally-recognised
reporting standards as a benchmark.

Given the Club’s increasing business operations
and initiatives to enhance the customer experience,
an ongoing challenge is to limit, and in due course
peak, its carbon emissions.

New floodlighting is

improving energy efficiency
at the racecourses.
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In 2015/16, the Club’s total carbon footprint
was down by 5% on the previous year and 2.4%
down on the base year of 2009/10. Electricity
consumption, which is the major constituent of the
Club’s carbon emissions, has however increased
by about 0.2% since the base year 2009/10. This is
due to the opening of the Sha Tin Communications
and Technology Centre in 2015, though it should
be noted that energy intensity has been reduced
by 30% from the base year. This reflects continued
investments in energy efficiency and efforts to control
energy needs. Indeed the Club has been awarded
the CarbonCare Label (Level 2) for achieving a more
than 20% intensity reduction against its base year.

Carbon Emissions (co2-e in tonnes)
BRHEHL (—temapisn iz — 2w

HONG KONG OPERATIONS
TWHEH
Indirect emissions from electricity
CWALUILEE ST
Fugitive emissions from refrigerants
LR A ORI
Direct emissions from facilities
WO Y LA
Direct emissions from transportation
R s T B P EL R T
Indirect emissions from gas

SRS MR A 4 kA

BEIJING CLUBHOUSE
R
Indirect emissions from electricity
T 1B
Direct emissions from facilities
WM Y B BT

e

2015/16 2014/15 2013/14 2009/10
FE AR 4F 5 Baseline
BEHEAR i
116,988 123,116 119,643 119,829 B
b

109,387 114,938 112,749

3,741 4,293 2,677

2,339 2,342 2,654
1,011 1,016 1,030

510 527 533

113,267

2,686

2,367

1,035

474

127



128

SAVING
ENERGY

B %9 AE 8

The Club has one of the most extensive
and pioneering Building Management
Systems (BMS) in Asia, with all new
office buildings or clubhouse and
racecourse refurbishments designed to
optimise their environment-friendliness
and operational performance using
life cycle tools. The racecourses, for
example, have almost 70,000 BMS
points monitoring and controlling
mechanical and electrical systems.
Besides ensuring that all new or
refurbished premises meet the highest
possible environmental standards,
the Club has invested significantly in
energy-saving in existing buildings.
More than HK$18.6 million has been
committed since 2008 to retrofitting
energy-efficient lighting in the Club’s
offices, clubhouse and racecourse
venues, as well as at its 100-plus Off-

Electricity and Gas Consumption

2015/16 2014/15
FE G

HONG KONG OPERATIONS
HEEY

Electricity (kWh)

BH (TR

Towngas (units)

BR )

175,891,046 166,658,517

849,534 850,660

BEIJING CLUBHOUSE
b3

Electricity (kWh)

B (TER)

Natural gas )

RBR LK)

8,552,402 8,869,244

226,578 234,439

2013/14
R

165,009,539

874,481

9,275,744

238,651

2009/10
Baseline
FEAEAE BE
175,616,314

798,673

9,383,904

230,748

Course Betting Branches.
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Brightening the
customer experience
Since 2009, the Club has been engaged
in revitalising its two racecourses. A
prime objective has been to enhance
racegoers’ experience by creating
brighter and more welcoming facilities.
These new developments set
the Club an energy challenge as
customer expectations call for more
air-conditioned venues, longer opening
hours and expanded facilities. To offset
these energy demands, over 15,000
tungsten halogen lamps were replaced
by LED fittings at the two racecourses
this year, bringing savings of some 70%
in lighting energy consumption. This
initiative also saves around 594 tonnes
of carbon emissions every year.

SCTC - a green model

for the future

The Club’s new Sha Tin
Communications and Technology
Centre has been designed as a green
building and received BEAM Plus Gold
certification from the Hong Kong Green
Building Council.

The first staff began moving in
during 2015 and it now houses staff
from Telebet, IT and Broadcasting, who
were previously spread out across the
city. This not only increases operational
efficiency, but also provides a more
pleasant and ergonomically-designed
working environment.

As occupancy increases, the Club
is closely monitoring energy use and the

OPERATIONS REVIEW ENVIRONMENT

optimisation of building performance
through its Building Management
System. Measurements of the Energy
Utilization Index (EUI) in the new Sha Tin
Telebet Centre and IT offices are already
showing an 11% and 14% improvement
respectively over their previous office

locations.

e

i
EEEFSMBEERTIN %

[EHIEE -
BHETA-O—LFH
WHIESL EORESZ AR QL

Water Consumption (m’)
KR Gk

% REBREERT AN 2015/16 2014/15 2013/14 2009/10
B EERPINE T EBE — FE S R seline
B TBRALENE  BIIA —
ARTEDH  BETHEEH
Y TAERIE o

BEE KRR EEM
STEBRTERAS BB
REEEE R « MRS AARN
SORE NS E HB AT o 3
B0 BT O R AR
BRI T SRR 5
AIBEERAMERET HH >
+—REHZ M

HONG KONG OPERATIONS
R e
From municipal source

U # K & A

1,829,927 1,730,404 1,748,890

BEIJING CLUBHOUSE
L&

From municipal source

U # B & A
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DRIVING

GREEN, IMPROVING

AIR QUALITY

Blit B % 14 7

Roadside pollution and air quality has
long been an issue in Hong Kong.

To help the city tackle the problem,

the Club is committed to phasing out
diesel generators and upgrading its
transport fleet where feasible to new,
low-emission vehicles. Currently electric
or hybrid cars account for 19% of the
passenger fleet, and the target is to
increase this to 25% by 2018/19. A new,
user-friendly online booking system is
also helping to optimise the efficient

use of pool transport between the

B EERE R

Club’s offices buildings, retail outlets,
racecourses and clubhouse properties.
Meanwhile, as the Club extends
its presence in Mainland China, with
operations in Beijing, Guangzhou,
Conghua and Shenzhen, a new
video-conferencing system has been
commissioned to facilitate multi-site
collaboration. Its infrastructure now
covers 50 locations and is being
extended to mobile devices and
personal computers. In the past year, it
had been used for over 10,000 meetings

Fuel Consumption (Litres)
BB & (a7

RAMR  BEERFBRRER
BRXEHEREEBHIMEE -
RTRAXRBEREEZ  FE22
DO REBRIASHBRER - WA
AITIER T AR R HTER -
BAl > ESEBERESH HAEMNL
BERAEBRNESZTN B
BRI-O—N/—IEFE#KE
BpliREEEs22=1Th - 5§

2015/16
5

HONG KONG OPERATIONS
TUEEH
Diesel L&l
Petrol ¥l
LPG A& 6,019
Biodiesel (B5) B54: 448

148,830
76,762

218,016

143,025
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IRETZHNES  XEFE
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and point-to-point calls, or in other
words, about three video connections

in each office hour. Besides saving

the transport costs and fuel emissions
associated with face-to-face meetings,
the system is strengthening staff
interaction and helping the Club achieve
productivity improvements.

2014/15 2013/14 2009/10

AR AR Baseline

149,382 420,343
80,229 83,073 77,833
(WA 10,564 11,685

221,670 316,620 -
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MANAGING
WASTE

JiE W) i B

B I S M

While the Club has been taking active
steps for a number of years to reduce,

term plan for waste management
and reduction. Key to the planning
process is linking efforts for improving

to support the Food Wise Hong Kong
Campaign. The food waste collected is
reuse and recycle, it is constantly being converted into fish food pellets.
looking to do more in support of Hong
Kong’s waste reduction targets.
Following an operation-wide waste
audit, the Club undertook to review

work practices, propose reduction

both operational and environmental
performance.

The review found some “quick
wins”. For example, food waste
collection bins are now placed in each
of the Club’s Eat@OMP staff restaurants

This builds on a similar measure already
in place at the Club’s three Hong Kong
clubhouses and two racecourses, where
some 900 tonnes of non-reusable food
waste is recycled.

measures and draw up its first longer-

Source Separation, Donations and Recycling
R B T~ T8 R el

2015/16| 2014/15 2013/14
FE EBE AEBE

2009/10
Baseline

LR
HONG KONG OPERATIONS
BT
DONATIONS, FOOD &4 (kg7
RECYCLING [l#

Food waste ik (kgAJT)

Paper BE4% (kgAT)

Glass bottles B4 (kg/AT)

Plastic ¥/ (kg/A FT)

Metal 48 /i (kg2A)T)

Used cooking oil g &Ml (litresZy F})

e-waste TE T BE4 (unitsff)

18,584 17,703 10,615
917,071
550,508
98,280
14,443
3,325
13,828

13,707

704,123
610,120
100,360
21,736
1,910
11,447
6,557

696,873 -
444,339 385,967
96,073 21,059
26,526 4,367
3,767 857
11,259 -
3,894 5,137

Retail branches encourage customers
to recycle betting slips and other
paper waste.
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Material Purchased ¥}z &

HONG KONG OPERATIONS
T

COPY PAPER - Recycled or FSC paper (boxes)

TTENAR — FHE ARSI FSCAR (£)

DISPOSABLE PLASTIC CUTLERY (pcs)

IsEB R (1)

FOOD CONTAINERS - degradable (pcs)

BE — WO ()

FOOD CONTAINERS - others (pcs)
BRE — HAb ()

PAPER HAND TOWELS (boxes)
HFEK (&)

TOILET PAPER (boxes)
JAIAR (&)

B SE8NARAN
HNERBETRREREHSEE
SEAEHE > MERKAER
BEREYLH -

SETHEEIILRE T
BEY EEMESRETHES
T SFHRITSREHYN
— T ARBEEEFRERHEIER
REA  BYCERZEM - Ut
b B ROR YA B i B 3%
RO ) R B SR AL B — AT AR AR
BATEBNEN  UXFE
HE -

2015/16
FE

6,605
1,200,000
2,200,000

330,000
12,446

7,426

Meanwhile surplus food still fit for
consumption is donated to charitable
organisations such as Food Angel and
St. James’ Settlement, while waste
cooking oils are collected for recycling
into biodiesel fuel.

The Club also continues to seek
out opportunities to recycle its electronic
waste. Used equipment is donated to
the Caritas Computer Workshop, with
around 1,600 customer betting terminals
being sent for recycling this year, with
nearly 90% of the parts being recovered.
Meanwhile, 60 re-conditioned computers
were donated by the Club’s Shenzhen
Technology Centre to a school in North-

East China to support e-learning.

2014/15 2013/14
R G

9,131 8,435
550,000 570,000
1,640,580 2,453,000
1,715,000 327,000
10,307 10,035

6,944 7,437

2009/10
Baseline
SR
9,714
717,220
388,580
2,333,528
11,446

8,084

Around 1,600 obsolete
customer betting terminals
were donated for recycling
this year.

SHEHMA T A A8
BB AR A AR I R A



GREEN

ENGAGEMENT

T iP5 2 | A

Creating a greener, better Hong Kong
can only be achieved through an
all-round commitment by the whole
community. This was why, for example,
prior to the UN Climate Change
Conference in Paris, the Club sponsored
the venue for a one-day conference
entitled “Sustainability & Low-Carbon
Solutions-Hong Kong Agenda in
COP21”.

Bet Slips Reduction
100% FSC - certified
(thousand sheets)
WA ¥ 2R &

Ao AR hARRE B ZE G (FSC)
AR I BR R AR (T5R)
2015/16FE

499,016

2014/15 2013/14 2009/10
R AR Baseline

HeARAE Y
523,354 563,305 = 647,294

The Club believes strongly in the
importance of establishing productive
green partnerships with different
stakeholders. We work alongside
numerous NGOs and environmental
groups to help spread green messages
to our customers, staff and other
residents citywide. The following are
just a few examples.

Encouraging customers to
“think green”

Coinciding with Earth Day in April, the
Club’s retail branches staged an OCBB
Green Day to promote green practices
to customers with support from
Greeners Action and the Government’s
Environmental Protection Department.
This was the third year the Club
participated, with the initiative being
extended to all 102 branches across the
city. A month earlier, all branches and
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H-—EZ-_BEMIEE - E=
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the Club’s office buildings supported
WWEF-HK’s Earth Hour by switching

off all but essential lighting for a one-
hour period. And in February, more

than 60 OCBBs joined the annual Red
Packet Recycling and Reuse Campaign,
distributing one million recycled lai see
packets to customers during Lunar New
Year — the highest of any participant — as
well as collecting just over 2,000 kg of
used packets for use next year.

e
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Glass Bottle
Recycling (kg)
ELVEE: VNG

2015/165E

98,280

2014/15 2013/14 2009/10
AR AR Baseline

I

100,360 96,073 21,059

Taking the lead in

recycling glass bottles

Set up in 2010 with a donation

from the Club’s Charities Trust, the
Jockey Club Hong Chi Glass Bottle
Recycling Programme has pioneered
the reprocessing of used glass bottles
in Hong Kong. Besides converting

the bottles into useful “eco-bricks”, it
provides much-valued employment for
the intellectually disabled. The Club’s
racecourse and clubhouse catering
outlets are among the project’s largest
users, collecting about 100 tonnes of
bottles for recycling in 2015/16.

Green Action

The active engagement of our 22,000
employees is critical to the success of
the Club’s green initiatives. Each year,
the Club organises a Green Action
programme for staff to demonstrate,
their support for environmental
protection and the Club’s green
initiatives.

In 2015/16, the programme
included a boat trip to study marine
conservation issues, a walk in Mai Po
Nature Reserve, a charity shopping cart
race to promote plastic bottle recycling,
and an Eco-Ranger Orienteering

B0 R [ AT 38 5 5

ZO-OFmMin  FEBERET
EcEPNEEESIREL
E s8] - FAIEBEWER
BRREEERBESRRE
M5 WREEALTERERER
MEERE - FEREANE
RRBFEBXEEE - R=
O—&/—REFEWEEBBLY
—BAMNREEETRERE
> REE&RANZEEZ -

[ &k Rom) | 5

KME-—B-THEINEERA
ZHEEERYEELEL
HER - SSTFREM [EERK

BlEH BEMROEIEEER
RAE - SEtMPZEEEER
BREETE o
R=ZO—F=/—~EE - 5
HEBTEIRMEE  THE
ERBRE ) BSKBEARE
& ; ZEH By ERE R BEZE
=B SEBENEEREEBA U
& 2 Bi 4 RER T 8 Eco-Ranger
FHNEME - B8 E TERERD
HLAEMNER FEEIEA
Redress #H 4 (9 [ 7E 48 B 1= 7 4
B By - FRKEE
URASHESEEMRN [0
DERITE ] WEBMMERE
HYEFENRE -



Competition to raise awareness of
protecting country parks. Staff donated
used clothing, bags and accessories
for the Keep Caring Clothing Drive
organised by Redress, and collected
educational materials and equipment
for the Sharing for a Cause Campaign
run by Kids4Kids to help needy local
schoolchildren.

HKJC Forest

sprouts green benefits
Afforestation has been identified as
one of the major global steps needed
to combat climate change. China alone
has committed to increasing its forest
stock by about 4.5 billion m® by 2030.
The HKJC Forest in Longchuan County,
Guangdong, is realising many other
benefits as well. Besides safeguarding
the source of much of Hong Kong’s
fresh water, improving the area’s eco-
habitat and assisting local farmers,

it has become a powerful builder of
“family bonds” between the Club’s
Hong Kong staff and its growing number
of satellite employees in Guangzhou,
Conghua and Shenzhen.

A o R T g ME AR B AR R

BEMEREINE A

The project was made possible by
a Club donation of RMB8.7 million to
the China Green Carbon Foundation.
To date, over 530,000 new trees have
been planted around the source of the
Dongjiang (East River), covering an
area of nearly 400 hectares. The Club
will accumulate about 209,000 tonnes
of carbon credits from the newly-
afforested areas over the next 20 years.

To share its research findings
and explore the way forward for
afforestation, the Club funded a
Dongjiang River Source Afforestation
and Sustainable Forest Management
Forum in October 2015. It brought

together over 120 delegates from public

organisations, academic and research

G-
EHEMRE2REARERIE
BIAEHNEETH 22— - ER
FEIMAFERN ZO=OF AT N
MO+ AR RFAMERS -
FEEEREAR/IIBELHNTE
BEEREM | HATFRTH
i o BRT RETBIKAK
B NEEERRENGEE
hERZ  HEBRAFEEE
BT UREEM - AFRY
B&EEmMWE TEBAARR  BE
SEAAREEZEREL
FEadEEEREES
ERFN\BETBTARE - U
REFZEARR 2S5 FEE
RTREAHEERBE+=8

B FFFARR =+ FABBIRE
TEBO-TBAT AN -
ROZEMERR  BER
RIBHREHED - FER=0
—hF+ BEFTFEME
HMASELE | H18 - WIBE
BEB-—B-tERENBRE
BRNEE - AR R BHTHAR
RAREBRESARUEE - #@
RERMELERASRBRENE
2 URASERMEEN
FE-
EEEMENNEIEES
SHEM | WERER  ETH
wiER2E - MA - FEAEST
ZERBEBRAMLTEMEE
BT —E2M7TEMES -

OPERATIONS REVIEW ENVIRONMENT

We work alongside
numerous NGOs

and environmental
groups to help spread
green messages 1o
our customers, staff
and other residents
citywide.

institutions, green groups and the
business sector in Mainland China and
Hong Kong to discuss the important
role of forests in ecological development
and the need for sustainable forest
management.

The Club’s regular tree-planting
visits to the site have proved highly
popular, with more than 60 staff from
different Hong Kong and Mainland
locations joining this initiative in April.
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DONATIONS

RUST

The Hong Kong Jockey Club has donated an average of over HK$2.1 billion a A N EVV

year to the community over the past decade by way of its own major initiatives

and donations, supporting the projects of well over 140 charitable groups and RECORD
organisations each year. This support covers ten areas of need: arts, culture &

heritage; education & training; elderly services; emergency & poverty relief; ﬁU%ﬁ

environmental protection; family services; medical & health; rehabilitation services;

sports & recreation; and youth development, which are broadly grouped into 8 9
four major areas, namely Community Services, Education and Training, Medical

and Health, and Sports, Recreation and Culture. In 2015/16, the total approved

charitable donations were over HK$3.9 billion. These approved donations will

Charitable Donations

R U & % K

benefit 215 charitable and community projects, as detailed on pages 137 to 148.

The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust Charitable and Community Donations (HK$M)
HHERIEEFTRENESZ AR (AHET)
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CHARITIES TRUST DONATIONS

COMMUNITY SERVICES #-& %5

SE(TET)
Amount
WA/ R Organisation / Purpose (HK$°000)
HFHBERGAS GRS 5 Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust Initiatives
AT —IH A W DUAE AR N B IS AR AR B B w8 » B A% 8 To carry out a four-year Trust-initiated project to promote computational thinking in 216,000
A /N ER e A A B A 1 R upper primary schools through coding education
B —EHBA SRS EE LM =Nt EREE ST To fund a three-year Trust-initiated Community e-Health Care Project to promote 138,250
TR B > DL R i e R A BEAE ) self-management of health among older people
HeAT— I 2 5 s e 4 1 0 =4 i BRI » L To carry out a three-year Trust-initiated pilot project to provide holistic support for 87,610
R SRR AR PR elderly mental health
$HBY 201648 [ 2B L) v A ) I Bt 28 5 v 1L To support the Philanthropy for Better Cities Forum in 2016 4,930
EROESRYESE Jockey Club Emergency Relief Fund
RERSEYT : To provide assistance to:
PR 55 2 488 S Ak A SR 0 1 i T A o R kP -+ K BE 12 famiilies who faced financial hardship due to the sudden death of their main 577
breadwinner
PRk S5 B A 19 4R S5 T A2 S5 R A S IR 5K i Six families who fell victim to fires or other natural disasters 171
TERR G b AR T L 1 )\ A SR B A3 A\t Eight families and individuals with special financial needs 306
PR 5% 8 480 05 S MR AE AR ~ T sk b A b A4 8k 2 5% Two families who faced financial hardship due to their main breadwinner dying in or 97
B T TR S A58 0P RD 8f A1F 2K JiE being affected by traffic, construction or other accidents
ERiLip Caritas - Hong Kong 99,240
THB RN B LS H G A XL KB . To fund the setting up of a Resource and Support Centre for Carers in Tseung
AR Kwan O and its operation for five years
Bl ORE The Chinese University of Hong Kong 48,500
B EERE AN R > A= To fund the promotion of school-based talent development and gifted education in
Hong Kong for three years
1= R e Yan Chai Hospital 41,130
FH Bl A 7 25 0 A i B e 2 B e B 2 E e fT % To fund an improvement project for its Yan Chai Hospital Jockey Club Care and
T Attention Home at Tsuen Wan
W E Caritas - Hong Kong 35,400
T Bl W) 9 4 ke T35 I W) 9B S N4 AT RIS TR > W& To fund the renovation of the Caritas Lok Kin Workshop and Caritas Lok Wo Hostel,
AT — TR ST i A Rt N L Ak st ) > 2 B =42 and to carry out a pilot project to provide enhanced support for older people with
intellectual disabilities for three years
B aM EEEINE RS Jockey Club Cyber Youth Outreach Service 27,960
BB AW/ NERE S G FWWE RE W EmE#HIT—  To fund a three-year project for The Boys’ and Girls’ Clubs Association of Hong
YE AW =AM A LA ST E > A @R L E RS % Kong, Caritas — Hong Kong and The Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups to
A B T D 4E > WBR R LB RE A AR i T/EHE develop Information and Communications Technology (ICT) to engage youth at risk
2> A0 17 1 TR P 7 A 5 A4 IR S with the view to generating an evidence-based practice model to promote ICT in
mainstream youth services
HEg The Society for the Promotion of Hospice Care 22,980
T8 )y 7% 59 4N o T 3 P AT A BRUIR A wH il > A I =4E To fund a palliative care service programme for the underprivileged for three years
RS R Home Affairs Bureau 22,300
FHBI2016/17 4 B H 44 8 RS ) To fund the 2016/17 Youth Programme
INEREER SRR AT Bo Charity Foundation Limited 18,710
BB BRI R SRR HE WA E S E > M To fund the Intergenerational Experience and Food Assistance Programme for the
A Elderly for two years
syl kg City University of Hong Kong 15,890
T [F R B B Al i e A 2 AL AT B & & A B To fund the Enhancing Youth Social Innovation and Empathy through Immersive
O FE > Al =4 Visualisation programme for three years
Fog3 NI The Hong Kong Polytechnic University 15,480
THBh I AR B R B - Al =4 To fund the Intergenerational Learning Experience Programme for 3% years
A TR A St James’ Settlement 14,870
B ILEE R R AL S R > A=A To fund the Community Support Programme for Elderly in Kowloon East Project for

three years

:

B> B 2 o o
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SH(FHET)

Amount
HAE/ Rk Organisation / Purpose (HK$°000)
BIAS [ 1 VA B2 W) Make a Difference Institute Limited 13,580
R GRA R F AR EEE - HY=4 To fund the Jockey Club Make a Difference Social Lab for three years
T v 20 17 456 A o €7 A BR 2 ) Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Welfare Council Limited 13,330
BB % & o — B AR R E A e b0 > LK —  To fund the setting up of a new centre for family enhancement and a support
THR R T B G B R R > B =4E programme for children with disabilities for three years
WA =B Tung Wah Group of Hospitals 12,490
16 Bl 725 3% 05 A 28405 55 B 4 A OSSR Ak S 4% 5H#) > &8 To fund the Intergenerational Art Programme for Dementia Care for three years
=4
e b SAHK 12,190
T B % 6 Se s Re R T A AR To fund the renovation of its Chai Wan Sheltered Workshop
HERCORE The Chinese University of Hong Kong 11,290
18 Bl —IE ks R Y13 SRR 3 T s ik [ R R T L # > % To fund a community primary care programme for older people with chronic
W =4¢ conditions for three years
s ok B The Chinese University of Hong Kong 10,040
16 Bl 28 55 & 5 ROSAR TH B R da b o iEfT —XE AR #F W To fund the Jockey Club Centre for Osteoporosis Care and Control to implement a
e TE 7 ) M P > A =4E Fall and Fracture Prevention Programme for older people for three years
B &I I o &1 Senior Citizen Home Safety Association 9,970
HB—IH B R RS WERE R EE H - THEHE > B To fund a capacity building programme on home care services for older people for
=X three years
s W ton ot €7 Hong Kong Blind Union 9,680
IH B TR 5B ) | A B R R A R X 48 - & To fund the “E-Learning for All” project to support students with visual impairments
W =4 and print disability for three more years
T D R A & e IR O Aberdeen Kaifong Welfare Association Social Service Centre 9,380
B —JE Akl AR IL i ET ) > AU =4 To fund a community intergenerational engagement project for three years
A B2 5] Social Career Limited 9,370
TE B PR R AR — R T LT & > #UMEEAW  To fund the development and operations of an online volunteer matching platform
28 TR > R VIR 4R for two years, under an initiative to promote volunteerism in Hong Kong
TR E The Hong Kong Society for Rehabilitation 8,850
e E = S > W AW HZ & E  To fund the replacement of 13 wheelchair accessible vehicles for its accessible hire
Pt 5 v i L IR s car service for wheelchair users and older people
PN Lingnan University 8,800
18 B B OKB AR B o0 HEAT — JE S AR B R i FEHERE To fund its Asia Pacific Institute of Ageing Studies to implement an intergenerational
Al > R =4 communication and health promotion programme for three years
WA A St James’ Settlement 8,390
B2 % R I IR AL s i 3 % L FRUEE HEAT I S i BE AR To extend the brain health outreach support programme for people with dementia
ZEEHE > AR =4E and their carers for another three years
i Caritas - Hong Kong 8,170
THBY [ Az AR | A W S0 S IR A > R =4R To fund the “Life Coaching” Community-based Family Support Network for three

years

A P RS New Life Psychiatric Rehabilitation Association 8,120
5 B S b SR T R0 S A A AR B Il 8 > To fund a social integration and family-based support programme for persons with
3= mental illness for three years
A=ty AR A R 2 W] Suicide Prevention Services Limited 7,350
BB T4 AR BTG E > B=4 To fund the “Life with You” Volunteer Network for three years
Bk R i KA PR A W) Principal Chan Free Tutorial World Limited 6,710
BB [AH#E TEE] » LYmaE To fund the “Neo-Education Lab” for two years
BB B R Christian Family Service Centre 6,650
THBY R B IR B A BB REE sk g R/ To fund the setting up of a social service team and a one-off community support
AR > NEAHRAT— YR I Ak i S 4w project at the Anderson Road Public Housing Development in Kwun Tong
WIE = Tung Wah Group of Hospitals 6,610

TH ) % 7 LA 5 Bk T B SRR T HE AT R [ 5K IR s st
# > BHI=4

To fund the Parents as Coaches project for parents with special needs children for
three years



CHARITIES TRUST DONATIONS

SE(TET)
Amount
HAE/ Rk Organisation / Purpose (HK$°000)
HEAHEE Hong Kong Science and Technology Parks Corporation 6,570
1) [ 2B ik AR B R B4R AI R B wt® ) > =4  To fund the Jockey Club Social-Tech Incubation and Youth Entrepreneurship
Programme for three years
Fogi T opiliei Aoy The Hong Kong Council of Social Service 6,470
BB —TE R =40 [ 50 3 AR L B0 ek 53 To fund a three-year Jockey Club Child-focused Co-parenting Project
BEGEAE Jockey Club Centre for Positive Ageing 6,110
SR BY—TEA BR 2SN R B E 1 Wl SRR > R =42 To fund a dementia training programme for three years
fEZz % Harmony House Limited 5,990
B B RER N B2 FEE R [ BAREE | 51# > To fund Project HE — Healing and Empowerment, a support project for male victims
Tl =4F of domestic violence, for three years
s s A sk B A The Samaritan Befrienders Hong Kong 5,480
TR [ | IR > Rl =4 To fund the “Life-Connect” Resources Network for three years
T v 155 e Ak i A8 45 A B 2 W) Hong Kong Network for the Promotion of Inclusive Society Limited 5,440
B TE] R — BERE BB RE XS - &  To fund Project Generation Next for Children of Parents with Disabilities for three
=4 years
B BUR B IR Hong Kong Christian Service 5,250
BB R EEE A BB REE T - EAEHL%  To fund a community network development project at the Anderson Road Public
B Housing Development in Kwun Tong
EoaiLlip Caritas - Hong Kong 4,950
B SRR RS — B R4 5 To fund the Caritas Jockey Club Project Cedar — Social & Emotional Support
) > ZI=4E Service for Men for three years
REHMR AT VolTra Limited 4,860
TR B HUERAS 75 42 SRS B Bt > e AR To fund the Global Village Youth Ambassador Exchange Programme for two years
FlE P oe Hong Kong Federation of Women’s Centres 4,720
B ABM SN A ELT : EEIXRBEMEEZE S To fund a three-year New Opportunities for Women project to create
B BRI LA A e self-employment opportunities for women with low incomes
BN GEHERA PO Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Lady MacLehose Centre 4,400
BB TR GEEE | > 205 R m s 5 e R gbak I X #28 k. To fund the Sunshine Project, a community support service for residents of
B> R =4 sub-divided flats in old tenements for three years
T R R A R AW Hong Kong Commercial Radio Broadcasting Co. Ltd 4,000
F IR B BEREHE ) — i A R EEEE > AF"/E—H  To launch a series of radio and promotion programmes for non-governmental
RIUEGRETEB LSRR/ [FgfF oAl i organisations, including the production and broadcasting of 104 one-hour radio
programmes “The Way We Are” on Commercial Radio

BEAGENE Jockey Club Centre for Positive Ageing 3,930
BB TS 238 2 & » 1k THSBh 2 3% ] B IE /L iEB % To fund Dementia Friends Hong Kong, an extension of the Dementia Concern
wh A > R I A Campaign, for two years
PR Fu Hong Society 3,580
B [FEEEEA | B — EsHE > A=4F To fund the Best Buddies Hong Kong — an Enhanced Model project for three years
L BEEESAMA A Wu Zhi Qiao (Bridge to China) Charitable Foundation Limited 3,360
THBYSCAL K BN 22 E 5l > R AR To fund the Cultural Sustainability and Service Learning Programme for 2% years
Ul I A PR 2 W) Hong Kong Women Development Association Limited 3,070
35 B % 6 A A T B 00 20 400 A0 Ml I HE 4T T A R4 3% /edL I | To fund the Healthy Living project in North District and its nearby rural areas for
< S Ak o i AR AE T ) > A U =4 three years
EFTAERAH Wedo Global Limited 2,890
e R o R T To fund the Building an Integrated Society Programme for two years
R 7K 128 e Wi A PR 2 ] Tin Shui Wai Women Association Limited 2,810
FH B % ks TR B I L AT B N B I wE ) > A3 To fund a capacity building programme for women in elderly care in Tin Shui Wai
=X for three years
i THIRAT Hans Andersen Club Limited 2,160
THBY R AT TR To fund the renovation of its Tai O Centre
WHMEER T Shatin Rural Committee 2,000

By % T R e TR T AR A A A3 2

To fund part of the building and fitting-out costs of its new building

:
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Amount

#ig/ g Organisation / Purpose (HK$°000)
Good Lab Foundation Limited Good Lab Foundation Limited 1,640
BB AT E A 2016 To fund the implementation of the Ednovation Festival 2016
Teach for Hong Kong Foundation Limited Teach for Hong Kong Foundation Limited 1,390
BB HFEAF AN H RS R maE To fund the Edcubator Programme to incubate school-based education innovation

initiatives for two years
iR RUES) A PR A A Hong Kong Thanks-Giving Movement Limited 1,240
FH B IL By 0 Ak [T 5 DA R 0 5 fR To fund the Body-mind-spirit Community Programme to promote mental wellness
e JR A Adventure-Ship Limited 1,190
BB S G E FATHE > S —4E To fund the Jockey Club Adventure Star Project for 1%z years
s i Ze & 4R The Hong Kong Air Cadet Corps 855
BB S AR T B B AR 2 R B 22 22 B A2 st #) To fund awards for 60 underprivileged young people to participate in the

International Air Cadet Exchange Programme over three years
PR R A Y T A PR ) Concern for Grassroots’ Livelihood Alliance Limited 773
15 Bl — 35 phy R T A B s oK B v R R T R 0 B BB 22 To fund a project empowering grassroots residents to lead an experiential learning
Bt > S I programme for secondary school students in Tin Shui Wai for two years
BB B A R G IRE Evangelical Lutheran Church Social Service - Hong Kong 741
TRBY IV R H AR O R AL SN To fund the replacement of a 14-seater private light bus for its Tuen Mun West Day

Care Centre for the Elderly
THREBEZETESR-O—X/ —tEENTEESSHLEEMERR
The following agencies receive The Hong Kong Jockey Club Community Project Grant from the Trust for 2016/17
S R GE o & SAHK 4,145
H B HAR R R A o 15 55 To fund its Comprehensive Rehabilitation Seating Service
FEF G The Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups 4,086
THBY 4R T4 To fund its Youth Volunteer Network
WA RS St James’ Settlement 3,880
I [BOEFAT | st Edn st #l To fund its Employment and Training Programme for Vulnerable Groups and

Youngsters
BB e Mother’s Choice Limited 3,237
18 B R AME 2 3 4% v O IR To fund its Pregnant Girls Services — Support Centre Services
Hil/DEEE The Boys’ and Girls’ Clubs Association of Hong Kong 3,000
BB RO E — 205 L5 B R A S To fund its “Open the Heart” Holistic Child-Focused Counselling Project
T U O 000 WA il 2 The Hong Kong Catholic Marriage Advisory Council 3,000
8 Bl L L ) it i To fund its Marriage Mediation Counselling Service Project
pogiiu 2 iAo Hong Kong Playground Association 2,972
TR [ IR B | 51l To fund its Unusual Academy
ERe Hong Chi Association 2,763
B ES ik To fund its Supported-Employment Projects for People with Intellectual Disabilities
WA =B Tung Wah Group of Hospitals 2,679
8 B L - L B i To fund its Parent-Child Interaction Therapy Service
Bt The Salvation Army 2,387
BB [ BR - KB | FKEXRA% To fund its Family-Friendly Community-Based Project
fiz % Harmony House Limited 2,331
FRBYIL RS2 M ar ] 5t To fund its Moving Forward Against Domestic Violence Project
I JE A Adventure-Ship Limited 2,293
BBy LR A BCE T To fund its Nautical Adventure Life Education Project
7 8 R R 2l 1 Arts with the Disabled Association Hong Kong 2,292
6 Bl b il 2l 5 ) To fund its Inclusive Arts Project



CHARITIES TRUST DONATIONS

SE(TET)
Amount
HAE/ Rk Organisation / Purpose (HK$°000)
s AR Hong Kong Sea Cadet Corps 2,114
8 Bl FAZ O 9l R0 ) To fund its Core Training Programmes for Cadet Members and Volunteer Leaders
Az iy B TR W) Suicide Prevention Services Limited 2,112
B [ A 4T — MR R IREs To fund its Outreaching Befriending Service for Suicidal Elderly
HFBATFE Hong Kong Red Cross 1,987
S Bl JEC ) e A ok S el B Ak L S k) To fund its Uniformed Group Leaders & Trainers Development Project
TWEE NS e The Hong Kong Society for the Blind 1,897
TH B HAR e 5 S R B O To fund its Parents Resource Centre for Visually-Impaired Children
DIXE AN B SR Ebenezer School and Home for the Visually Impaired 1,863
TH B H AR e 4 e 0 S 4 IS To fund its Early Intervention Programme for Visually-Impaired Children
T BB BUR TS 12 Hong Kong Christian Service 1,847
THBYH: [R R A 4% | 5 To fund its Integrated Service Centre for Local South Asians
HWEREAGEMN G The Hong Kong Society for the Aged 1,680
IR B — KRR F S # To fund its Elder-Friendly Employment Practice
FAh b BE IR0 A PR A W) The Conservancy Association Centre for Heritage Limited 1,528
TH B HAL [ ScAb i e ) To fund its Community Cultural Heritage Plus project
Toh €1 Heep Hong Society 1,505
FE B L8 e I i 22 B AR A Sl 1% M s To fund its Outside School Support for Students with Special Education Needs and
their Families

BB BRI Evangelical Lutheran Church Social Service - Hong Kong 1,488
H B S5 B 1A To fund its Kwai Chung Care Network
B E R R The Parents’ Association of Pre-School Handicapped Children 1,470
THBDI [ - IR - B BLR ] ST To fund its HOPE — Parents’ Networking Project
Y LIEERR Agency for Volunteer Service 1,459
THBY HSF & T s# To fund its Volunteer Talent Bank Project
By TREATS 1,450
BB I 5 ¥ K A A L AR L To fund its Social Inclusion Project for Children and Youth in Hong Kong
MK The Friends of Scouting 1,405
BN [ 1 IR — FRBre 67 4R il 8t ) To fund its Know the Future — Non-engaged Youth Counselling Scheme
TR BREEE TN E Association for Engineering and Medical Volunteer Services 1,390
1 By 5 R ] A 8 A4 ol To fund its Computer Rehabilitation Resource Station
His L HEAHEG The Hong Kong Girl Guides Association 1,360
THBY I [T A R RE | B At @hst 3 To fund its Intergenerational Citizenship Project
BV e ok LU 7 Hong Kong Special Olympics 1,348
1R Bl e R BRI ) To fund its Golf Development Project
TR ERE RS E The Outward Bound Trust of Hong Kong Limited 1,277
18 B e v A T To fund its Second Chance Project
s o g A fih 61 A FR 23 W) Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Welfare Council Limited 1,241
BEH THES ] REEMEE To fund its Positive Life Elderly Suicide Prevention Project
2 6 5 I A Ak [ O S.K.H. Holy Carpenter Church Community Centre 1,232
$E B LA I 4 4w To fund its Human Re-engineering Project for Building a Better Community
HERERNE Hong Kong Family Welfare Society 1,219
THBh H S Lo AT R To fund its Bridge to Competence Project
RBREEGE Haven of Hope Christian Service 1,212

H 0l At g8 24 % B B A A B k)

To fund its Healthy Living in a Caring Community project

:
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Amount

HAE/ Rk Organisation / Purpose (HK$°000)
B 1k ERy S R A ] Against Child Abuse Limited 1,172
T A2 EhE | KRR W] To fund its Healthy Start Home Visiting Project
TG ) 7 The Comfort Care Concern Group 1,161
THBh H AT 42 Jr W i To fund its Comfort Care and Support for the Bereaved project
s oy g4 A Tk 67 A FR 2 W) Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Welfare Council Limited 1,133
Bl s ) To fund its project ARISE Il
W% Caritas - Hong Kong 1,079
FHBYH THAE o | 5H8 2 B ) AR SOl % BEiE  To fund its Professional Support Services for Children with Attention Deficit and
B R REH Hyperactivity Disorders and their Families
Pt Fu Hong Society 1,075
B H AR HE S To fund its Casa Famiglia — small group home project
BB BRSO Christian Family Service Centre 1,032
THBY LB R0 K B To fund its Youngsters in Motion Project
Eis I L NS The Samaritan Befrienders Hong Kong 1,016
BB Ik A BB E To fund its Suicide Prevention Education Project
TR E e Hong Kong Society for the Protection of Children 893
BB TR ~ Be - B 5l EE SRl (110) To fund its Whole Learning Project (Phase Ill)
BREAETHRAF Hans Andersen Club Limited 880
THBY I [ AT AE IR | 5t To fund its Sunshine Community in Tai O
T v o P L 6 IR 5 AL International Social Service (Hong Kong Branch) 869
BB [VEILIRAT ) — S A R g st il To fund its Support Project for Families with Young Kids
waE Sik Sik Yuen 854
T [y - REA VIR FHE To fund its Cherish Our Life: Enhancing Psychological Well-being of Elders project
China Coast Community Limited China Coast Community Limited 843
B Z A R BY (AiR) Z Bk & Bk To fund its Subsidy Package for Comprehensive Social Security Allowance

Recipients
S AR H A Chung Sing Benevolent Society 714
THBY I [BRE) A\ 2R | 45 B0 5t To fund its Elderly Lifelong Learning Project
ERgRNGERTEDL Jockey Club Cheung Chau Don Bosco Youth Centre 699
B 7 4 PR Al 2 ) To fund its Adventure-based Counselling Programme for Youth
T vk FB PQAR A0 ik €7 The Hong Kong Down Syndrome Association 680
THBY LAY [ 45 | HhsE — R RS BE IR M4 To fund its SHARE Project — A comprehensive support service for families of

children with Down Syndrome
Jili 5 B . B €1 Pneumoconiosis Mutual Aid Association 645
1 Bl i o 3 Ak o A5 R IR To fund its Community Rehabilitation Service for Pneumoconiosis Patients and

Families
HFHREBRET The Family Planning Association of Hong Kong 617
FHBY AL R E To fund its Community Level Sex Education Programme
vl 25 16 B €1 Street Sleepers’ Shelter Society Trustees Incorporated 380
By H A FR 1 H 2 K To fund its Wan Chai Homeless People Shelter

ANEE (Rl e s ) 1,176,131

Sub-total (Community Services)




CHARITIES TRUST DONATIONS

EDUCATION AND TRAINING #BE x5

SE(TET)
Amount
WA/ R Organisation / Purpose (HK$°000)
HFHBERGAS GRS 5 Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust Initiatives
AT —IH S GRS L E AW R4S - D4R To carry out a five-year Trust-initiated project to enhance the Chinese proficiency 237,000
il 7 A b &0 A ] ¥ 2 SRR S R A Y vh SRS > A FE of ethnic minority students studying in local kindergartens for better transition into
NER 3 AN B Bl AL primary education and early integration
HEATHL N e Ak B NG DL Bh TS p To carry out a fellowship programme for teachers and social workers to promote 68,800
innovation
HEH R Hong Kong Shue Yan University 23,480
FH B R B A3 22 I e A A b0 R B 0 DA 4T AL To fund the acquisition of equipment for its new Multimedia Production Centre and
T s st ) > A = 4R the launch of a community-building project for three years
e Fds) Vocational Training Council 19,440
5 By 5 K5 oy 7R 0 B P 5 5 W 5 b 5 3 ) ¢k To fund the upgrading of facilities at the Jockey Club Heavy Vehicle Emissions
TR =AM s Testing and Research Centre and implementation of an educational programme for
three years
FR PN The University of Hong Kong 9,620
8 Bl 22 30 =4 1 R 3 ALl B R To fund a three-year Nurturing Caring Leaders Service-Learning Programme
HE KRR BB REBER A GRS — /M2 EDiversity Limited and Mission Convenant Church Holm Glad No. 2 Primary 8,950
THBIHEAT [ « A - A RACE S > i =42 School
To fund the launch of the “Learning by Doing” Academy project for three years
PN Lingnan University 7,990
THB TR « IR « DFE @A ] 5hl - R =48 To fund “WE CARE, so WE SERVE and WE LEARN@Tuen Mun”, a service-learning
programme for three years
ARG R E RS Life Education Activity Programme 5,360
5 Bl O e T A T B B o DA KA BUA B i Ec2# To fund the replacement of two new mobile classrooms and retrofit existing
Bt classrooms with new teaching technologies
TR RAFT R Hong Kong Parent Education Association 3,490
HB [OBRE - B RERE | FEHEHMA# > %  To fund the “Family Embrace Life Journey” Parent Education Programme for three
W =4 years
BEE AL e British Council 3,130
16 Bl 2 240G e i g E o DLMERE AR SERE S - & To fund the Curriculum Resources in English Arts and Teacher Enrichment
=4 Programme to promote creative English learning for three years
[ 5% SR T ) 7 v Junior Achievement Hong Kong 2,810
BB 2 = /NR A SRR E EH ) To fund a three-year primary-level entrepreneurship education programme “JA Be
My Own Boss”
o 4 A PR 2 W Kids4kids Limited 1,820
B A=A TS AR RG] » BERBEH K To fund the Buddy Reading Programme, which aims at instilling a love of reading
JE G 9 ) B A 9 ST Y BUBR DL Rk 35 b AP 3E B &5 Y English books and improving the competency in using English language in children
=] from underprivileged backgrounds, for three years
HWINREEESE The Outward Bound Trust of Hong Kong Limited 1,790
T B % & WO I SR B i A To fund the enhancement of its training facilities and safety equipment
s BB BUR T IR Hong Kong Christian Service 1,640
TH B A TS P B 15 55 SR AR UL M To fund facilities enhancement at its Pui Oi School in Tuen Mun
AT H 5 B A R W) Fair Trade Hong Kong Foundation Limited 1,500

T AF 5 5 B A s st B > Z 0T iAE R )\l H

To fund the Fair Trade School Award Scheme for two years and eight months

:
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SH(FHET)

Amount
HAE/ Rk Organisation / Purpose (HK$°000)
THREESETEESR-O—R/—tFENBEESTSHEEMERR
The following agencies receive The Hong Kong Jockey Club Community Project Grant from the Trust for 2016/17
2R B S0 Ak 2R i A R 2 ) AFS Intercultural Exchanges Limited 1.369
FHBI I AFS [ B SO b 32 i g A A8 it st To fund the AFS Intercultural Exchanges Sending Programme
A E B E# Life Education Activity Programme 536
1H B A IR B AR To fund its Special Needs Programme
3 1o DY 155 8 N Bk Direction Association for the Handicapped 516
BB T A A2~ AR2RFLCA] ] 5 To fund its Hopeful Life Project
ANt (BB B sl 399,241
Sub-total (Education and Training)
s
MEDICAL AND HEALTH &#&&4
SR (FET)
Amount
#is/ g Organisation / Purpose (HK$’000)
HRBA(FE)EET World Wide Fund for Nature Hong Kong 200,000
TR Bl K AR AR [ S 1 it AL To fund the Mai Po Nature Reserve Infrastructure Upgrade Project
TR R Hong Kong Baptist University 95,180
1 Bl 3% v S T M e AT B o WREBIH i L To fund the setting up of a Chinese Medicine Disease Prevention and Health
AR Management Centre and its operating costs for five years
BBIEES G Hong Kong Breast Cancer Foundation 79,210
FH Bl % & A8 JUHE 3% B IR b0 ML E e 64T —  To fund the setting up and furnishing of a new service centre in Kowloon, and the
T 2 ) =4 T 59 B T it 1 7 launch of a charity programme for underprivileged women for three years
BRIR e (TRRE & BEH ) Environmental Association Limited (HKSAR Chief Executive’s Community 41,710
B — JE BT v B R T D) TR A RR IR AT ¥ KLk EER  Projects List)
ah ] To fund a geopark appreciation and renewable energy water-desalination pilot
project
BB PR Hospital Authority 27,280
$R B T 4 - -EHER R A I B8 IR 1 To fund the replacement of 27 non-emergency ambulance transfer vehicles
BB B R v Christian Family Service Centre 24,770
FE Bl 3% v o0 f1h A R B A S0 BT o ) 3271 3L B To fund the transformation of its headquarters building into an accredited green
BEATBEAKHE » (€T AT A% 6 fl SR 020 building through retrofitting its existing facilities and enhancing its environmental
management capacity
RPN The University of Hong Kong 14,730
0By —JE K E VR AT R A L B =4 > i ngsk €& To fund a water sustainability project for three years to enhance community
ANt T KK IR 2 EEME > DIRABGEMEEMA Y understanding of the multiple values of water and the importance of its efficient use
V5 T B
W T 3 Carbon Reduction Project for Schools and Non-Governmental Organisations 13,680
B 7 9 v SR 2 R B M BR AR 54T B A AR HEAT IR T To support 39 schools and non-governmental organisations to upgrade facilities in
B>y = U P B e JE U AL A R B Bt DA 2k order to reduce carbon emissions — in collaboration with the CUHK Jockey Club
ek B AR Initiative Gaia
RER (TR RE L&) Po Leung Kuk (HKSAR Chief Executive’s Community Projects List) 12,750
THBY IR RR 28 1S & RS BN HEAT BRBEAR & it il To fund the green conservation project at the Po Leung Kuk Jockey Club Tai Tong
Holiday Camp
HEERSE Hong Kong Cancer Fund 7,560
$E Bl % AL FEIN R LI T IR To fund the setting up of a CancerLink Centre in Kwai Chung
FMY B v ERE B R O RS AR AW Maggie Keswick Jencks Cancer Caring Centre Foundation Limited 7,400

5 Bl A i T B 0 0 BRAGE B S BRI > A0 =48

To fund its Psychosocial Support Programme for cancer patients for three years



CHARITIES TRUST DONATIONS

SE(TET)
Amount
#ig/ g Organisation / Purpose (HK$°000)
BE Civic Exchange 4,570
TH B 201 64F 7675 ¥ 5247 B9 Walk2 1 B B €3 » DIHERE &% To fund the International Walk21 Conference on Walking and Liveable Communities
2P A T A RS B 0 s A 1 in Hong Kong in 2016 to promote walking as a driver to shape a low carbon and
liveable city
IS BB A BRI E G The Incorporated Management Committee of Ta Ku Ling Ling Ying Public 2,940
TH B AR G K R 58 - A i I A a5 K #t—  School
AR R B 4 5 56 To fund the installation of a waste water recovery system to provide a sustainable
solution for the sewage generated on its campus
TR ERYE Project Concern Hong Kong 2,520
BBy g [0 | AEFHE > R 4R To fund the Smiley Action project for two years
THMBEZERXEENR=-O—*~/ —tEENEBESSHEED IR
The following agencies receive The Hong Kong Jockey Club Community Project Grant from the Trust for 2016/17
FEB B A AT 3 Ak R M B United Christian Nethersole Community Health Service 4,090
FE B LA [ 2 Pk -l To fund its Community Geriatric Health Maintenance Programme
FHEY The Society of Rehabilitation and Crime Prevention, Hong Kong 1,908
5 Bl A it ) To fund its Project OASIS
HWREE The Society for the Aid and Rehabilitation of Drug Abusers 1,610
1 Bl G ) 4l 5 e L3R 2 il To fund its Peer Counsellor and Internship Schemes
FBRAFGEIHERA DL Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Lady MacLehose Centre 1,138
8 Bl v 3R A BN R B To fund its Chinese Herbs Employment Training and Education Programme
s T RE .0 A B2 ] Hong Kong Workers’ Health Centre Limited 384
1 Bl L[] o S Sl T S it I S AL A D i) To fund its Working Together to Enhance Health and Safety Culture and Workplace
Improvement project
AR CEEEERG ) 543,430
Sub-total (Medical and Health)
H 2=
SPORTS, RECREATION AND CULTURE 85 =&K& 3t
SR (FET)
Amount
Hig/ g Organisation / Purpose (HK$’000)
HFHERGASEEESITEGH Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust Initiatives
15 B o [ B SRR B AL — 5B RAE )\ To fund the Central Police Station Compound Conservation and Revitalisation 1,137,000
Project — 7th and 8th tranche allocation
1R B2 RS o /N A B Ukt ) To support the Jockey Club Learn-to-Swim Programme for Primary Students 61,420
TS e The Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups 145,790
B AR P AN B b O EE A S 4 > MEIEE  To fund the redevelopment of Stanley Outdoor Activities Centre into a residential
TSR —E AW =4 AE K EREAES  camp and the implementation of a three-year innovative water and adventurous
At community sports programme after completion of the redevelopment
MR SERAF FTHREEH & BEH) The Hong Kong Countryside Foundation Limited (HKSAR Chief Executive’s 48,940
5 Bl 75 B 18 2 5 L N A SR A Community Projects List)
To fund the Hakka Life Experience Village@Lai Chi Wo project
BRI ERR Hong Kog Arts Development Council 38,100
THBY [HCRE « T | B > R R4E To fund “Pride of Hong Kong”: a festival for home-grown artists for two years
HREEGE Hong Kong Playground Association 35,180

4 Wy % PO R 5 A e G AT RIS TR - AR
HEAT 2 30 =40 W B s I A ROE B SRt > DU AE A
AT 2 19 =45 R AT ) 2% et

To fund the renovation of its Tung Chung Outdoor Recreation Camp, implement a
three-year innovative sports outreach programme in Islands district leveraging on
the renovated camp and implement a three-year citywide “Innovative Sports for All”
community programme

:
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SH(FHET)

Amount

g/ R Organisation / Purpose (HK$’000)
LGN I ¥ 7 N R DA Y Public Riding Schools at Lei Yue Mun, Pok Fu Lam and Tuen Mun 31,830
FHBH 2016/ 174 BE W 3545 4 s 18 To fund their net operating deficits in 2016/17
HWP L BEF TG Chinese Y M C A of Hong Kong 30,780
BB B W AR R W P B LR B4R — EE G DT To fund the Chinese YMCA of Hong Kong — Jockey Club “Mapperthon Community
7 | ek it 0 5 K ok 5 ) Action” project for three years
T v 24l 15 1n €7 A BR 2\ Hong Kong Arts Festival Society Limited 22,380
BBI20194E W BT M0y [ W EB 2 A% 5 % To fund the Hong Kong Jockey Club Series for the 2019 Hong Kong Arts Festival;
BI20174E FW B E 0 (HFHEB 2 EH 2 H | - the HKIC Student Matinee Programme; and the local production projects “HKJC
AHMFERBEHIFEHEEETHREE T4 K51 % Contemporary Dance Series” and “The Odyssey” for the 2017 Festival
['The Odyssey |
MRk A RA T The Hong Kong Tennis Association Limited 20,960
THBYFERG & LB BRG] > R =4E To fund the Jockey Club Tennis Rocks Programme for three years
WYEB B AL S Elite Athlete Charitable Trust 20,470
BB [Bh ke ] 5Ha > 2 =4 To fund the Active School Programme for three years
e & b Hong Kong Sports Institute 18,430
1B 201645 F 20184 [ 28 1% 7 B F54E By 5 SE W) 51 | To support the Jockey Club Athlete Incentive Awards Scheme for Major Games

2016 to 2018
T s 155 18 SR i 1o €7 3 BR 2 ) Riding for the Disabled Association Limited 17,340
FH Bl % & 1 R AK 2 S8 Al R A % o P A SR B AT B A By To fund its Rehabilitation Riding Programmes at the Pokfulam and Tuen Mun Public
BLRER T # » M B AR AT BT #) » R =42 Riding Schools, and the Para-Equestrian Squad Programme for three years
DG AT B 263 4 Joyful (Mental Health) Foundation Limited 17,100
BB HEFEER T REAHN OB EE G E#HRES  To fund the Joyful Jockey Club “Love to Move” Programme for 3%z years, in
) R By O > B = collaboration with The Education University of Hong Kong, to promote mental and

physical fithess
Wz sk PE A B 23 ) The Nonsensemakers Limited 14,090
Bl 2R 0 = ) PR S < I 5 I ) R0 ) To fund a three-year Jockey Club Hand in Hand Capable Theatre IncluDrama

Project
JE 5 B AL S5 B Leisure and Cultural Services Department 13,100
BB ZBR2016/174F E A BT B EMFBEB G2 A To fund two exhibitions in Hong Kong in the 2016/17 The Hong Kong Jockey
B+ AR — S0 0 B RE E IR R v R R 4505 Club Series: “Mare Nostrum — Roman Navy and Pompeii” and “Royal Wedding
4 e 5 Ceremony of the Qing Dynasty”
BB AL A = Association Culturelle France - Hong Kong Limited 11,470
THB R 20164E M L H Bl H > AR FEE G To fund the programmes of Le French May 2016 and the Jockey Club Community
e TR Outreach and Arts Education Programmes
BB A = Association Culturelle France - Hong Kong Limited 10,450
HBI20164E N . FWR] > UEEBEG . % . Tofund Lumieres Hong Kong in 2016 and the Jockey Club “Lumieres Hong Kong”
TR | BOF et B Education Outreach Programme
HBE GG Hong Kong Youth Arts Foundation 10,040
BN TR BT o — B & Melodia B35 #454 %4 To fund the Hong Kong Youth Arts Foundation — Jockey Club “Melodia” Theatrical
Jr ek i A4l - ) Experience & Outreach Art Educational Programmes
s e & bt Hong Kong Sports Institute 9,670
TH B AU S o U T - R g AR To fund the Hong Kong Jockey Club Coach Education Programme for four years
REGER SCAL F B F Leisure and Cultural Services Department 7,000
$HBY 2017485505 B 2V A B) & To fund the 6th Hong Kong Games in 2017
ERAR Penfold Park 6,020
BB L2016/ 1 74F BE I 4 T 458 8 To fund its capital and operating expenditure for 2016/17
BEERERSGHRAA Young Artists Development Foundation Limited 5,970
TR TEE B G E TS | 2 593 N A AT To fund a three-year Jockey Club Young Artists Development Programme providing
BT > BRY=4E painting education for the underprivileged and young people
WA St James’ Settlement 5,820

H By 2 A 4% A &S & [ R X% B . KSHOW ) |
EiEl!

To fund the St James’ Settlement Jockey Club “Super Senior, Super Show!”
programme



CHARITIES TRUST DONATIONS

£8(FHET)
Amount
HAE/ Rk Organisation / Purpose (HK$°000)
il B9 R BR A R 2 W] Street Soccer Hong Kong Limited 5,370
BBy [/ gt R BRAA ] 5Hl > R =4 To fund the Jockey Club Community Soccer for Hope project for three years
JAE 4 B AL S5 B Leisure and Cultural Services Department 4,990
THB) 20 164 A WAL ST R BE N THE A s To fund six educational initiatives at the Hong Kong Flower Show 2016
FHEES Radio Television Hong Kong 4,980
TR Bl S — AT B DR B Sk A i TR AR AL B To fund the production of a television documentary on intangible cultural heritage
A YN 2 i SORR )R A PR 2 ] Asia Art Archive Limited 4,850
TR [ ESR SO R ] > R =48 To fund the “Ha Bik Chuen Archive Project” for three years
B EERUKER €7 Hong Kong Amateur Hockey Club 4,700
18 Bl [ 55 fr vk 2R 40 58 F 5t ) | 177 42 vk Bk 31 To fund a three-year ice hockey youth training programme, the “Jockey Club Ice
B> RII=AE Hockey Generation Next Project”
s rp 4 Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra Limited 4,600
BBy [ O b 5 8 F R s > A= To fund the Jockey Club Chinese Music Education and Outreach Programme for
three years
BB H S0 & Hong Kong Youth Arts Foundation 3,840
i 1 K A [ 2 B Bl AR JR 2016 To fund the Jockey Club Community Performing Arts Biennale 2016
RA L & A0 H R A E The Conservancy Association Centre for Heritage Limited 2,620
B — I B A E R S E > B RAE To fund an Intangible Cultural Heritage Educational Programme for two years
AL #Hi A B2 T Hulu Culture Limited 1,630
SR B 2 1 — 4 i J A BT SCAV A 7 A [ A il To fund a one-year community outreach programme on intangible cultural heritage
F WA RA A The Chopin Society of Hong Kong Limited 1,540
15 Bl 5 1 i N A BE R B [ 645 | F 4L E  To fund the educational outreach programmes of the 4th Hong Kong International
Ah et Piano Competition and Joy of Music Festival
s B B g The Hong Kong Academy for Performing Arts 1,000
P Sl ST S G A To fund the replacement of some fine string instruments
v 3 75 45 B B € A B ] The Cycling Association of Hong Kong, China Limited 870
18 Bl —JE 45 Hb B B A 22 B > DAL A AW 3EE2015-  To fund a Track Cycling Community Engagement Campaign, to coincide with
2016 |22 ¢ B I AL SR 35 b B Hong Kong’s hosting of the 2015/16 UCI Track Cycling World Cup
W R IR S A & Joint Association of Traditional Dragon Boats in Tai O, Hong Kong 867
THB) 201648 B 201748 RS 475 56 A 205 10 175 ) To fund Tai O’s Traditional Dragon Boat Water Parade in 2016 and 2017
FHH R SR & Hong Kong Cheung Chau Bun Festival Committee 861
THBY 201648 52 201748 R I AT 5 B 4 To fund the Cheung Chau Jiao Festival in 2016 and 2017
ANl (B F - B4R k) 1,782,068
Sub-total (Sports, Recreation and Culture)
Hagy 3,900,870
Total

:
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TRUST'S MAJOR

COMMUNITY PROJECTS

HE TR EIER

Whilst The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust continues to invest a significant amount of
money in supporting the projects of various charitable groups and organisations through annual
donations, since 2005 it has also launched a series of major forward-looking community projects.
The Trust has been working with different stakeholders including Government departments,
non-governmental organisations, academia and business partners, to create a cross-sectoral
collaborative platform to address long-term challenges such as an ageing population, family
harmony, students with specific learning difficulties, youth development and environmental
sustainability. Each year the Trust will adjust the content of these projects in accordance with
societal needs in order to provide the timeliest services to Hong Kong people. In 2015/16, the
Trust approved seven programmes under various Major Community Projects, including:

ERBESERECRESRTHEESBEFREANE
REPTEEEREE  HITESEREEREN B
RZOORFE  BEBHETT —RIAMEMHKX
BHERE  WEZRRF AR - FBFAELS - &
BRABMEBBEENE  AEBERBBETFE - R
EHAOZL XEBE - B%RBE - SLFBRRERK
BEREEREUNEZE SEFETIRRES
MRRBREEEAR  BREBEDRSFRKERRE -
EER-O—&"/—~"FEAHEHLMEMEEAESE
B

READ & WRITE: A Jockey Club Learning Support Network

SN BESEEEE

His/ g Organisation / Purpose

T € Heep Hong Society

6 Bl B % 30 B ME AL 3R > DA % BN ARLEL Wi R SC B Bkt DA % 4% To fund the development of a mobile application and the reprinting of the Preschool Language
AL R L ot ) &l e ] B Learning Package for kindergarten children at risk of dyslexia

ER PN The University of Hong Kong

TH Bl 2 A VS RS I B 1 5 7 1T A SR okt To fund the production of teaching materials for children at risk of dyslexia

ENVIRONMENT PROJECT ={&atE

His/ g Organisation / Purpose

HRER (FE) Eeg World Wide Fund for Nature Hong Kong

E1p SIS BN A e R (A | To fund the Mai Po Nature Reserve Infrastructure Upgrade Project

RO —HEGARA R Green Monday Foundation Limited

THBYH AR AL E A ) > R RAE To fund its green community education project for two years

EBE Hong Chi Association

HBAIR B — TE 2 W BRI s ) > B =4 To fund the extension of the citywide glass bottle recycling campaign for three more years
HWER Radio Television Hong Kong

HeAT B —TEBR A B HE R - DIES E 2 A B EREE  To launch a further public education programme to explore more environmental topics

FAMILY' A Jockey Club Initiative For a Harmonious Society

Z + N BEESNETSETE

wis/ g Organisation / Purpose

TR LB Hong Kong Island Women’s Association
AT [ 2 Byl £ GO K GAF A R Ak I #1380 | > 2 0] — 4 To carry out the Family Holistic Health Community Promotion Project for one year
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BUSINESS REVIEW
EBGHER

EREFE (B8] R—RBHEREBLENFE
BREE  BEFESHREAEERESRY - 28F
% AERIER  URAZAUEERNGESEER
X BESUATEBREREERRFEHERSR -
FER2RABEZNHE  —O—=/—KEE
FARREL—AZARER  AITEFHS - 58
TREBERLZEPREZ —  BFHEREER
AUEREBEAZ RS - EREFEREETE
2 ([ERE2]) RZO—H/—R"FEMAERTE
ZThEBRTER T —B-THEZELQHERE - A
TEERSLE FETE2EBEANETZ— ER
BA—B-TEEBANRBET -

Contribution to the Hong Kong Community (HK$M)
HEBLENWEESRM (BEET)

Total #%8

35,561

Il Betting and Lottery duty %51 & 5 5 @EH
Profits tax FI1§#
Lotteries Fund % E &

I Donations to the Trust B8 F T E & WA

[ | Employment and other spending
B S H B R E AR X

wE
BER-RFLFEL  AETE-—FERBRA
7 BBRH2ERANBARTESSBEHYAR
NE - EARERRERARQCANEEEERSA
AR BFERABERCLEERTEY - 2Rk
EHNREERSNER - Z—TENBLARESES
EEBARAR - IEEEEEERENTEREL
BRI o

ERESR—EAHAEES T2 HEPR
BREAEHRBNEEESR -

=R

FEUFLARACE ACREELNESRE
B RARR - SUEBHARHAER - XARES
TEE ERUELR-

AEEBAEE  BRUAZREREEENATRX
MEARHBEENER  FERTEBBREMFAE
SREERBEN  B-NEt=FETEREBHEE
SHNBEERRE LA - N tIFEREREEEN
BREE ZOO=%F » BITRFLERBHTE
SEERBARERUZIRAENERELRE - 58
MEERRHREEBRCREERESEREES
ERBEBGRAMNBEHRIER R HRES -

FEREAHHEY  AXSHERX T4

The Hong Kong Jockey Club (the “Club”) is a not-for-profit enterprise dedicated to the betterment
of Hong Kong. Through its integrated business model of world-class racing and racecourse
entertainment, membership, responsible wagering, and charities and community support, the Club
is able to contribute, very significantly, to the economic and social development of Hong Kong.

The Club is Hong Kong's largest single taxpayer, contributing a record HK$20.9 billion in 2015/16.
It is also one of the world’s largest charity donors, each year allocating surplus funds to charitable
and community projects in Hong Kong. In 2015/16, The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust
(the “Trust”) donated a record HK$3.9 billion to 215 charitable and community projects. The Club
is also one of Hong Kong’s largest employers, with over 22,000 full-time and part-time staff.

The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust
Sources of Income and Charitable Donations for the Allocations Fund (HK$M)
EREREAECRESERESHBARRNZZBR(EEBET)

14/15 Siate 3871 =
13/14 Sl 06
0 500 1,000 1,500 2,000 2,500 3,000 3,500 4,000 4,500

Il Charitable donations Z& 183k I Transfer from Capital Fund B B & A~E S

I Donations from The Hong Kong Jockey Club Group
EFEREEBIBR

Financial income B #WA

Forfeited dividends and refunds A 2B € RIER

GROUP STRUCTURE
The Club is a not-for-profit organisation, and is a company with liability limited by guarantee. Through
its wholly-owned subsidiaries, HKJC Horse Race Betting Limited, HKJC Football Betting Limited
and HKJC Lotteries Limited, the Club holds the sole licences for the operation and management of
Hong Kong’s horse race betting, football betting and Mark Six lottery. The Jockey Club Membership
Services Limited, another principal subsidiary, manages Members’ social and recreational facilities.
The Trust is a public charity and is primarily engaged in supporting charitable organisations and
community projects in Hong Kong.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS

The Club operates as a not-for-profit organisation without shareholders, being governed by an
elected Board of Stewards who possess a wide cross-section of business and community
experience and serve without remuneration.

In line with the Government’s policy of meeting the public demand for gambling through a
regulated and responsible channel, the Club provides all on-course betting and has been authorised
as Hong Kong’s sole provider of off-course betting services on horse racing since 1973. It has
been the authorised operator of the Mark Six Lottery since 1975. In 2003, to combat illegal betting
on football matches, it was further authorised by the Government to provide a regulated football
betting service. The Club’s betting licences are issued and overseen by the Home Affairs Bureau
in consultation with the Betting and Lotteries Commission, pursuant to the Betting Duty Ordinance
and Betting Duty Regulation.

In support of its commitment to promote responsible gambling, the Club engages with the
Government, police, gambling care agencies, customers, employees and international organisations
to establish measures to protect Hong Kong people from excessive and illegal gambling. The Club
also supported the Government to establish the Ping Wo Fund in 2003, an independent body which
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finances preventive and remedial measures to address gambling-related problems.

The Club’s wide-ranging role as Hong Kong’s largest provider of sporting and betting entertainment,
major source of tax and charity funding, prestigious membership club and significant employer,
means that most individuals and organisations in Hong Kong can be considered as the Club’s
stakeholders. The major stakeholder groups include the Club’s customers, Members, employees,
suppliers, Government departments, local community bodies, District Councils and the media. It
also has extensive relationships with various governmental and non-governmental bodies through
its charitable and community works.

Internationally, the Club maintains wide-ranging industry connections through its membership
of the Asian Racing Federation (Chairman), International Federation of Horseracing Authorities
(Vice-Chairman, Asia), and World Lottery Association (Member, Executive Committee) amongst
others. Through participation in these bodies, the Club is able to shape international standards,
policies and protocols for the benefit of the industry and in support of its own business development.

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

Notwithstanding its not-for-profit nature, the Group adopts prudent commercial practices in the
planning and management of its businesses. By maintaining a well-run business operation and a
strong financial position, the Club’s goal is to generate sufficient surplus to maintain and enhance
its role as Hong Kong’s top charity and community benefactor.

The Hong Kong economy grew modestly in 2015/16, impacted by financial volatility and the
slowdown in the global economy, which experienced its slowest growth since 2009. The decline
in inbound tourism also added pressures. The labour market stayed largely stable, notwithstanding
the slower growth in the overall economy. Over the medium term, the Hong Kong economy will
likely be confronted with a challenging and unsteady external environment.

Aside from the macro-economic environment, a number of other factors continue to impact on
the Club’s long-term competitiveness and performance. These include the globalisation of illegal
and unauthorised betting, including betting exchanges on racing, intensifying competition from
Macau’s gaming industry, the ageing population of racing fans, the overall change in customer
lifestyles enabled by technological innovations, and the unfavourable betting duty regime that
continues to challenge the Club’s betting revenue.

In this less favourable context, racing turnover for the full racing season declined by 1.7% this
year to HK$106,142 million but still generated HK$12,134 million in tax payments to the Government.
The Club nonetheless continued to serve its customers by providing responsible and best-in-class
wagering entertainment.

The Club also continued to focus on developing the world-class quality of its racing and
entertainment. This included focusing on improving the racing experience, in terms of both the
quality of the horses on the track and the customer facilities at the racecourse, at betting branches
and online. The multi-year Racecourse Master Plan continued to transform the two racecourses
into centres of world-class sporting entertainment, with five new and renovated venues opening in
2015/16 to serve the differentiated needs of customers. These, coupled with a full spectrum of
marketing initiatives, including the strengthening of the Happy Wednesday Brand, have successfully
positioned racing as a social and lifestyle based entertainment experience in the city in recent years.

Another promising area of growth has been commingling. Since its launch two years ago,
commingling has grown to encompass 13 overseas partners, including two new partners this racing
season. Commingling turnover grew from HK$152 million in the first season to HK$2,644 million
in 2014/15 and further grew to HK$3,477 million in the 2015/16 racing season. This success
illustrates the significant interest in and attractiveness of Hong Kong racing overseas, driven by
the quality and competitiveness of the Club’s racing product, the depth of its wagering pool, and
the Club’s reputation for integrity.

There were 84 and 81 race meetings in the 2015/16 and 2014/15 financial years respectively,
with both racing seasons having 83 meetings as they did not coincide with the financial years.
From next season, following approval from the Hong Kong SAR Government, there will be five
additional weeknight race meetings and eight additional simulcast days.

The Club’s strategic focus on world-class racing has continued to deliver outstanding results,
including at the elite world level. All 10 of the Club’s eligible races made the World’s Top 100 Group
1 Races in 2015, with the Audemars Piguet QEIl Cup a prominent ninth. Likewise a record-matching
23 Hong Kong horses were listed in the 2015 LONGINES World’s Best Racehorse Rankings. This
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was accomplished despite Hong Kong having only around 1,200 horses, or approximately 0.7 %
of the world’s thoroughbred racehorses in training. As a further mark of recognition, Hong Kong
has been promoted to Part | of the International Cataloguing Standards and International Statistics
Book from next season, with 17 pattern races in Hong Kong upgraded to international status for
2016/17.

Alongside the focus on world-class racing is an equally strong focus on technology. The Club
is currently developing its next generation customer information and wagering system, and has
also continued to use advanced odds calculation technology. Following the success of the merged
pool for the First 4 and Quartet last year, this season it launched Composite Win, which provides
an alternative way to pick winning horses in the Win pool.

To maintain Hong Kong’s leading role in global racing and to meet the demand for horse
ownership, the Club is currently constructing the Conghua Training Centre in Guangdong. Good
progress has been made this year, including a successful trial of the cross-border movement of
horses. The design of the Conghua Training Centre with ample space, state-of-the-art facilities
and different training tracks including an uphill gallop will help to upgrade training facilities to a
world-class standard and will provide urgently needed and dedicated spelling and rehabilitation
facilities. The site is due to commence operations in 2018.

Turning to football betting, since being authorised to offer regulated football betting in 2003, the
Club has become one of the world’s largest and most successful sports betting operators. The
main objective of the Club’s football betting service is to combat illegal and offshore bookmakers
and to prevent the siphoning of money from the Hong Kong community.

Through developing competitive products and expanding coverage of football matches, the Club
has successfully directed local demand for football betting to trustworthy and legitimate channels.
The Club has also made a great effort to provide high-quality customer service and information
content to meet customer needs. In view of the significant migration of customer demand to digital
platforms, the Club has been making use of technology to improve the customer experience via
internet and mobile applications.

During the year, the Club achieved another record high football turnover of HK$86,795 million,
representing an increase of 10.9% over last year and accounting for 43.1% of total amounts
wagered. This generated HK$6 billion in tax payments to the Government, with a similar amount
returned to the Club. This upward trend was driven by the Club’s continuing effort to develop
products to meet the demand for legal betting services.

To celebrate the 40th anniversary of the Mark Six lottery, the Club held the Mark Six 40th
Anniversary Snowball in March 2016, carrying the highest-ever snowball of HK$75 million. This
drew a strong public response and generated total turnover of HK$446 million, a record high in
Mark Six history.

The Trust’s allocations to charities achieved a new record of HK$3.9 billion, the third year in a
row that they have exceeded the HK$3 billion mark. While the Trust’s commitment to supporting
a broad range of community needs remains as strong as ever, it is also currently pursuing
three specific areas of focus, namely enhancing youth development, improving elderly care and
promoting sports.

The Club is strongly committed to reducing its environmental impact. In support of this, the Club
is focusing on reducing carbon emissions, improving energy efficiency and reducing and recycling
waste materials. The Club has invested in energy-efficient systems and IT solutions as well as
environment-friendly office renovations. Suppliers are expected to follow a set of sustainability
guidelines, while efforts have also been made to enhance the green awareness of the Club’s
employees. More details regarding the Club’s performance are provided in the Environment section
of this Annual Report.

The Club, through its wholly-owned subsidiaries, is licensed by the Government to provide
betting services on horse racing, football and the Mark Six lottery pursuant to the Betting Duty
Ordinance and Betting Duty Regulation. In doing so the Club provides a regulated channel to meet
gambling demand, and works with the Government to promote responsible gambling and to protect
the public from the dangers of credit betting, illegal gambling and associated crimes such as money
laundering. Embracing the highest standards for responsible gambling, in March 2015, the Club
was for the second time granted the highest attainable Level 4 accreditation under the Responsible
Gambling Framework of the World Lottery Association (“WLA”). The Club is also committed to
preventing its operations from being used for money laundering and has an Anti-Money Laundering
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(“AML”) policy and framework, which makes reference to the internationally recognised Financial
Action Task Force recommendations and industry best practice.

With a total full-time and part-time workforce of around 22,000, the Club is committed to being
a caring and responsible employer. It supports and promotes diversity in the workplace and provides
corporate wellness programmes to encourage staff to adopt a healthy work-life balance. Leadership
capability building and talent retention help ensure the long-term growth and sustainability of the
Club’s operations. Spearheading the Club’s learning and development drive is The Hong Kong
Jockey Club College, which provides a variety of learning opportunities through formal training,
e-learning and external learning opportunities.

The Club is designated as a public body under the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance and all full
and part-time employees are required to adhere to a Code of Conduct which highlights potential
areas of risk such as procurement and conflict of interest. They also receive training in data security,
data privacy and anti-corruption measures.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
The Group’s total revenue increased by 4.6% from HK$34,428 million in 2014/15 to HK$36,009
million this financial year. The increase was mainly attributable to higher amounts wagered on
football betting and the lottery, together with the effect of a one-off gain from sale of properties
during the year. Net margin and commission of HK$10,975 million was 4.8% higher than 2014/15,
driven by the revenue increase.

Operating costs of HK$9,642 million were HK$681 million or 7.6% higher than last financial year,
primarily driven by general inflation and higher employment costs, as well as by the increase in
depreciation following completion of capital projects during the year.
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The Club continued to invest substantially in operating assets and new technology platforms to
meet growing public demand and to improve asset health. During the financial year, the total capital
expenditure of the Group was HK$2,659 million, an increase of HK$44 million on last year.

As a result of volatile financial markets, the Group recorded net financial costs of HK$933 million
in 2015/16. The Group’s financial portfolio, while not immune to volatility in financial markets, is
globally diversified across different geographical regions and asset classes, making it not significantly
susceptible to sudden movements arising from any particular region or investment.

The financial assets of both the Club and the Trust are managed under a rigorous framework,
with oversight provided by the Finance and General Purposes Committee, which regularly reviews
and approves all investment policies. These assets are managed by the Club’s Treasury Department
and external professional fund managers. The portfolios managed by the in-house Treasury team
are primarily for working capital and liquidity, and are predominantly invested in bank deposits and
high credit quality debt securities. The portfolios managed by external fund managers are mainly
for long-term capital growth, and are invested in an array of asset classes across the globe with
the aim of achieving consistent returns with effective risk diversification.

The Group remains Hong Kong’s single largest taxpayer, with total tax payments (comprising
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betting duty, lottery duty and profits tax) of HK$20,912 million in 2015/16. These payments were
equivalent to 7.2% of the total taxes collected by the Inland Revenue Department. Due to higher
amounts wagered and revenues, the Group’s total tax contribution over the past year increased
by 4.3% or HK$863 million.
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The Group’s net surplus for the year, excluding the surplus / deficit from the Contingency Fund
and donations to the Trust, was HK$3,639 million, 28% or HK$1,392 million lower than last
financial year.

In supporting its charitable projects and beneficiaries, the Group aims to ensure that its funding
is steady and stable. In order to provide a transparent basis for this, and taking into consideration
the performance of its core racing and wagering businesses, the Group has adopted operating
surplus after tax for determining its donations to the Trust. Being linked to the Group’s operating
performance, and excluding gain on sale of properties and investment returns, this is a more stable
basis for calculating such donations. As such it differs from net surplus after tax, which was the
basis the Group adopted in the past, and which included investment returns, and was therefore
susceptible to the volatility of financial markets. During the year, the Group’s operating surplus after
tax, excluding gain on sale of properties and investment returns, amounted to HK$3,956 million.

Donations to the Trust were HK$3,500 million. This represented an increase from 84% of the
Group’s operating surplus after tax, excluding gain on sale of properties and investment returns,
in 2014/15, to 88% in 2015/16. During the year, the Trust approved record donations of HK$3,901
million to charitable and community projects.

MEMBERSHIP SERVICES

Catering revenue in the current financial year amounted to HK$790 million, a 0.9% increase over
last year. In the face of severe competition in the hospitality and service industry, The Jockey Club
Membership Services Limited (“JCMSL”) continued to provide Members with the pinnacle of
experiences through racehorse ownership, racecourse and clubhouse hospitality and lifestyle
events. JCMSL also improved productivity, including through direct sourcing and by maximising
central production kitchen output.

To address future growth, and to provide a wider range of services and recreation facilities for
Members, JCMSL began work on a major new extension to Happy Valley Clubhouse in 2014/15.
The project is on track, with site formation and foundation work ongoing.

Beijing Clubhouse has been widely recognised for its high quality services and products, its
racing heritage and its charitable role as a community benefactor. It continues to set the standard
for hospitality excellence for both Hong Kong and Mainland-based Members.
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The Stewards have pleasure in submitting their annual report and the audited consolidated financial
statements of The Hong Kong Jockey Club (the “Club”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
for the year ended 30 June 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the year, the Group was primarily engaged in the conduct and control of horse racing in
Hong Kong, in operating authorised wagering activities on horse racing, football and lotteries, and
in managing Members’ social and recreational facilities.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 10.
All figures in the annual report and the audited consolidated financial statements are expressed in
millions of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.

DONATIONS
During the year, the Group donated HK$3,500 million to The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities
Trust (the “Trust”) and HK$29 million for other charitable purposes.

STEWARDS
The Board of Stewards during the year and up to the date of this annual report is listed in the
“Board of Stewards” section.

Dr Simon S O Ip and Mr Anthony W K Chow were elected Chairman and Deputy Chairman
respectively immediately after the 2015 Annual General Meeting.

Mr Silas S S Yang was elected as a Steward at the 2015 Annual General Meeting for a one-year
term to replace Dr Rita Fan Hsu Lai Tai who resigned as a Steward.

In accordance with the Club’s Articles of Association, Mr Philip N L Chen, Mr Stephen Ip Shu
Kwan, The Hon Martin Liao and Mr Silas S S Yang will retire by rotation at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting. All four Stewards retiring by rotation, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election.

Stewards act in an entirely honorary capacity and have received no emoluments in the year
under review. No transactions, arrangements or contract of significance in relation to the Club’s
business to which the Club or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Steward had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW
The business review is contained on pages 2 to 6, and is part of the Report of the Stewards.

SUBSIDIARIES
The principal activities and Directors of the Club’s subsidiaries are shown on pages 60 to 61.

AUDITOR
The consolidated financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.

This report is prepared in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Stewards and is signed for
and on behalf of the Board.

Simon SO Ip
Chairman
22 July 2016
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TO THE MEMBERS OF THE HONG KONG JOCKEY CLUB
(incorporated in Hong Kong with liability limited by guarantee)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The Hong Kong Jockey Club (the “Club”)
and its subsidiaries set out on pages 10 to 61, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 30 June 2016, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

STEWARDS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Stewards of the Club are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the Stewards determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Stewards, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Club and its subsidiaries as at 30 June 2016, and of their financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 22 July 2016



CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

HEWER
BEXB=1THILFE for the year ended 30 June
BEBT in HK$ million FtzE Note 2016 2015
ESHYE Number of race meetings 1 84 81
i EEERIEERE Amounts wagered by local customers 199,234 188,947
ESR e EERIIMNOTEEE Amounts of non-local bets
placed by commingling partners 3,462 2,488
RIEEEE Total amounts wagered 2.2 202,696 191,435
EEREFWA Betting and lottery revenue 2.3 32,683 31,231
EEBRRSELH Betting and lottery duty (20,379) (19,540)
R FIMEEFHE Payment to racing jurisdictions outside Hong Kong (47) (51)
REES Lotteries Fund (1,282) (1,167)
R REE Net margin and commission 4 10,975 10,473
Haplg A Other revenue 5 3,326 3,197
14,301 13,670
R A Operating costs 6 (9,642) (8,961)
BEFEIESHTE Donations to the Trust 10 (3,500) (3,500)
rERE Operating surplus 1,159 1,209
FRA Bk Interest income from deposits 109 156
BERERRHREAEGH (HB)/ Bt (Deficit)/surplus from securities investments and
long-term investment portfolios 7 (378) 407
BRESKREN (BB)/ Btk (Deficit)/surplus from Contingency Fund investments 8 (67) 231
BisEMA Finance costs 24 (7) (8)
(343) 786
FHEEE AT (BE)/ &F Share of (losses)/profits of joint ventures 15 (550) 815
HIRRBIIE AT Y B &R Surplus before taxation 266 2,810
HiiE Taxation 9 (564) (561)
MREBERRFEE (B5R)/ Btk Net (deficit)/surplus after taxation (298) 2,249
HIRBIER AR R REBDR K Operating surplus after taxation and before
HEVE VR AT SE BER investment returns and gain on sale of properties 10 3,956 4,148
REEIHR Investment returns 10 (933) 1,550
HEME Gain on sale of properties 179 51
HIRBEE R B BETESIBRAINRL Surplus after taxation and before donations to the Trust 3,202 5,749
BEFEIESHTE Donations to the Trust (3,500) (3,500)
MREBERFEE (B5R)/ Bt Net (deficit)/surplus after taxation (298) 2,249

BTAEEAT-ENHEBAGREUBHRRN—BD -

The notes on pages 15 to 61 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FHE2EKER
BEXB=1THILFE for the year ended 30 June
BEBT in HK$ million FfizF Note 2016 2015
MREBERRFEE (B5R)/ Bt Net (deficit)/surplus after taxation (298) 2,249
Htt2mE (F58) /s Other comprehensive (loss)/income
FTEEFHERANRTWIER Items that will not be reclassified to income statement
BB EAEENENTE Remeasurements of post-employment
benefit obligations 27 (187) (81)
HE AR EHN D BB ARERNIEE Items that may be reclassified subsequently
to income statement
AHHENKEE Available-for-sale financial assets
EEEH Change in value
EEESFRRAKREAS Debt securities and long-term investment portfolios 27 (294) 336
ERESKRE Contingency Fund investments 28 (249) 183
BRESREPREES Development Fund long-term investment portfolios 29 9) 11
it & A RMEM2EKE/ (Bi8) Share of other comprehensive income/(loss) of
joint ventures 15 564 (809)
EWHRELRSE Currency translation differences 27 (166) 18
AEERBENEMEE (BB)/ WS Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year, net of tax (341) 158
AEERE (HE)/ WEBE Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year (639) 2,407

BTAEEAT-ENHEBAGREUBHRRN—BD -

The notes on pages 15 to 61 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

HEMBRAR
AA=+A at 30 June
BEBT in HK$ million FtzE Note 2016 2015
FREBEE Non-current assets
W - RABEREEM Property, plant and equipment 12 10,038 9,017
EERHBS TR T hFEARE Leasehold land and land use rights
under operating leases 13 1,177 1,291
REYE Investment properties 14 1 1
SEEQNTRE Investments in joint ventures 15 21,136 20,017
HRESRE Contingency Fund investments 16 7,522 3,464
REREAS Long-term investment portfolios 17 4,037 9,039
REFFENTIE Long-term prepayments 18 374 360
ELEFEHERE Deferred income tax assets 19 8 11
44,293 43,200
MENEE Current assets
BERFSEE Debt securities portfolio 20 507 1,009
Bk EWRFE Loans and receivables 21 471 445
HiRBEE Other current assets 21 504 370
PTESmMIA Derivative financial instruments 22 15 21
EEER Short-term deposits 23 2,313 2,466
RERREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 23 5,303 5,885
9,113 10,196
mEEE Current liabilities
HHEIER Short-term loans 24 (111) (150)
B SR HEMEMIRK Trade and other payables 25 (6,222) (6,065)
FE R IE Receipts in advance (365) (320)
TEAEHRAE Current income tax liabilities (467) (511)
THESHmIA Derivative financial instruments 22 (48) )
(7,213)  (7,049)
MBEEFAE Net current assets 1,900 3,147
FEREBEE Non-current liabilities
REFSHAR Deferred income tax liabilities 19 (387) (328)
$TEEmIA Derivative financial instruments 22 (135) -
RERFIFTE Defined benefit scheme 26 (871) (580)
(1,393) (908)
44,800 45,439
(EA] Reserves 27 22,864 28,845
ERES Contingency Fund 28 20,747 15,396
BRES Development Fund 29 1,189 1,198
A E Total equity 44,800 45,439
=) Simon S O Ip
EHR Anthony W K Chow
Ak Stewards

B+RAEEAT -ENHEBEARFSHBRRKN—

The notes on pages 15 to 61 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GEEREER
BRES BRES
f##%  Contingency Development ko)

BEBT in HK$ million Reserves Fund Fund Total
—O—hRE+LHA—H&SR Balance at 1 July 2015 28,845 15,396 1,198 45,439
FREL 2 R F RSB Net deficit after taxation (298) - - (298)
HEE Transfers (5,266) 5,266 - -
TEERBIENEMSEEIE Other comprehensive loss

for the year, net of tax (417) 85 9) (341)
AEEZHEEBELE Total comprehensive loss for the year (5,981) 5,351 9) (639)
ZO—REXNA=THERR Balance at 30 June 2016 22,864 20,747 1,189 44,800
—O—MEEB—H&E Balance at 1 July 2014 27,245 14,644 1,143 43,032
MRBIB AR Net surplus after taxation 1,487 718 44 2,249
REERBENEMEEKEG Other comprehensive income

for the year, net of tax 113 34 11 158
REEZEWNEEEE Total comprehensive income for the year 1,600 752 55 2,407
—O—REANB=1H#&s% Balance at 30 June 2015 28,845 15,396 1,198 45,439

BTAEEAT-ENHEBAGREUBHRRN—BD -

The notes on pages 15 to 61 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GEBERER
BEXB=1THILFE for the year ended 30 June
BEBT in HK$ million FfizF Note 2016 2015
=T Operating activities
EETEMELENRS Cash generated from operations 30 2,695 1,755
EXHRE Interest paid (7) (8)
2SS Income tax paid (509) (403)
EEFEMEENTFRS Net cash generated from operating activities 2,179 1,344
REES Investing activities
B A A =@ A U LN ERERED Decrease in short-term deposits with maturities
more than 3 months 153 1,549
BEYE - REREM Purchase of property, plant and equipment (2,819) (2,502)
HEREWE Sale of investment properties 187 59
2 WERI S Interest received 127 246
EUWER S Dividends received 93 266
HEEQARMETE Injection into joint ventures (2,324) (2,460)
m&& AR EE Redemption from joint ventures 1,198 1,756
BEUHEENKEE Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets (2,657) (1,671)
HEMRBENKEE Sale of available-for-sale financial assets 3,740 1,553
HITESBMI AR (4)/ WFERIE Net (payment)/receipt for derivative financial instruments (26) 34
REREASHFFIEM Increase in deposits held in
long-term investment portfolios (317) (329)
RETBFANFRS Net cash used in investing activities (2,645) (1,499)
REES Financing activities
EEEE Repayment of borrowings (39) (6)
BA B ZAFWFERE ST Net interest expenses paid on interest rate swaps (27) -
RMETBFANFRSE Net cash used in financing activities (66) (6)
ReRReEBWHFRL Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (532) (161)
FURERRLEEY Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 5,885 6,031
i (E)/ s Exchange (losses)/gains (50) 15
FRESRRESEEY Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 5,303 5,885
RERREZENEFIN Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents
ySE-EER Short-term deposits 23 4,218 4,695
RITEFER - BeRkEMRHES Bank balances, cash and other liquid funds 23 1,085 1,190
5,303 5,885

BTAEEAT-ENHEBAGREUBHRRN—BD -

The notes on pages 15 to 61 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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1 GENERAL INFORMATION
The Group is primarily engaged in the conduct and control of horse racing in Hong Kong and in
operating authorised wagering activities on horse racing, football and lotteries, and in managing
Members’ social and recreational facilities. The Club is incorporated in Hong Kong with liability
limited by guarantee. The address of its registered office is One Sports Road, Happy Valley, Hong
Kong. Details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out on pages 60 to 61.

The last four race meetings of the 2014/15 racing season were held on 1 July 2015, 5 July 2015,
8 July 2015 and 12 July 2015 (“July 2015 race meetings”) and the last three race meetings of the
2015/16 racing season were held on 1 July 2016, 6 July 2016 and 10 July 2016 (“July 2016 race
meetings”). Accordingly, the financial results of July 2015 race meetings have been included in the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2016 and the financial results of July
2016 race meetings will be included in the consolidated financial statements for the year ending
30 June 2017. The 2014/15 and 2015/16 proforma consolidated income statement for the full
racing season is shown on page 62.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in millions of Hong Kong dollars (HK$
million), unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 10 to 61 were approved by the Board of Stewards
on 22 July 2016.

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets, financial assets and financial
liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair value through profit or loss which are carried at
fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the use
of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in
the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in note 3.

(a) New interpretation and amendments that are relevant to the Group’s operations and are
effective for the current accounting period

No new interpretation and amendments to published standards relevant to the Group’s operations
are effective for the current accounting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 5 3% % Bit &
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

2.1 Basis of preparation (cont.)

(b) New standards and amendments that are relevant to the Group’s operations but are not yet
effective and not early adopted

The following new standards and amendments have been published and are mandatory for the
Group’s accounting periods commencing on or after 1 July 2016.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
HKFRS 16 Leases

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangement — Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests

in Joint Operations

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows

Amendments to HKAS 12 Income Taxes

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation

Amendments to HKAS 27 Separate Financial Statements: Equity Method

Annual Improvements 2014 Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

The Group is still in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these new standards
and amendments, except for HKFRS 9, will be in the period of initial application. It is not yet in a
position to state whether these new standards and amendments will have a significant impact on
the Group’s results of operations and financial position.

HKFRS 9 has three financial asset classification categories for investments in debt instruments:
amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (“OCI”) and fair value through profit
or loss. Classification is driven by the entity’s business model for managing the debt instruments
and their contractual cash flow characteristics.

A debt investment is classified as “Fair value through OCI” only if both of the following criteria
are met: the objective of the Group’s business model is to hold the asset to collect the contractual
cash flows and to sell financial assets; and the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding. If either
of the two criteria above is not met, the debt instrument is classified as “fair value through profit
and loss”.

Investments in equity instruments are always measured at fair value.

Upon adoption, restatement of comparatives is not required but entities are permitted to restate
comparatives if they can do so without the use of hindsight. If an entity does not restate comparatives,
it should adjust the opening balance of its retained earnings to take account of the effect of applying
the new standard in the year of initial application.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

2.2 Amounts wagered

The consolidated income statement presents amounts wagered as the amounts wagered by local
customers and amounts of non-local bets placed by commingling partners.

2016
e E = EEEY BHIEE
BEAA=THLFE for the year ended 30 June Horse race Football i @
BEBT in HK$ million betting betting Lottery Total
IR R R 4R Amounts wagered by local customers 103,891 86,795 8,548 199,234
EEFMEEERIMOTELE Amounts of non-local bets
placed by commingling partners 3,462 - - 3,462
107,353 86,795 8,548 202,696
2015
R EEEY BHIEE
BEXB=1THLFE for the year ended 30 June Horse race Football s s
BEBT in HK$ million betting betting Lottery Total
A RER IR AR Amounts wagered by local customers 102,918 78,249 7,780 188,947
EEFMEEERIMOTELE Amounts of non-local bets
placed by commingling partners 2,488 - - 2,488
105,406 78,249 7,780 191,435
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2.3 Betting and lottery revenue

The Group reports net gains and losses arising from all local betting and lottery activities as revenue,
which is the amounts wagered by local customers net of betting dividends, rebates and lottery
prizes. A reconciliation of the amounts wagered by local customers and betting and lottery revenue
is shown in note 4.

2.4 Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements, made up to 30 June 2016,
of the Club and its direct and indirect subsidiaries and joint ventures.

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has the rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains and losses on transactions between
Group companies are eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Club’s statement of financial position, the investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures
are stated at cost less provision for impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries and joint ventures
are accounted for by the Club on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

2.4 Consolidation (cont.)

(b) Joint arrangements

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint arrangements. Under HKFRS 11 investments in joint
arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures depending on the contractual
rights and obligations of each investor. The Group has assessed the nature of its joint arrangements
and determined them to be joint ventures. Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint ventures are initially recognised at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses
and movements in other comprehensive income. When the Group’s share of losses in a joint venture
equals or exceeds its interests in the joint ventures (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the joint ventures), the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
joint ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its joint ventures are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred. Accounting policies of
the joint ventures have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

When the ownership interest in a joint venture is reduced, but continues to apply the equity
method, it shall reclassify to the income statement the proportion of the gain or loss that had
previously been recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that reduction in ownership
interest if that gain or loss would be required to be reclassified to the income statement on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

2.5 Contingency Fund
The Club’s Contingency Fund is held to provide a source of funds in the event that income from
betting operations should cease temporarily; to finance major capital projects, either for the Club
or for the Hong Kong community; to finance major renovations to improve the Club’s substantial
investment in property, plant and equipment; or for any other special purposes as deemed
appropriate by the Stewards. The Contingency Fund represents the market value of the Contingency
Fund investments and this is adjusted annually through the receipt of investment income, realised
surplus or deficit, revaluation of investments and, when necessary, the transfer of additional funds.
The Contingency Fund investments (including investments in the joint ventures: HKJC Equity
Trust Fund (“Equity Trust”) and the Stellar Performer Global Series (“Bond Trust”)) are held for non-
trading purposes. They are stated at fair value at the end of the reporting period, except for loans
and receivables and investments in the Equity Trust and the Bond Trust. The surplus derived from
Contingency Fund investments is reinvested and deficit absorbed in the Contingency Fund portfolio.
The accounting policy for the financial assets of the Contingency Fund investments is stated in
note 2.9.

2.6 Development Fund

The Development Fund maintained under The Jockey Club Membership Services Limited, is held
to accumulate adequate funds to finance future membership facilities. The annual transfer from
the net surplus of the year is approved by the Stewards taking into consideration the operating
surplus, investment income earned by this Fund, and the amounts of entrance and qualification
fees of Full and Corporate Members, and Country Concession Scheme joining fees received during
the year. The financial assets of the Development Fund are included in long-term investment
portfolios.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

2.7 Long-term investment portfolios

The primary purpose of the long-term investment portfolios (including investments in the Equity
Trust and the Bond Trust) is to invest surplus funds in excess of normal operational requirements
for capital appreciation over the medium to long-term.

These portfolios are held for non-trading purposes and are stated at fair value at the end of the
reporting period, except for loans and receivables and investments in the Equity Trust and the
Bond Trust. The surplus derived from these investments is reinvested and deficit absorbed within
these portfolios. The accounting policy for the financial assets of the long-term investment portfolios
is stated in note 2.9.

2.8 Debt securities portfolio

The primary purpose of debt securities is to invest surplus funds for cash management and yield
enhancement. They are stated at fair value at the end of the reporting period. The accounting policy
for the financial assets of debt securities portfolio is stated in note 2.9.

2.9 Financial assets
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: available-for-sale financial
assets, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, and loans and receivables (including
cash and cash equivalents). The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial
assets were acquired. Management determines the classification of the financial assets at initial
recognition. The Contingency Fund investments, long-term investment portfolios and debt securities
portfolio may contain these financial assets. Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on trade day - the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the assets. Financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, with the
transaction costs expensed in the income statement. Financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs.

Financial assets are de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership.

(a) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category
or not classified in any of the other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless the
investment matures or management intends to dispose of it within 12 months of the end of the
reporting period. They comprise local and overseas listed or unlisted equities, debt securities and/
or alternative investments. Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently carried at fair value.
Changes in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income and retained in the investment
revaluation reserve until the assets are sold or impaired.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included in the income statement as “Surplus/deficit from
securities investments and long-term investment portfolios” or “Surplus/deficit from Contingency
Fund investments”.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the effective interest method is recognised
in the income statement as part of financial surplus. Dividends on available-for-sale equity
instruments are recognised in the income statement as part of financial surplus when the Group’s
right to receive payments is established.

Alternative investments include investments in hedge funds, private equity funds, private real
estate funds and multi-assets. For those which do not have quoted market prices in an active
market, their fair values will be determined with reference to the values established by external
fund managers using valuation techniques.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

2.9 Financial assets (cont.)

(b) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category consists of derivative financial instruments. The Group uses derivatives such as
interest rate swaps, equity options, foreign exchange forward contracts and future contracts to
manage its financial risks and to facilitate the implementation of its investment strategies. Derivatives
are initially recognised at fair value on the date derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at their fair value.

Changes in the fair value of these assets are included in the consolidated income statement in
the period in which they arise. Upon disposal or repurchase, the difference between the net sale
proceeds or the net payment and the carrying value is included in the consolidated income
statement unless the derivatives are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are classified
as current assets if expected to be settled within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as non-
current assets.

(c) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method and are included in current assets, except for amounts that are expected
to be settled or with maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting period where
these are classified as non-current assets.

The Group’s loans and receivables comprise “Loans and receivables” as shown in note 21,
short-term deposits, deposits and fund awaiting investments under non-current assets and cash
and cash equivalents as stated below.

Cash and cash equivalents include bank balances, cash in hand and other short-term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value and with original maturities of three months or less. Deposits
placed at the bank for a fixed term of more than 3 months are classified as “Short-term deposits”.

2.10 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
(a “loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

(a) Assets classified as available-for-sale

For debt securities, if any such evidence exists, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from equity and recognised in profit or
loss. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available-for-sale
increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through the consolidated
income statement.

For equities and alternative investments classified as available-for-sale, significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of an investment below its cost is also evidence that the assets are impaired.
If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss - measured
as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that financial asset previously recognised in the consolidated income statement - is reclassified
from investment revaluation reserve to consolidated income statement. Impairment losses
recognised in the consolidated income statement on equity instruments and alternative investments
are not reversed through the consolidated income statement.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

2.10 Impairment of financial assets (cont.)

(b) Assets carried at amortised cost

For loans and receivables, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the amount
of the loss is recognised in the consolidated income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated income statement.

2.11 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items. Property, plant and equipment and leasehold land under finance
leases are depreciated or amortised on a straight-line basis to allocate their cost to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold land under finance leases over the lease term

Buildings 25 years

Plant and equipment ranging from 10% to 33% per annum

Projects in progress no depreciation is provided on projects in progress until
they are ready for use in the manner as intended by
management. On completion, the project costs are
transferred to the appropriate property, plant and

equipment.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note 2.25).

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is de-recognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
income statement during the year in which they are incurred.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

2.12 Investment properties
Properties that are held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that are
not occupied by the entities in the Group, are classified as investment properties. Investment
properties are measured initially at their cost, including related transaction costs, and subsequently
carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. They are
depreciated on a straight-line basis to allocate their cost to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives at the same rate as buildings.

The gain or loss on disposal of investment property is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

2.13 Leases

Leases of assets where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets remain with
the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged
to the consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)
2.13 Leases (cont.)
Leases of assets where the lessee has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the lower
of the fair value of the leased assets or the present value of the minimum lease payments. Each
lease payment is allocated between the capital and finance charges so as to achieve a constant
rate on the capital balances outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included in non-current liabilities. The finance charges are charged to the consolidated
income statement over the lease term.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of their estimated useful lives
or the lease term.

When assets are leased out under an operating lease, lease income is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

2.14 Assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying amount is to be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than continuing use and a sale is considered
highly probable. They are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

2.15 Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using
weighted average cost less provision for diminution in value.

2.16 Current and deferred taxation

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the
consolidated income statement, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period in the countries where the Club’s subsidiaries and joint
ventures operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

(b) Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income taxation is recognised in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences

arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated

financial statements. The principal temporary differences arise from employee benefits, depreciation

on property, plant and equipment and investment properties. Taxation rates enacted or substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting period are used to determine deferred income taxation.
Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable

profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries
and joint ventures, except for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries and joint arrangements only to the extent that it is probable the
temporary difference will reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit available against
which the temporary difference can be utilised.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

2.16 Current and deferred taxation (cont.)

(c) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.17 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is
the Club’s functional currency and the Group’s presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency transactions and from
translation at year-end exchange rate of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised directly in the consolidated income statement. Assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the closing rate at the end of the reporting
period. The differences arising from translation are recognised in the consolidated income statement
except for translation differences on non-monetary items of available-for-sale financial assets, such
as equities, which are included in the investment revaluation reserve.

Changes in the fair value of debt securities denominated in foreign currency classified as available-
for-sale are analysed between translation differences resulting from changes in the amortised cost
of the security and other changes in the carrying amount of the security. Translation differences
related to changes in amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss, and other changes in carrying
amount are recognised in other comprehensive income.

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all Group entities that have a functional currency different from
Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong Kong dollars as follows:

— assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the end of each reporting period;

— income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates; and

— all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in
foreign entities and other currency instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

2.18 Borrowings and borrowing costs
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and are
subsequently carried at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the year in which they are incurred, except to
the extent that they are capitalised when they are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

2.19 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.20 Receipts in advance

Cash that is prepaid by members on membership subscriptions, entrance and qualification fees,
horse imports and pre-sale amounts that are received before the relevant betting services have
been rendered are included under receipts in advance.

2.21 Provisions

The Group recognises provisions for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, and it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.

2.22 Revenue recognition
Revenue from horse race betting represents amounts wagered by local customers net of betting
dividends and rebates and is recognised when the relevant betting service has been rendered.

Revenue from football betting represents amounts wagered net of betting dividends and is
recognised when the relevant betting service has been rendered.

Revenue from the lottery represents commission income and is recognised when the relevant
betting service has been rendered.

Revenue from membership subscription fees is recognised over the subscription period.

Revenue from membership entrance and qualification fees is recognised in the month of election
of members and when no significant uncertainty as to its collectibility exists.

Revenue from gate admission to race events and racing sponsorship income is recognised when
the event has been held.

Revenue from catering sales, other member services, stable and livery service charges and sale
of souvenir items are recognised when the relevant services have been rendered and relevant
goods have been sold.

Revenue from risk management service fee is recognised when the relevant service has been
rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

Royalty income is recognised on an accrual basis.

Co-ordination fees and licence fees from inbound commingling are recognised on an accrual
basis.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

2.23 Employee benefits

(a) Defined benefit scheme

The defined benefit scheme (the “Scheme”) provides pension benefits to employees upon retirement
with reference to their final salaries.

The liability recognised in the consolidated and Club’s statements of financial position in respect
of the Scheme is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting
period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation (“DBO”) is calculated annually
by independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined
benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using market
yields of government securities which have terms to maturity approximating terms of the related
pension obligation.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive income in the period in
which they arise.

(b) Defined contribution scheme

Employer’s contributions to the defined contribution scheme are recognised as staff costs in the
consolidated income statement for the year when they are due and are reduced by contributions
forfeited by those employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully for the contributions. The
Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.

(c) Bonus and annual leave

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses. A provision for bonus is recognised
where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a constructive
obligation. Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees.
A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

2.24 Related party

For the purposes of these consolidated financial statements, a party is considered to be related
to the Group if the Group has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or exercise
significant influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or
where the Group and the party are subject to common control. Related parties may be individuals
or entities.

2.25 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are not ready to be used or have an indefinite useful life are not subject to depreciation
and/or amortisation and are tested at least annually for impairment and are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Assets that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to exercise significant
judgements in the selection and application of accounting principles, including making estimates
and assumptions. The following significant accounting policies are impacted by judgements and
uncertainties and for which different amounts may be reported under a different set of conditions
or using different assumptions.

3.1 Estimated useful life and depreciation of property, plant and equipment
The Group estimates the useful lives of the various categories of property, plant and equipment
on the basis of a planned asset maintenance programme and actual usage experience. Depreciation
is calculated using the straight-line method at rates sufficient to write off their cost to the residual
value over their estimated useful lives (note 2.11).

Actual useful lives may differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic reviews could result in a change
in estimated useful lives and therefore depreciation expense in future periods.

3.2 Pension costs

The Group employs an independent actuary to conduct annual actuarial valuation of the Group’s
retirement plans. The determination of the Group’s obligation and expense for the defined benefit
element of these plans is dependent on certain assumptions and factors including long-term salary
increase rate provided by the Club, which are disclosed in note 26 (d). In determining the appropriate
discount rate, the Group considers the market yields of government securities which have terms
to maturity approximating the terms of the related pension obligation. Changes to the principal
actuarial assumptions can affect the present value of plan obligations and service costs in
future periods.

3.3 Income tax

Judgement is required in determining the income tax and deferred tax provision. Final tax outcome
may be different from the amounts that were initially recorded. The Group recognises liabilities
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be payable. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such determination
is made.

3.4 Asset impairment

Management judgement is required in the area of asset impairment, particularly in assessing
whether: (1) an event has occurred that may affect asset values; (2) the carrying value of an asset
can be supported by the net present value of future cash flows from the asset using estimated
cash flow projections; and (3) the cash flows are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing
the assumptions adopted by management to determine the level, if any, of impairment, including
the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could significantly
affect the Group’s reported financial position and results of operations.

3.5 Impairment of available-for-sale equity investments
The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 to determine when an available-for-sale equity
investment is impaired. This determination requires significant judgement. In making this judgement,
the group evaluates, among other factors, the duration and extent to which the fair value of an
investment is less than its cost; and the financial health of and short-term business outlook for the
investee, including factors such as industry and sector performance, changes in technology and
operational and financing cash flow.

If all of the declines in fair value below cost were considered significant or prolonged, the Group
would suffer an impairment loss, being the transfer of the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in equity on the impaired available-for-sale financial assets to the income statement.
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4 NET MARGIN AND COMMISSION

Net margin represents the amounts wagered by local customers on horse races and football net
of the related betting dividends, rebates, betting duty, and payment to racing jurisdictions outside
Hong Kong. Betting duty is calculated in accordance with the Betting Duty Ordinance and the

Betting Duty Regulations.

Commission represents the amounts wagered on the lottery net of related prizes, duty and

payment to the Lotteries Fund.

2016
BEARB=1THLFE for the year ended 30 June Horgszgfz Eoigfj/l s @
BEBT in HK$ million betting betting Lottery Total
IR EE R IR KR Amounts wagered by local customers 103,891 86,795 8,548 199,234
BELE  BkESES Betting dividends, rebates and lottery prizes (87,043) (74,892) (4,616) (166,551)
B RESRRA Betting and lottery revenue 16,848 11,903 3,932 32,683
EEBRRESELH Betting and lottery duty (12,291) (5,951) (2,137) (20,379)
FFRF Hhith B S HeAE Payment to racing jurisdictions outside Hong Kong (47) - - (47)
REES Lotteries Fund - - (1,282) (1,282)
R REE Net margin and commission 4,510 5,952 513 10,975
2015

BEXB=1THLFE for the year ended 30 June Horgszgfz Eoigfj/l s @
BEBT in HK$ million betting betting Lottery Total
i EEERIEERE Amounts wagered by local customers 102,918 78,249 7,780 188,947
BELE  BkESES Betting dividends, rebates and lottery prizes (86,454) (67,061) (4,201) (157,716)
EEREFHA Betting and lottery revenue 16,464 11,188 3,579 31,231

BEHRREFEHEHR Betting and lottery duty (12,001)  (5,594)  (1,945) (19,540)
FFRF Hhith B S A Payment to racing jurisdictions outside Hong Kong (51) - - (51)
REES Lotteries Fund - - (1,167)  (1,167)
HRRAE Net margin and commission 4,412 5,594 467 10,473

RIS WEB AR REBESE =0
—5/—AER=O—B/-EFNHECEERE
WEHZETE - RRBHHAEHRANE D 25
THE  AARESMERANREAENES 2
= EHE -

Betting duty on local horse races is charged on a progressive sliding scale on the betting revenue,
reaching the maximum rate of 75% in 2015/16 and 2014/15. Betting duty on football betting is
charged at the rate of 50% on the betting revenue, while lottery duty on the Mark Six is charged

at 25% on the amount wagered.
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5 Hibig A 5 OTHER REVENUE
BEBT in HK$ million 2016 2015
BRI E Charges for catering services 903 890
88 Membership fees 828 734
EERESREKE Stable and livery service charges 599 576
EAFMEEENNBRERFITE Co-ordination fees and licence fees from commingling partners 252 178
HEME Gain on sale of properties 179 51
ESHRERE Racing related income 160 154
EREEREE Risk management service fee 123 199
HELSMmERE Sale of souvenir items 42 48
SRR Royalty income 23 138
Hebg A Other revenue 217 229
3,326 3,197

6 FBERK 6 OPERATING COSTS
BEBT in HK$ million 2016 2015
BT (BiEE11) Staff costs (note 11) 4,092 3,835
W - RERBMITE (HFE12) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (note 12) 1,546 1,230
BERD Prize money 1,072 959
MR R A B Supplies and utilities 850 646
HEE MR Cost of inventories sold 560 565
HIEREER Repairs and maintenance 303 228
EihEEEENES Operating lease rentals on land and buildings 174 163
EEBENEEL R Amortisation for leasehold land and

T tth{E FAREREEY (FfIEE13) land use rights under operating leases (note 13) 28 30
FIAIEEITTRIE R MEHE ARt Capitalisation of amortisation to projects in progress (28) (30)
ZEIRTEN & Auditor's remuneration 8 6
REMEFRE (HEE14) Depreciation of investment properties (note 14) - 1
EEMS Stewards’ remuneration - -
HAb e AR Other operating costs 1,037 1,328

9,642 8,961

7 EFRERRYREEEN (518)/ B

7 (DEFICIT)/SURPLUS FROM SECURITIES INVESTMENTS AND LONG-TERM

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIOS

BEET in HK$ million 2016 2015
HETHHEMBEENRE Surplus on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets 110 92
A EN K EERE Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets (83) -
FIRERE R Dividend income from listed equities 27 30
SERERE WG Dividend income from alternative investments - 168
R EBESFE WG Interest income from listed debt securities 24 55
Ik I ERE SR B Interest income from unlisted debt securities 4 7
PTESBMIANT (F58)/ I Net (losses)/gains of derivative financial instruments (215) 13
HiBER Exchange differences (241) 47
BEWE Management fees @) (5)

(378) 407




8 HAEEREN (F5R)/ &R

8 (DEFICIT)/SURPLUS FROM CONTINGENCY FUND INVESTMENTS

BEBET in HK$ million 2016 2015
HETHHEMBEENRER Surplus on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets 88 174
AR HEM K EERE Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets (213) -
FIBRERE R Dividend income from listed equities 66 68
EEWE Management fees (8) (11)
67) 231
9 #HIE 9 TAXATION
BEBT in HK$ million 2016 2015
RER PSR Current income tax
- B8 - Hong Kong 414 434
- BB - outside Hong Kong 50 52
- BEFERAR — adjustments in respect of prior years 1 (27)
EAEFTSH (FIRE19) Deferred income taxation (note 19)
- 5% - Hong Kong 120 102
- BB - outside Hong Kong (21) =
564 561

BRFNEHDREANFEMFERBENERD 2 1
AEAL(ZO—HF B2t HA) BRFHE -
EBUIMNERBUGERTEENFIEH - CREBELE
i P RAE IR -
SERBARBMEENERTIE  BREFE
FEBH R ENBIRERNT ¢

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profit for the year. Income tax on profits assessable outside Hong Kong has been provided at the
rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

The taxation on the Group’s surplus before taxation differed from the theoretical amount that
would arise using the taxation rate of Hong Kong as follows:

BEBT in HK$ million 2016 2015

HIRRBIIE AT Y B &R Surplus before taxation 266 2,810

BFE16.5% (ZO—H%E : 16.5%) 5t & Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) 44 464

HttE RN E S RB RN S Effect of different income tax rates in other countries (1) 12

BARB NGNS E Tax effect of non-taxable income (43) (276)
FA0%i S H s E Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 526 368

BIEFERE Adjustments in respect of prior years 1 (27)
Hith Others 37 20

HEZH Taxation charge 564 561

10 B/ 10 DONATIONS

BETEIESHTE  RIEEEHRETESWER  Donations to the Trust represent donations of the Group to the Allocations Fund of the Trust for

BB/ fHERERR -

MERBIIRE LU AR ETRE B )% H E W R s Al
MESRS REEEERBTEIESHIEN
BEE.

REDBEARFRANERE FHRERRHR
EHANER/ B BRESRENEER/ B8 -
BHBERAURAMEREESRESESHNEE/

A o

charitable purposes.

Operating surplus after taxation and before investment returns and gain on sale of properties is
the basis for determining the Group’s donations to the Trust.

Investment returns include interest income from deposits, deficit/surplus from securities
investments and long-term investment porfolios, deficit/surplus from Contingency Fund investments,
finance costs and share of losses/profits of the Equity Trust and the Bond Trust.
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11 BIRE 11 STAFF COSTS
BEBT in HK$ million 2016 2015
FreREMAR Salaries and other costs 3,792 3,555
REMNRETE Defined contribution plan
EBRERA Pension costs 56 46
RS TR Contributions to MPF scheme 98 90
RERRGHE - RINEHA (FFE26) The Scheme — pension costs (note 26) 146 144
4,092 3,835
12 Y - RIE R4 12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
RMERHBE L1 EETH
Leasehold RBREM I21EH
land under BgF Plant and Projects in ko)
BEBT in HK$ million finance leases Buildings  equipment progress Total
—O—-R&EtA—BRAE Cost at 1 July 2015 1,537 5292 13,929 1,983 22,741
BE Additions - 86 1,211 1,362 2,659
EE Transfers - 81 796 (877) -
EREREYE Transfer to investment properties - 6) - - (6)
BE RN Disposals and write-offs (13) (20) (456) - (489)
B HBEE Currency translation differences - - (36) (73) (109)
“O—R"ERA=THEAE Cost at 30 June 2016 1,524 5,433 15,444 2,395 24,796
ZO—aFtRA—HEBRERHE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment at 1 July 2015 (1,031) (3,060) (9,632) (1) (13,724)
REENE Depreciation for the year (11) (161) (1,374) - (1,546)
EREREYE Transfer to investment properties - 6 - - 6
HE RN Disposals and write-offs 6 20 455 - 481
EMHRERE Currency translation differences - - 25 - 25
ZO—REAA=ZTHEBITERRE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment at 30 June 2016 (1,036) (3,195) (10,526) (1) (14,758)
ZO—REAA=ZTHEREEFEE Net book value at 30 June 2016 488 2,238 4,918 2,394 10,038
—O—lMEER—HRANE Cost at 1 July 2014 1,537 4,375 12,304 2,278 20,494
bk Additions - 168 1,378 1,069 2,615
i Transfers - 749 618 (1,367) -
BERTH Disposals and write-offs - - (374) - (374)
EWHBRER Currency translation differences - - 3 3 6
Z—O—EHFEARA=THRERAE Cost at 30 June 2015 1,537 5,292 13,929 1,983 22,741
ZO—MFtA—HREBERRE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment at 1 July 2014 (1,020) (2,931) (8,909) 2 (12,862)
REENE Depreciation for the year (11) (129)  (1,090) - (1,230)
HE RN Disposals and write-offs - - 368 369
EWHRELRE Currency translation differences - - (1) - (1)
ZO—EHFEARA=THEBITERRE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment at 30 June 2015 (1,031) (3,060) (9,632) (1) (13,724)
ZO—REXRA=THEREZE Net book value at 30 June 2015 506 2,232 4,297 1,982 9,017




13 BEAVHEE IR T ERE

13 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS UNDER OPERATING LEASES

BEBT in HK$ million 2016 2015
+tA—BRARE Cost at 1 July 1,436 1,427
B HBERE Currency translation differences (97) 9
NE=tTHRRE Cost at 30 June 1,339 1,436
+tA—HARE#H Accumulated amortisation at 1 July (145) (114)
NEE#H Amortisation for the year (28) (30)
B HBEE Currency translation differences 11 (1)
RA=T B RE#H Accumulated amortisation at 30 June (162) (145)
NE=+THREFE Net book value at 30 June 1,177 1,291

14 BREWME 14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

BEBT in HK$ million 2016 2015
+tA—HBAE Cost at 1 July 25 25
ERRET Transfer from buildings 6 =
28 Disposals 2) -
RA=ZTHRAME Cost at 30 June 29 25
tA—HEBERE Accumulated depreciation at 1 July (24) (23)
REEE Depreciation for the year - (1)
ERRET Transfer from buildings (6) =
BE Disposals 2 =
RA=ZTHEBIFE Accumulated depreciation at 30 June (28) (24)
RAZTHEREFE Net book value at 30 June 1 1

REWEEN-O—AR"FAA=ZTHRZO—RFR
A=1H  BBYNESEREXMLEN [ RREEERT
fEEERARA R ETERMME - FIBREMEIIUR
B REWPR - REVENATFEES T —R—
FToEBER (ZO—HF  AMENTF=BERET)
TROMBGEELSRED - UAFEEFSENR
‘-
DR EETERE
RANA=TBUTHARFEN A FEE

The investment properties were revalued at 30 June 2016 and 2015 by independent, professionally
qualified valuer Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited. The investment properties are located in
Hong Kong. The fair value of the investment properties was HK$1,112 million (2015: HK$983 million)

at the end of the reporting period.

The following table analyses the investment properties measured at fair value, by valuation

method.

Fair value hierarchy
Fair value measurements as at 30 June

2016 2015

BARABE EARAEE

HWASE WASH

Significant Significant

unobservable  unobservable

inputs inputs

BEBT in HK$ million H 7l Level 3 # 7l Level 3
AFEEFE Fair value measurments

REYE Investment properties

- X (F8) - Residential (Hong Kong) 139 154

- B (§8) — Commercial (Hong Kong) 973 829

1,112 983

REMENDFEE  RREVELBYETCET
MRSFHNEREE  UERLEG AEHMEE - It
S FELWENE  UBEREBESHEEENTE
LB - W AEERREYEN AR RRE -
MM EEFH A TR -

The fair values of investment properties were assessed using the direct comparison method whereby
comparisons based on transactions on actual sales of comparable properties have been made.
Comparable properties with similar character, location, size, etc are analysed and carefully weighted
against all respective advantages and disadvantages of the properties in order to arrive at the fair

comparison of values.
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14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (cont.)

For Level 3 properties, the most significant unobservable input is market unit rate, taking account

of location, size and pedestrian flow, etc.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels
as of the date of the event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no changes in valuation techniques during the year.

During the years of 2016 and 2015, there were no transfers of investment properties among the

three levels of fair value hierarchy classifications.

15 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

Details of the joint ventures as of 30 June 2016 are as follows:

BB/ SEMAR S ER

HEAE
Name of entity

Place of business /
country of incorporation

Principal activities

EERAREHMBRA FERR
Authorised and Measurement
paid up capital method

T RFPEREERBEMERAE

China Sports Lottery HKJC
Infotech (Beijing) Co., Ltd”
(“BJ CJV”)

EEESEREES
HKJC Equity Trust Fund

MEEHE

MEEHE

Stellar Performer Global Series

The Cayman Islands

RZO—AREXRA=Z+HAR=-ZO—EFERA=1+H "
EESFA L RHEBRTEERNERA ANESERE
HBHEI AT - RZO—RERZO—RF £
it R BB T EERMERARANEERT S Z
Mo
RARA=1+H &8 GEREEHERERE
EeRESFESHEFENERE LNT :

REARAEME (THE])
The People’s Republic
of China (“PRC”)

The Cayman Islands

REBERR - RlEIIR
[EESEiEEEalie S

information consultancy
RERS
investment in equities
REEBEHES

investment in debt securities

provision of computer technology,
technical training and business

ARB-EZE-1+8Bm &=
Equity

Renminbi (“RMB”)

200.2 million
TER s
n/a Equity
TER s
n/a Equity

As at 30 June 2016 and 2015, the ownership interest of the Group in BJ CJV was 90%. The Group
shared 40% of the results of BJ CJV in 2016 and 2015.

The effective percentages directly held by the Group, the Club and its related entities in Equity
Trust and Bond Trust as of 30 June were as follows:

REES Equity Trust

&% &% Bond Trust

HEET in HK$ million 2016 2015 2016 2015
BERESFE The Hong Kong Jockey Club 47.2% 45.6% 46.8% 45.4%
EEESEREETESR The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust 48.3% 49.2% 49.9% 50.7%
BERESEETRINERGE The Hong Kong Jockey Club
Retirement Benefits Scheme 4.5% 5.2% 3.3% 3.9%
100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
BEBT in HK$ million 2016 2015
+tA—H At 1 July 20,017 18,804
A& Injection 2,324 2,460
L Redemption (1,198) (1,756)
Fiit (&518) /%7 Share of (losses)/profits (550) 815
FrEE 2w/ (B5i8) Share of other comprehensive income/(loss) 564 (309)
B HBE Currency translation differences (21) 3
~A=1+H At 30 June 21,136 20,017

*HEBIRXA

* Unofficial English name




15 §EATIRE (K)
RIEGEATNEEAA=THIENEERREERIRA

15 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (cont.)

A summary of financial information of the joint ventures based on their management or audited

MEHNBERRENT ! accounts as of 30 June is as follows:
2016
bR BB 5 BT
BRAR REES BEBHEES ko)
BJ CJV Equity Trust Bond Trust Total
EmAw EmAw Em AL EmpAL
G Epaad BERASL R L Epaad
Group’s Group’s Group’s Group’s
effective effective effective effective
BEBT in HK$ million 100% interest 100% interest 100% interest 100% interest
iR Income statement
Wi/ (8518) Income/(loss) 333 133 (641) (305) (650) (285) (958) (457)
S Expenses (195) (78) - - - - (195) (78)
e Depreciation (28) (11) - - - - (28) (11)
BN g Interest income 5 2 - - - - 5 2
FEHiE Taxation expense (15) 6) - - - - (15) (6)
BREBRE/ (BE) Surplus/(deficit) after taxation 100 40 (641)  (305) (650) (285) (1,191)  (550)
Hib2m (FiE)/ W Other comprehensive (loss)/income - - (135) 4) 1,247 568 1,112 564
2mEWE/ (F58) #5 Total comprehensive income/(loss) 100 40 (776) (309) 597 283 (79) 14
EEBEX Balance sheet
FREBEE Non-current assets
M - REBEREM Property, plant and equipment 111 81 - - - - 111 81
EERIEEE Deferred tax asset 24 17 - - - - 24 17
A HERKERE Available-for-sale financial assets
[ Equities
EEBLD Listed in Hong Kong - - 1,316 621 - - 1,316 621
= Em Listed overseas - - 21,138 9,977 - - 21,138 9,977
BERES Debt securities
8™ Listed overseas - - - - 16,327 7,634 16,327 7,634
E1 3] Unlisted - - - - 4,628 2,169 4,628 2,169
HEFRENES Funds awaiting investment - - 394 186 585 275 979 461
THESHmMIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 411 188 411 188
MEEE Current assets
HitREEE Other current asset 8 6 - - - - 8 6
THESHmMIA Derivative financial instruments - - 23 11 226 104 249 115
ySE-IEER Short-term deposits 223 163 - - - - 223 163
ReRBEESLEEY Cash and cash equivalents 148 108 - - - - 148 108
MENEELAE Total current assets 379 277 23 1 226 104 628 392
REBEE Current liabilities
FEFBR R R TR U TR IE Creditors and receipts in advance (161) (117) - - - - (161)  (117)
THESRmMIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - (140) (65) (140) (65)
B EEERE Total current financial liabilities
(TEFESR (excluding trade and other
H{th FE{F BRFAFNZE4) payables and provisions) - - - - (140) (65) (140) (65)
FEREBEE Non-current liabilities
THESRmMIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - (486) (222) (486) (222)
353 258 22,871 10,795 21,551 10,083 44,775 21,136
BRESRE Contingency Fund investments - - - 7,726 - 5,499 - 13,225
REREAS Long-term investment portfolios - - - 3,069 - 4,584 - 7,653
- - - 10,795 - 10,083 - 20,878
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15 §EATH/AE (F) 15 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (cont.)
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2015
bR BB 5 BT
BRAR REES BEFES g
BJ CJV Equity Trust Bond Trust Total
SEFEN SEFEN SEEFEN SEIFEN
G Epaad BERASL R L Epaad
Group’s Group’s Group’s Group’s
effective effective effective effective
BEBT in HK$ million 100% interest 100% interest 100% interest 100% interest
iR Income statement
Wz Income 221 125 1,045 476 651 288 1,917 889
S Expenses (135) (55) - - - - (135) (55)
e Depreciation (64) (26) - - - - (64) (26)
B U= Interest income 7 3 - - - - 7 3
FRIEIRR Taxation credit 9 4 - - - - 9 4
RELEEER Surplus after taxation 38 51 1,045 476 651 288 1,734 815
Hih 2w/ (B58) Other comprehensive income/(loss) - - 188 84 (864) (388) (676) (304)
2mEWE/ (F58) #5 Total comprehensive income/(loss) 38 51 1,233 560 (213) (100) 1,058 511
EEBEX Balance sheet
FREBEE Non-current assets
M - REBEREM Property, plant and equipment 113 99 - - - - 113 99
EERIEEE Deferred tax asset 28 25 - - - - 28 25
A HERKERE Available-for-sale financial assets
[ Equities
EEBLD Listed in Hong Kong - - 1,810 826 - - 1,810 826
1w EH Listed overseas - - 19,856 9,064 - - 19,856 9,064
BERES Debt securities
1w EH Listed overseas - - - - 14,729 6,722 14,729 6,722
E1 3] Unlisted - - - - 4,817 2,162 4,817 2,162
HERENES Funds awaiting investment = = 482 220 1,428 635 1,910 855
THESHmMIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 221 101 221 101
MEEE Current assets
HitREEE Other current assets 41 36 - - - - 41 36
THESHmMIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 161 74 161 74
ySE-IEER Short-term deposits 100 88 - - - - 100 88
ReREESLEEY Cash and cash equivalents 179 156 - - - - 179 156
MENEELAE Total current assets 320 280 - - 161 74 481 354
REBEE Current liabilities
T BRA R FE U R IE Creditors and receipts in advance (39) (33) - - - - (39) (33)
fTEEmIA Derivative financial instruments - - (4) ()] (152) (69) (156) (71)
B EEERE Total current financial liabilities
(FEREESK (excluding trade and other
H{th FE{F BRFAFNZE4) payables and provisions) - - @) @) (152) (69) (156) (71)
FEREBEE Non-current liabilities
THESRmMIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - (189) (87) (189) (87)
422 371 22,144 10,108 21,015 9,538 43,581 20,017
BRESRE Contingency Fund investments = = - 7,004 - 4,928 - 11,932
REKREAS Long-term investment portfolios - - - 3,104 - 4,610 - 7,714
- - - 10,108 - 9,538 - 19,646

BEQATNERESIISNERES A METY
EREANZES 2N =+t (ZO—RF : Ao2Z=H%

Nt) - EBRSNMETIHRIBLEFE (Z0O—

HEF  RE) e

The debt securities carried weighted average effective interest rates of 4.37% for the joint ventures
under the Bond Trust (2015: 3.87%). Their weighted average maturities were 7 years (2015: 6 years).



15 EEAERE (F)

15 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (cont.)

REES Equity Trust

&% &% Bond Trust

2016 2015 2016 2015
BTREUTIEEBINE : Underlying investments were denominated
in the following currencies:
ESV United States Dollars (“USD”) 67% 61% 100% 100%
BT Hong Kong Dollars (“HKD”) 7% 9% - -
HEE Pound Sterling (“GBP”) 7% 7% - -
EEE Korean Won (“KWR”) 3% 4% - -
Bz Euro (“EUR”) 2% 2% - -
HibE#s Other currencies 14% 17% - -
100% 100% 100% 100%
SENEEQARMFENITEESMIA Group’s derivative financial instruments in joint ventures
REES Equity Trust
BERESRE REBREHEE
Contingency Fund Long-term investment ol
investments portfolios Total
&E aE &E afE BE afE
BEET in HK$ million Assets  Liabilities Assets  Liabilities Assets  Liabilities
EHNESH Foreign exchange
forward contracts 8 - 3 - 11 -
ZO—R~"EXRA=FH At 30 June 2016 8 - 3 - 11 -
MW : Analysed as:
TRENER D Current 8 - 3 - 11 -
EHNESH Foreign exchange
forward contracts - (1) - 1) - 2
—O—®EXRA=FH At 30 June 2015 - (1) - 1) - )
MW ¢ Analysed as:
TRENER D Current - (1) = (1) = @)
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15 EEAERE (F)

15 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (cont.)

&% E £ Bond Trust
BREESRE RYREEE
Contingency Fund Long-term investment ol
investments portfolios Total
&E aE &E afE &E afE
BEET in HK$ million Assets  Liabilities Assets  Liabilities Assets  Liabilities
EHNESH Foreign exchange
forward contracts 31 (21) 28 (18) 59 (39)
HE Futures 21 (5) 20 (5) 41 (10)
HrE Options 1 (1) 1 (1) 2 2)
=5 Swaps 96 (119) 94 (117) 190 (236)
ZO—REXRA=1H At 30 June 2016 149 (146) 143 (141) 292 (287)
MW ¢ Analysed as:
TRENER D Current 54 (34) 50 (31) 104 (65)
IERENE D Non-current 95 (112) 93 (110) 188 (222)
149 (146) 143 (141) 292  (287)
EHNESH Foreign exchange
forward contracts 9 21) 9 (20) 18 41)
HE Futures 1 7 1 (7 2 (14)
HirE Options 1 (1) 1 (1) 2 ()
=5 Swaps 77 (50) 76 (49) 153 (99)
—O—EHFERA=1+H At 30 June 2015 88 (79) 87 (77) 175 (156)
MW : Analysed as:
RENEB S Current 37 (35) 37 (34) 74 (69)
IERENIB D Non-current 51 (44) 50 (43) 101 (87)
88 (79) 87 (77) 175 (156)

EETERENAFANERYESREANIREE -

16 HREERE

There were no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s interest in the joint ventures.

16 CONTINGENCY FUND INVESTMENTS

BEBT in HK$ million 2016 2015
A ERKEE Available-for-sale financial assets
ES Equities
EEBLm Listed in Hong Kong 1,609 2,386
w8 Em Listed overseas 188 137
1,797 2,523
BERE Alternative investments
L™ Unlisted 5,298 729
HERENES Funds awaiting investment 56 53
EEN Deposits 371 159
7,522 3,464

SEMENERNNETIERFRAES 2Tt
N(ZO—ERF : APZZTHNR) - EEFMIENE
R EFRENESWIREERRE A FEEES -
BTN ERIEFIFHRA=+7x8 (=0
—HF @A) -

The deposits carried weighted average effective interest rates of 0.79% for the Group (2015: 0.46%).
The carrying amounts of the deposits and funds awaiting investment approximated their fair values.
The weighted average maturities of deposits were 26 days for the Group (2015: 4 days).



16 HREERE (F)

16 CONTINGENCY FUND INVESTMENTS (cont.)

2016 2015
ERESREUTIEERTE Contingency Fund investments were denominated
in the following currencies:
ES UsbD 76% 30%
BT HKD 22% 70%
B EUR 2% -
100% 100%
17 REIREAE 17 LONG-TERM INVESTMENT PORTFOLIOS
BEBT in HK$ million 2016 2015
A ERKEE Available-for-sale financial assets
iES Equities
ERELED Listed in Hong Kong 626 1,050
w8 Em Listed overseas 73 60
3 E Unlisted 44 44
743 1,154
BEXFS Debt securities
EEBLD Listed in Hong Kong 4 96
1w/ Em Listed overseas - 1,540
3 EH Unlisted 78 78
82 1,714
BERE Alternative investments
E ik} Unlisted 2,427 5,489
3,252 8,357
HFRENES Funds awaiting investment 22 24
EEN Deposits 763 658
4,037 9,039

SEFNERRESZREFRNNETLSERFIZEAR
PRZEBHEAR(ZO—HF ADZ=ZB=-)FF
MREFRENESWIREEERE N EEMRS
MEEFNFRNMELIHRRAZSH —F (=0
—HE I =F) o

The debt securities and deposits carried weighted average effective interest rates of 0.76% for the
Group (2015: 3.31%). The carrying amounts of the deposits and funds awaiting investment
approximated their fair values. The weighted average maturities of the deposits were 0.1 year for

the Group (2015: 3 years).

2016 2015
REOREASUTIIERINE : Long-term investment portfolios were denominated
in the following currencies:

Epv uUsD 72% 83%
BT HKD 24% 13%
ARHE RMB 4% 2%
/¢ EUR - 2%
100% 100%
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18 REAFERRIE
EHENSETEEERLREEESSMERAR
WL RYELFOFEAES  WEFEREE L
RENEST I FERFHRUESEEE -

18 LONG-TERM PREPAYMENTS

Long-term prepayments mainly included prepayments of rental for the land and property of Beijing
Hong Kong Jockey Club Clubhouse Limited which are amortised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives.

19 EEFRHEE/ (BfE)
F R EFE A B — i E I S A R A IR A T
BHEE/(BE) #EBWT :

19 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)
The movement in deferred income tax assets/(liabilities) during the year without taking into
consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, was as follows:

38

EERIK
BRIBLA
Employee
EEREEE Deferred tax Assets retirement Hth ko)
BEBT in HK$ million benefit cost Others Total
—O—&=%tA—H At 1 July 2015 118 15 133
A/ (H18) W@k Credited/(charged) to income statement 10 (6) 4
RAHMEE RS Credited to other comprehensive income 37 - 37
ZO—R~"EXRA=FH At 30 June 2016 165 9 174
—O—mMEER—H At 1 July 2014 92 18 110
A/ (H18) W@k Credited/(charged) to income statement 10 3) 7
RAHMEE RS Credited to other comprehensive income 16 - 16
—O—®EXRA=FH At 30 June 2015 118 15 133
IEITE
HBREE
Accelerated
EEHEAE Deferred tax liabilities depreciation Hth ko)
BEBT in HK$ million allowances Others Total
—O-®E&+tA—H At 1 July 2015 (450) - (450)
(08)/BfARGEE (Charged)/credited to income statement (124) 21 (103)
ZO—R~"EXRA=FH At 30 June 2016 (574) 21 (553)
—O-mE+A—8 At 1 July 2014 (341) - (341)
NBaw=Ex Charged to income statement (109) - (109)
—O—®EXRA=FH At 30 June 2015 (450) - (450)
2016 2015
BELFEH EEMEH ELEMEBH BEMEH
&E affE &E aE
Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred
income tax income tax wzg income tax income tax e
BEBT in HK$ million assets liabilities Total assets liabilities Total
WE/ (GREH) AIEFE AT ISR Deferred income tax
to be recovered/(settled)
ZR+-@EA% after more than 12 months 123 (441) (318) 79 (366) (287)
R+=BAR within 12 months 51 (112) (61) 54 (84) (30)
174 (553) (379) 133 (450) (817)




20 RBEHES

20 DEBT SECURITIES PORTFOLIO

BEHBT in HK$ million 2016 2015
A ERKEE Available-for-sale financial assets
BEXFS Debt securities
EEBLD Listed in Hong Kong 350 495
8 Em Listed overseas 157 327
EE™ Unlisted - 187
507 1,009

SEMENEREZNMETIERNZATI 2=
B (ZO—RF: BHoZ=H_-=) - KEFfE
WEKHESZNINELIRRSASHEF (ZO—4&
Fi—F)e

The debt securities carried weighted average effective interest rate of 3.27% for the Group (2015:
3.23%). Their weighted average maturities were 0.5 year for the Group (2015: 1 year).

2016 2015
BRFHFESUTIEETE Debt securities portfolios were denominated
in the following currencies:
AR RMB 92% 96%
ESV UsD 8% 4%
100% 100%

21 BERRERRELREMESHEE

21.1 ERREKKIE
EENERRERREREEsZE TR (ZO0—1
F . AIZNT) LB LE  HUHEME R
o ERREWRENRAEEEE N FEBEHEE -

212 HitimoEE

21 LOANS AND RECEIVABLES AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

21.1 Loans and receivables

76% of the loans and receivables were denominated in HKD for the Group (2015: 80%), the rest
of the balances were denominated in other currencies. The carrying amounts of loans and
receivables approximated their fair values.

21.2 Other current assets

BEHBT in HK$ million 2016 2015

HitREEE Other current assets
=78 Inventories 221 223
TR Prepayments 283 147
504 370
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22 THEERMTHE

22 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

BE afE
BEET in HK$ million Assets Liabilities
EHNESH Foreign exchange forward contracts 14 (18)
=5 Swaps 1 (165)
ZO—REXRA=1H At 30 June 2016 15 (183)
MW : Analysed as:
TRENER D Current 15 (48)
IERENIB D Non-current - (135)
15 (183)
EHNESH Foreign exchange forward contracts 21 )
—O—HEAA=+A At 30 June 2015 21 @)
MW ¢ Analysed as:
TRENER D Current 21 3)

23 EHERREERFLEEY

23.1 BEATERX

EENERFRNMETIERINZAE2 2 -5
AN (ZO—HEF B 2=&t=) - KENEH
FRHREEEEAE N FEERS - MENETISH
RH—B=THB (ZO—HF : —FATHEAH) -

23 SHORT-TERM DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

23.1 Short-term deposits

The weighted average effective interest rates on short-term deposits were 1.89% for the Group
(2015: 2.73%). The carrying amounts of short-term deposits approximated their fair values and
their weighted average maturities were 135 days for the Group (2015: 164 days).

2016 2015
EHERUTIEEITE Short-term deposits were denominated
in the following currencies:
Xt UsD 60% 42%
AR RMB 35% 57%
BT HKD 5% 1%
100% 100%




23 EHERRIALRIREZEEY (&)
22RERRELEEY

SEZE B A =6 A UTHERNNEFIGTERFIR
BEAZEHEtHE(ZO—EHF B2 HT
1) c EEEFERNEREEERE A FEEES  mA
MEFEHRAE=+NA (ZO—RF:=+=H) -

23 SHORT-TERM DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (cont.)

23.2 Cash and cash equivalents

The weighted average effective interest rates on deposits with maturities of less than three months
were 0.75% for the Group (2015: 1.07%). The carrying amounts of deposits approximated their
fair values and their weighted average maturities were 29 days for the Group (2015: 23 days).

2016 2015
FMAAR=EAUATHERUATIEETE Deposits with maturities of less than 3 months
were denominated in the following currencies:

BT HKD 68% 61%
AR RMB 18% 25%
E uUsSD 14% 13%
BT AUD - 1%
100% 100%

BE-O—AEXA=tAHL > SFENETHELD
AEGTERRNRTEFOSERERRESLEYE
BRE—THEHEEBT (ZO—&RF = B=FTHH
BB  UARBINE > USPEINESFHRE -
SENRSRRSEBEYEE-_TOE—TFTNE
BEIWETES (ZO—RE  Z+=E—FN\HE
) o WENEHEARRENEEYHE  FEHE
AIFE25 ©

As at 30 June 2016, the Group had cash and cash equivalents amounting to HK$515 million (2015:
HK$325 million) denominated in RMB which were held by certain subsidiaries with bank accounts
operating in the PRC where exchange controls apply.

Cash and cash equivalents included HK$2,418 million of customer funds for the Group (2015:
HK$2,318 million) that were matched by liabilities of an equal value as disclosed in note 25.

24 EHIER 24 SHORT-TERM LOANS

BEBT in HK$ million 2016 2015
BRI ERK Unsecured loans 111 150
L TER RS HRITREBER - AHER - £82  The above were unsecured short-term revolving bank loans with maturities of six months and

AAARZZEN=ZZENZENA=(ZO—EF: @HZ
MEEN—ZHIETMN) - ERNREEEREL A FE
BEEE - BERUARBINE -
FANERFNEZTHALtAESBT (ZO—H4EF:
NEEBT) °

interest rate was between 3.83% and 4.92% per annum (2015: between 4.92% and 5.04% per
annum). The carrying amounts of the loans approximated their fair values. The loans were
denominated in RMB.

The loan interest expense incurred for the year was HK$7 million (2015: HK$8 million).
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25 E5REMEMIRRR

25 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

BEHBT in HK$ million 2016 2015
S EMNFIRR Trade payables 5,114 4,605
Hh e IR R ESTFRIE Other payables and accruals 1,108 1,460

6,222 6,065

SENESENRABE-TOR-—TNAEEEIHN
BERFER (ZO—RF : Zt=F—FNBER
7T) c WERBESFEERERRSEBEYAMEEN
BHASEERESHE  FHEERNE28 - B2 K
HA BN R R BT SRR BRE B EEE A P EEM
5 KENESREMENRIRESTRET - BB
DZNTE(ZO—FF : G2 N\+H) LUETHT
5 HBRUHEME BT -

26 SEEFIETE

Trade payables included HK$2,418 million of customer accounts’ deposits for the Group (2015:
HK$2,318 million). This was offset by an equivalent amount of customer funds held which was
included in cash and cash equivalents as disclosed in note 23. The carrying amounts of the trade
and other payables and accruals approximated their fair values. 87 % of the trade and other payables
and accruals were denominated in HKD for the Group (2015: 84%), the rest of the balances were

denominated in other currencies.

26 DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEME

BEBT in HK$ million 2016 2015
HitBBRIEEFASUKMRRERACHERHN Other liabilities represented pension liabilities of the Group’s Scheme
SEERAERAFERREEENT : recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position

which were determined as follows:
FEEENATER Fair value of Scheme assets (2,507) (2,825)
ANKERRERE Present value of obligation 3,378 3,405
REMBARRERAIRARESFEE Net pension liabilities in the

consolidated statement of financial position 871 580
RERAGEFIRESENREHENT ¢ Reconciliation of the present value of

the defined benefit obligation was as follows:
+tA—H At 1 July 3,405 3,264
HIRESHRENRTRIERA Current service cost net of employee contributions 137 136
B LA Interest cost 49 57
BHEE Remeasurement:
- HEELRFAZS|HNEERE — Actuarial losses due to liability experience 36 31
- AEBEREREBCIBNEEEE — Actuarial losses due to financial assumptions 42 193
- EAO#SHRREB I HNEE RS - Actuarial gains due to demographic assumptions - (32)
EREXTER Actual benefits paid (291) (244)
RAZTHEMNWENRESRE Present value of obligation at 30 June 3,378 3,405
FRFBEEATFEEEBHNOT ! The movement in the fair value of Scheme assets

of the year was as follows:
+tA—H At 1 July 2,825 2,842
FEUWA Interest income 40 50
BHEE Remeasurement:
- FFEEENER (K)/ BRITIRE - Return on Scheme assets (less)/greater than discount rate (146) 95
EEMHR Employer contributions 80 83
EXREF Benefits paid (291) (244)
Bt EEERMANITHRER Administrative expenses paid from Scheme assets (1) (1)
NE=1THWEIEEAFEER Fair value of Scheme assets at 30 June 2,507 2,825




26 SEEFIETE ()

26 DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEME (cont.)

BEBT in HK$ million 2016 2015
ERERFPEERWRBELT ¢ The amounts recognised in the income statement were as follows:

IR BF AR A AR AR Current service cost 137 136
FRERMABNFERSKA Net interest cost on net defined benefit liabilities 8 7
BifBIEERINTERER Administrative expenses paid from Scheme assets 1 1
FFABIRAWAAEE (FHEE11) Total included in staff costs (note 11) 146 144
BEBT in HK$ million 2016 2015

EEEREREINERTEZENT ¢

HEEEREH 5 MNEEEER
E M BRR BB S R ERE
HAO#ZEHRRZ B 5| R EE RS

HBrNELENEEREEER
FFEEENERE/ (B) MIR=E

E2HWEREINERTELE

Remeasurement effects recognised
in the statement of comprehensive income were as follows:

Actuarial losses due to liability experience 36 31
Actuarial losses due to financial assumptions 42 193
Actuarial gains due to demographic assumptions - 32)
Actuarial losses on liabilities arising during period 78 192
Return on Scheme assets less/(greater) than discount rate 146 (95)

Remeasurement effects recognised

in the statement of comprehensive income 224 97
BEBT in HK$ million 2016 2015
EREREZNRERMBA (HEE11) Defined benefit cost recognised in income statement (note 11) 146 144
E2HWRREINETTTEZE Remeasurement effects recognised

in the statement of comprehensive income 224 97
RERBFEA Defined benefit cost 370 241

(a) 5= @7 5T 8 rY 45 Bh 2 46 R [ B 1 ik
AEGRANGEURENERFS  RUEERNK
Bif - ERRBERASNREFHAERETE  aHRE
H—FBMNEFE - REBFFEITERATABK
EE -

RAERATEIRE —EETLTHRY - WIRE (B
SR RETEIRG)) WRESM - £ GaRFlE BT
2 (B%) RO MRETHRAEARRRTE -5
SRSHAEEATENE—EE -

RERERBAGEETZANEREKR  B5EH
BAREREMTENRES (E) » URIERERF
STEEEMAES  REAREEINER - Bt &
BEFEAIZE19% (2011) FARFTHEMEE LR
RER (EABRGBRERREES) REBE145MH
WRIEESER T BEARREERETE -

RERANEHE DELKBETRSE (M) BR
AFIEE ZARBEEERERAFENG
A

(a) Description of Scheme characteristics and associated risks

The Scheme is a defined benefit scheme that provides lump sum benefits based on a multiple of
a member’s final salary and years of service upon the member’s retirement, death, disability or
leaving service. The Scheme has been closed to new employees.

The Scheme was established under a trust arrangement. It is registered under the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance (“ORSQO”), and is an exempted scheme under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes (Exemption) Regulation. The Club is the sole employer participating in
the Scheme.

Based on the relevant clauses of the Trust Deed of the Scheme, the Club may utilise the surplus
of the Scheme, if any, to reduce future employer contributions as recommended by the Scheme’s
actuary. As a result, the asset ceiling under paragraph 64 of HKAS 19 (2011) and the minimum
funding requirements of HK (IFRIC) Interpretation 14 do not apply to the Scheme.

The Scheme is administered by HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited who acts as the
trustee to the Scheme.
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26 SEEFIETE ()

(a) FRERFIFTBIR SR R ABRA E Bk (%)

SERAERANAIMEARZNEIZABUT !

() R & Bz

HREOHRY - AERAABEENQATVEESS

12 ML UERERFEE/ EETENRER

A B BRREARE - EREEBIEHHRE

BR ASSHBERRES -
REBAFHNEERENDEZELHRAZEIR

WENZTRERS  BERRE - ERESFRR

T HWHESURSTEE - ZUENEERBIK T

B2 - BB AR ERFFERENEERE

(ii) FI3 /2 B
REBHFEMAEEEERETSESDRERE
B LUTRRGAE - EmSEFRBRRTE - RER
MEtSIFTREE AL -

(iii) # & /2 B

HARAERFGEIWERET SR - FTUREREF
SEFREEREDNSBRRERENT SHE - EFHS
MERERAS  RERATEMAESESEY
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26 DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEME (cont.)

(a) Description of Scheme characteristics and associated risks (cont.)

The Scheme typically expose the Club to the following key risks:

(i) Investment risk

Strong investment returns tend to increase the fair value of Scheme assets and therefore improve
the Scheme’s financial position as measured by the net defined benefit liability/asset, whilst poor
or negative investment returns tend to weaken the position.

The Scheme assets are invested in a diversified portfolio of equities, fixed income securities and
cash, hedge funds, and multi-assets covering major geographical locations around the world. The
diversification among asset classes and geographical locations helps to reduce the concentration
of risk associated with the Scheme investments.

(ii) Interest rate risk
The DBO is calculated using a discount rate based on market bond yields. A decrease in the bond
yields will increase the DBO.

(iii) Salary risk
The DBO is calculated with reference to the future salaries of members because the Scheme’s
benefits are salary-related. Salary increases that are higher than expected will increase the DBO.

(b) Determination of economic benefit available

As mentioned in note 26 (a), determination of economic benefit available is not required because
the asset ceiling under paragraph 64 of HKAS 19 (2011) and the minimum funding requirements
of HK (IFRIC) Interpretation 14 do not apply to the Scheme.

(c) Scheme asset information

BEHBT in HK$ million 2016 2015

STEEEERE Scheme assets were comprised as follows :

BRE Equities 1,287 51% 1,574 56%

EEEHFRES Fixed income securities and cash 775 31% 848 30%

HhES Hedge funds 330 13% 406 14%

ZREE Multi-assets 116 5% - -
2,508 100% 2,828 100%

REBANFEBREXRMEELIE  SEHHFEE
ERBEY

(d) EXHFHEEBRRBURE ST

The long-term strategic asset allocations of the Scheme are set and reviewed by the Club on a
regular basis.

(d) Significant actuarial assumptions and sensitivity analysis

BEABERERAOT : The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

2016 2015
i ES Discount rate 0.8% 1.5%
REPFSIERILE Long-term salary increase rate 4.0% 4.5%
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26 DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEME (cont.)
(d) Significant actuarial assumptions and sensitivity analysis (cont.)
At 30 June 2016, if the discount rate had been 0.25% higher/lower, with all other variables held
constant, the fair value of the DBO would have decreased/increased by 1.7% and 1.8% respectively
(2015: 1.8%).

At 30 June 2016, if long-term salary had been 0.25% higher/lower, with all other variables held
constant, the fair value of the DBO would have increased/decreased by 1.8% (2015: 1.9%).

(e) Description of funding arrangements and policies

The costs of benefits are jointly funded by the Club and the members (existing Executives of the
Executive Sub-Scheme only). Members’ contributions are based on a fixed percentage of basic
salary as stipulated by the Rules of the Scheme. The Club’s contributions are determined with
reference to the funding valuation carried out by the Scheme’s actuary in accordance with the
ORSO requirements. The last funding valuation of the Scheme was carried out as at 1 July 2015.

(f) Expected contributions
The Group expects to contribute approximately HK$76 million for the year 2017 (2016: HK$79
million).

(9) Maturity profile of DBO

The weighted average duration of the DBO as at 30 June 2016 was 6.6 years (2015: 6.8 years).
To further illustrate the maturity profile of the DBO, the following table sets out the expected

benefit payments (including benefits attributable to estimated future employee service and salary)

from the Scheme based on the adopted actuarial assumptions.

AXN TR EFFE (FEET)

fHE A BT NFES Number of years after valuation date Expected benefit payments in HK$ million
—fF 1 308
—F 2 353
=% 3 338
P& 4 331
hE B 313
RETHF 6to 10 1,278
T—FHULE 11 and over 1,763
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27 f#iE 27 RESERVES
REBMFHE
2Rf#HE  Investment & 5

Accumulated  revaluation Exchange wE
BEBT in HK$ million reserves reserve reserve Total
—O—HZtA—H At 1 July 2015 27,458 1,258 129 28,845
FREL 2 R F RSB Net deficit after taxation (298) - - (298)
ERTHEAES Transfer to Contingency Fund (4,642) (624) - (5,266)
B HBEE Currency translation differences - - (166) (166)

AHHENBEENEGER

AHHENBEEHERBERN
CRBAKEEN D RBARER

BB NB R RAEBNENTE

Frit & N RN E 2 E S

—O—mELA—H
BRI ENTFERE
EHRTEAES
BEETRRES
EWHIBELE

AHHENBEENE GRS

AHHENBEEHERN
CRAKEEH D RBARER

BB NB B RRAEBNENTE

FritaE N RNEMEHEEE

ZO—HFARA=1+H

REERVARE R FEASEEALEEER
FEFFENGRL B 2 TRAEERSRAES B
ERARENEREIEMERNES 2E+RIE -
EEBBLABESEARERMAER - TRNEHERS
B8~ IBINEARRIEF T o
RZO—AREXRNA=TH  ZERBRLRERE
FTHEERL (ZO—HF : IFEAEER)

Deficit on revaluation of
available-for-sale financial assets - (146) - (146)

Realised gains on disposal and impairment
of available-for-sale financial assets

reclassified to income statement - (148) - (148)
- (294) - (294)
Remeasurements of post-employment
benefit obligations, net of tax (187) - - (187)
Share of other comprehensive income
of joint ventures - 230 - 230
At 30 June 2016 22,331 570 (37) 22,864
At 1 July 2014 26,052 1,082 111 27,245
Net surplus after taxation 2,249 = = 2,249
Transfer to Contingency Fund (718) - - (718)
Transfer to Development Fund (44) - - (44)
Currency translation differences - - 18 18

Surplus on revaluation of
available-for-sale financial assets - 388 - 388

Realised gains on disposal of
available-for-sale financial assets

reclassified to income statement - (52) - (52)
- 336 - 336
Remeasurements of post-employment
benefit obligations, net of tax (81) - - (81)
Share of other comprehensive loss
of joint ventures - (160) - (160)
At 30 June 2015 27,458 1,258 129 28,845

The Group is required to allocate at least 10% of its net profit from PRC entities as reported in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the PRC to the statutory reserve fund
until the balance of such fund reaches 50% of its registered capital. The statutory reserve fund
can only be used upon approval by the relevant authority, to offset against accumulated losses,
to increase capital or to expand the business.

As at 30 June 20186, the statutory reserve fund amounted to HK$54 million (2015: HK$45 million).



28 HHRES

28 CONTINGENCY FUND

RESHRE
H&e#8  Investment
Fund  revaluation Feko)
BEBT in HK$ million balance reserve Total
—O—&=%tA—H At 1 July 2015 14,089 1,307 15,396
R e EE Transfer from Reserve 4,642 624 5,266
AEHENKEENERNE Surplus on revaluation of
available-for-sale financial assets - 221 221
A ERKEE N ERBERD Realised gains on disposal and impairment of
EERWREHBERAMEER available-for-sale financial assets reclassified
to income statement - (470) (470)
- (249) (249)
FrideE ARPEMEE KGR Share of other comprehensive income of joint ventures - 334 334
ZO—R~"EXRA=FH At 30 June 2016 18,731 2,016 20,747
—O—mMEER—H At 1 July 2014 13,371 1,273 14,644
ERESRENRE Surplus from Contingency Fund investments 231 - 231
Frib & & A TaF Share of profits of joint ventures 487 - 487
718 - 718
AHHENKEENEHRE Surplus on revaluation of
available-for-sale financial assets - 240 240
A EREE E HERN Realised gains on disposal of available-for-sale
EERNRBH D ERARRER financial assets reclassified to income statement - (57) (57)
- 183 183
it &8 ARMNEMEEEE Share of other comprehensive loss of joint ventures - (149) (149)
—O—REAXNA=T1H At 30 June 2015 14,089 1,307 15,396
20 BERESE 29 DEVELOPMENT FUND
RESHRE
He#8  Investment
Fund  revaluation wE
BEBT in HK$ million balance reserve Total
—O—&=&%tA—H At 1 July 2015 1,185 13 1,198
AHtHEMBEENEREE Deficit on revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets - (13) (13)
A SR K E E HE RBER Realised losses on disposal of available-for-sale
EERBEEFIBERAKEER financial assets reclassified to income statement - 4 4
= 9) 9)
ZO—~"EXRA=FH At 30 June 2016 1,185 4 1,189
—O—MWELA—H At 1 July 2014 1,141 2 1,143
R Transfer 44 - 44
AHHENKEENEHRER Surplus on revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets - 11 11
—O—REAXNA=T1H At 30 June 2015 1,185 13 1,198

BRRESHNIKEE - BIARBIREASZR -

The financial assets of the Development Fund are included in long-term investment portfolios.
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30 FEREMERME
30.1 MR BIRATA B REE X FHRAEERF

30 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
30.1 Reconciliation of surplus before taxation to net cash generated from operations

BEBT in HK$ million 2016 2015
HIBRFLIE AT B Surplus before taxation 266 2,810
it &% ATIER/CaFl) Share of losses/(profits) of joint ventures 550 (815)
HETHHEMBEENRER Surplus on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets (55) (297)
BB s Dividend income (93) (266)
B Y as Interest income (137) (218)
FEXZH Interest expense 7 8
PTESBMIANFEE/ () Net losses/(gains) of derivative financial instruments 215 (13)
HEREMERER Gain on disposal of investment properties (179) (51)
HEME - RERSEMEE Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment - 5
W - RIEBERBMITE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,546 1,230
REYENE Depreciation of investment properties - 1
At EN K EERE Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets 296 -
EEESEH Movement in working capital
BFERD/ (3ghm) Decrease/(increase) in inventories 3 (4)
BRI WKL N Increase in loans and receivables (16) (120)
FEATFRIEE N Increase in prepayments (137) (22)
FEAFBRFRIE A/ CRIA>) Increase/(decrease) in creditors 331 (503)
FEWFRIEE N/ ORA) Increase/(decrease) in receipts in advance 45 (82)
REFEAMFIE (M) /B (Increase)/decrease in long-term prepayments (14) 31
RERFAFTEIE M Increase in defined benefit scheme 67 61
EETBMEENRS Cash generated from operations 2,695 1,755

30.2 HittEXIEREHE
BEZO—A"FAA=THLEFE  KENAHEE
MR EEREEBRR-BATA AEEET - BE=0O
—hFANA=TRLFE  WEEERE -

31 ik

31.1 EARKIE

REHRIAK - CITLANEREEEENERTES
SHEEREEET (ZO—HE +HEBE—FAE
BET) o

31.2 AEKIE
RABA=1TH  REFTICENLEANRE A%
BXNNBREESEENT

30.2 Other significant non-cash item

During the year ended 30 June 2016, the impairment loss of available-for-sale financial assets for
the Group was HK$296 million. For the year ended 30 June 2015, no such impairment was
made.

31 COMMITMENTS

31.1 Capital commitments

Capital expenditures contracted for but not provided for at the end of the reporting period amounted
to HK$3,005 million (2015: HK$1,516 million).

31.2 Lease commitments
As at 30 June, the total future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases were as follows:

BEET in HK$ million 2016 2015

preieal Buildings
R—FR Within one year 99 106
REZZEREFR In the second to fifth year inclusive 100 137
RERFE After the fifth year 25 26
224 269
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32 RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined benefit scheme and a defined contribution scheme. Members of
both schemes are full-time employees of the Group. Both schemes are registered under the
Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance and administered by independent trustees. The
Group also participates in a master trust MPF scheme registered under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The MPF scheme is operated by two independent service providers.

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Club is related to the Trust, The Jockey Club Kau Sai Chau Public Golf Course Limited
(“KSCGC”) and The Jockey Club CPS Limited (“CPS”) as the Club’s Stewards are also the Trustees
of the Trust and the Directors of KSCGC and CPS.

The following transactions were carried out by the Group with the joint ventures and related
parties, except for those disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements:

33.1 Management expenses
During the year, the Group recharged management expenses of HK$102 million (2015: HK$80
million) to the Trust for provision of administrative and support services.

33.2 Key management compensation

The Hong Kong Jockey Club is governed by a Board of Stewards with assistance from a Board of
Management. The Stewards are responsible for the overall policy and direction of the Group and
its funds as a whole, and have the power to effect and carry out the objects of the Group. The
Board of Management is responsible for the operational management of the Group and is overseen
by the Board of Stewards. To align with the disclosures of other major institutions in Hong Kong,
key management, consisting of the Board of Stewards and the Board of Management which
comprises the Chief Executive Officer, ten Executive Directors (2015: nine) and no Director (2015:
one), are detailed on pages 2, 14 and 15 of the Annual Report.

Stewards act in an entirely honorary capacity and have received no emoluments in the year
under review. No Steward had, during or at the end of the year, any material interest in any
transaction, arrangement or contract that is significant in relation to the Group’s business.

The Board of Management’s remuneration consists of the following three components:

(a) Basic compensation
Basic compensation consists of base salary, housing and other allowances and benefits in kind.

(b) Performance-related compensation
This represents discretionary payments depending on individual performance and the performance
of the Group.

(c) Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits relate to the Group’s contribution to retirement funds or gratuities in lieu of
retirement scheme contributions. For purposes of meaningful comparison, gratuities in lieu of
retirement scheme contributions are disclosed on an accrual basis, notwithstanding the contractual
entitlement and date of payment.

EEZEEEXREFRNFHFMMOT : The remuneration for the Board of Management during the year was as follows:

BEBT in HK$ million 2016 2015

HIN < Basic compensation 71 63

BEREH NS Performance-related compensation 30 28

RIREF Retirement benefits 18 15
119 106
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33 HFFEALTZES ()
333 T EEEEBHM (&)

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (cont.)
33.3 Key management compensation (cont.)

(c) BIk#EF (&) (c) Retirement benefits (cont.)

FMARBIMNT The remuneration fell in the following bands:

A Number of individuals 2016 2015
AR Bl Remuneration bands

4,000,001 8T T

4,000,001 87T %5,000,00078 7T
5,000,001 7T % 6,000,00078 7T
6,000,001 8 7T % 7,000,00078 7T
7,000,001 & 7T % 8,000,00078 7T
8,000,001 7T % 9,000,00078 7T
9,000,001;& 7T %= 10,000,000 7T
11,000,001 7T = 12,000,000 7T
12,000,001 7T = 13,000,000 7T
21,000,001 87T £ 22,000,000 7T
22,000,001 87T % 23,000,000 7T

BERISENEEEREEHE

34 MBRMRER

34.1 B A E =

SENREEE (BEYHELEATANRKRE) RZES
FENSBEE  TSRR (EFEERE - REE
KEBRRFEZER)  RBESEBRREERG - &
B RERREEFTE - ETHEERTSRUER
HAEM - B NERBREYEENERBNEETF
TE EEFATELRIE  UEERAEERS
Tk -

SENETEMBEE  BREEFER B85 RER
HithZHERE BESEESIRBYSEESKEE
TR o

SEERIREESNER—REBESSHK
HIREBRERAREEIS]  ETRABREE - RER
HIRIES! > BIERAREET SR —BD - £E
RIESEESHRERE  WENESITERSRIE
Bl METRERBREE -

(a) 15 /E B

() EHmpEE
ERRARERERUMTENRERR S FAE
RHBARREE - Mol KEEBNER ©

EENEERBBEFTEUBT  ETRARY

FTE o BRI HItINERB AR AE
BEM - EESENARKEE - K2 ERAE
IR BBNEBERR  RESPEROESFT
T HBMNEXER  DEEZRMBESZ T
WRERBEFREM

Below HK$4,000,001 1 2
HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,000,000 - 1
HK$5,000,001 to HK$6,000,000 1 -
HK$6,000,001 to HK$7,000,000 1 4
HK$7,000,001 to HK$8,000,000 3 =
HK$8,000,001 to HK$9,000,000 2 1
HK$9,000,001 to HK$10,000,000 3 3
HK$11,000,001 to HK$12,000,000 - 1
HK$12,000,001 to HK$13,000,000 1 =
HK$21,000,001 to HK$22,000,000 =
HK$22,000,001 to HK$23,000,000 1 -
13 13
Key management who left the Club 2 2
11 11

34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

34.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s investment activities including investments in joint ventures, expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, equity price risk and interest rate risk), liquidity
risk and credit risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance. The Group uses derivative financial instruments to manage and reduce certain
risk exposures.

The Group’s major financial assets include deposits, bonds, equities and other alternative
investments, which are managed by the Treasury Department of the Club and external professional
fund managers.

Risk management is carried out by the Treasury Department of the Club under investment policies
and risk management guidelines approved by the Club’s Finance and General Purposes Committe.
Investment constraints and guidelines form an integral part of risk control. Fund-specific restrictions
and guidelines are set according to the investment objectives of each fund to control risks of
the investments.

(a) Market risk

(i) Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk of loss due to adverse movements in foreign exchange rates relating
to investments and transactions denominated in foreign currencies.

The Group’s assets and liabilities are primarily denominated in HKD, USD or RMB. The HKD
is pegged to the USD, and thus foreign exchange exposure is considered as minimal. The
majority of RMB holdings are to meet future committed charitable donations and core operational
requirements in the PRC. The remaining currency exposure arises from globally diversified
investments in equities and bonds.
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34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)

34.1 Financial risk factors (cont.)

(a) Market risk (cont.)

(i) Currency risk (cont.)
The following table indicates that at the end of the reporting period, if the following major
currencies had strengthened/weakened against the HKD by the stated percentages, with all
other variables held constant, the Group’s post-tax surplus would have increased/decreased
as follows:

2016 2015

FRABRBE FRBRFLE

BERR R BERR R

i/ ) 20/ CRid)

EEWIETY Increase/ EEWIRTS Increase/

BALLWIEE (decrease) BALLWIEE (decrease)

#3%/1855  on post-tax 3% /%55  on post-tax

If currency  surplus and If currency  surplus and

strengthened/ equity for strengthened/ equity for

BBET in HK$ million weakened by the year weakened by the year
AR RMB 5% 90/(90) 5% 133/(133)
®#E EUR 5% 2/(2) 5% 6/(6)
HEE GBP 5% 1/(1) 5% (2)/2
H JPY 5% (6)/6 5% 7/(7)
BT AUD 5% - 5% 2/(2)

(i) IREEH R
REE®ERZIERREEEEZ B HREEN
E e HRBREBETHK  ESRERENEE
TR IUEEARZERZERER  SLRE
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RMBATHERF S EBMES T2 AR D BEVELE
FLURE - FIRERAE - BIEBHRTEELRRIES
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(ii) Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk of loss arising from changes in equity prices. The Group is exposed
to equity price risk as the value of its equity investments will decline if equity prices fall. These
investments are classified as available-for-sale financial assets in the consolidated statements
of financial position.

At the end of the reporting period, if the prices of the respective equity instruments had been
5% higher/lower, with all other variables held constant, the Group’s equity would have increased/
decreased by HK$695 million (2015: HK$710 million) as a result of the changes in fair value of
its equity investment.

(iii) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk refers to the risk of loss arising from changes in market interest rates. This can
be further classified into fair value interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value
interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial asset will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows of a financial
asset will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group is exposed to both
fair value and cash flow interest rate risks as the Group has significant investments that are
interest bearing.

At the end of the reporting period, since interest rates are essentially at close to zero, if there
had been a general increase of 50 basis points in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, the Group’s post-tax surplus for the year would have been HK$45 million higher (2015:
HK$51 million). The Group’s equity would have been approximately HK$213 million lower (2015:
HK$189 million) in response to the general increase in interest rates.

The Group controls and monitors market risk through strategic asset allocation and the investment
benchmarks set for the funds. Currency risk is contained by monitoring the non-HKD/USD/RMB
exposure. Currency exposure arising from the net assets of the Group’s China operations is
managed primarily through forward contracts and borrowings denominated in RMB. Equity price
risk is mitigated by adopting benchmarks that are diversified globally, by sectors and by securities.
Interest rate risk is controlled through benchmark duration guidelines and by investing across a
spectrum of fixed and floating rate instruments.
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34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)

34.1 Financial risk factors (cont.)

(b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that available funds may not be sufficient to meet obligations as they
fall due. In addition, the Group may not be able to liquidate its financial assets at a price close to
fair value within a short period of time.

To ensure sufficient liquidity to meet liabilities and the ability to raise funds to meet exceptional
needs, the Group maintains sufficient cash and marketable securities and invests primarily in liquid
financial markets and instruments.

The Group also employs projected cash flow analysis to manage liquidity risk by forecasting the
amount of cash required and monitoring the working capital of the Group to ensure that all liabilities
due and known funding requirements can be met.

The non-derivative financial liabilities and net-settled derivative financial liabilities of the Group
as at 30 June are analysed into relevant maturity buckets based on their contractual maturity dates.
The amounts disclosed in the table below are the contractual undiscounted cash flows:

2016 2015
ZEARUT =@EAE—F =EAFUT =EAZ—%F
Upto >3 months —FHE fek) Upto >3 months —FHE ko)
BEBT in HK$ million 3 months to1year Over 1 year Total 3 months to1year Over1year Total
FOTEBBERE Non-derivative
financial liabilities

THEER Short-term loans 111 - - 111 150 - - 150

FEATBRFR Creditors 5,630 503 - 6,133 5,407 553 = 5,960
LURBEELEN Net-settled derivative

PTERBEE financial liabilities 28 18 387 433 26 5 87 118

5,769 521 387 6,677 5,683 558 87 6,228

RZO—R"EARA=TH  SEMFENAFTRED
NEGHREREEBELEAN\THE—T-8S
T (ZO—HE  XTAEBENTLEEBT) - T
HEFEZ-O—~"FAA=THLEER=O—HEX
A=tTHLENAFREHRMNESHIEL ST - BLS
NG IRBRELEE - WIREBRTENEE A E S B
PRAARI - TRABEENRBEASHRITERSRE -
AR E MIBAMR R FTHIMEREEE (BHE) RE -

As at 30 June 2016, the maximum gross notional value of outstanding foreign exchange forward
contracts held by the Group was HK$8,412 million (2015: HK$6,987 million). The table below
analyses the Group’s outstanding foreign exchange forward contracts as at 30 June 2016 and
2015 that would be settled on a gross basis into relevant maturity buckets based on their remaining
contractual maturity dates. The amounts disclosed in the table are contractual undiscounted cash
flows, which are different from the carrying amounts (i.e. market values) in the consolidated
statements of financial position.

2016 2015
Z@EARUAT =EAZE—F =BASUT =@AZE—F

Upto >3 months —FHE FLk) Upto >3 months —FHE ko)

BEBT in HK$ million 3 months to1year Over1 year Total 3 months to1year Over1year Total
EHNESH Foreign exchange

forward contracts
piitesl Outflows (7,596) (746) (70) (8,412) (5,974) (1,003) (10) (6,987)
A Inflows 7,623 746 70 8,439 5,948 1,022 10 6,980
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34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)

34.1 Financial risk factors (cont.)

(c) Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk since a borrower or a counterparty may not be able or willing
to perform its contractual obligations in full when due. It arises mainly from the Group’s deposit
placements, debt securities and derivative transactions.

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by rigorously selecting the counterparties and by
diversification. Deposits are only placed with financial institutions with good credit standing. Credit
limits are established to control the overall exposure to each authorised counterparty based on its
credit ratings and financial strength. Counterparty credit exposures are measured according to the
risk nature of financial products involved in the transaction.

(i) Exposure to credit risk
As at 30 June 2016 and 2015, the Group’s and Club’s maximum exposure to the credit risk of
financial assets excluding cash on hand as defined in note 2.9 approximated their carrying
amounts in the consolidated statements of financial position.

(ii) Financial assets that were past due but not impaired
As at 30 June 2016, the trade receivables included in loans and receivables that were past due
but not determined to be impaired were HK$21 million for the Group (2015: HK$76 million). The
overall impact of trade receivables on the consolidated financial statements is insignificant
because the Group’s principal businesses are transacted in cash with customers.

34.2 Capital risk management
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going
concern in order to
— provide a variety of world-class sporting entertainment to the community, while making
contributions in the form of duties, taxes and charitable donations, and
— support the Group’s stability and growth.
The Group monitors its capital which is same as the total equity shown in its consolidated
statement of financial position to ensure an appropriate level of return is made to the community
in the form of donations through the Trust.

34.3 Fair value estimation

HKFRS 13 requires disclosure for assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value by level of
the following fair value measurement hierarchy, which is categorised based on the lowest level of
input that is significant to that fair value measurement.

Level 1: fair values measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets and liabilities.

Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in active markets for similar assets and liabilities,
or using valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or indirectly based
on observable market data.

Level 3: fair values measured using valuation techniques (e.g. discounted cash flow analysis) in
which any significant input is not based on observable market data.
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34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)

34.3 Fair value estimation (cont.)

A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency, and those prices represent
actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

The fair values of Level 2 financial assets and liabilities have been determined based on quotes
from market makers or alternative pricing sources supported by observable inputs. The most
significant input is market interest rates.

The financial assets classified as Level 3 and presented in the table consist mainly of alternative
investments that are not traded in an active market. These have been valued based on information
derived from individual fund reports, or audited reports received from respective fund managers
and considering other relevant factors if deemed necessary.

(a) The following tables present the Group’s financial assets and liabilities that were measured
at fair value as at 30 June. See note 14 for disclosures of fair value measurement of the
investment properties.

2016 2015
FER| Al 2 &5l 3 k| FEER| il 2 &5l 3 k)
BEBT in HK$ million Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BE Assets
ERESKRE Contingency Fund
investments
AR EMEEE Available-for-sale
financial assets
BRE Equities 1,797 - - 1,797 2,523 - - 2,523
SERE Alternative investments - - 5,298 5,298 = = 729 729
REKREAS Long-term investment
portfolios
AR EMEEE Available-for-sale
financial assets
BRE Equities 699 - 44 743 1,110 - 44 1,154
EEES Debt securities 82 - - 82 230 1,484 - 1,714
BERE Alternative investments - - 2,427 2,427 = = 5,489 5,489
BEEHES Debt securities portfolio
AR EMEEE Available-for-sale
financial assets
BEHE S Debt securities 507 - - 507 1,009 = - 1,009
Hithig & Other investments
TEEmMIA Derivative financial
instruments - (168) - (168) - 18 - 18
3,085 (168) 7,769 10,686 4,872 1,502 6,262 12,636

KENBRERNEBRNBAABRBLREE
B - BRAFEESERBINEAREL -
RZO—XRERZO—LF  EEE=FEQFE
{ERT AR Bl A o

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfer into and out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date
of the event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

During the years of 2016 and 2015, there were no transfers between the three levels of fair value
hierarchy classifications for the Group.



34 MFEERE ()

34.3 A REEME ()

(b) RIFRASHI R EAE L FREENFEHEERE
R EBMT -

34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)

34.3 Fair value estimation (cont.)

(b) The movements of the Group’s balance of the assets and liabilities measured at fair value

based on Level 3 were as follows:

BEBT in HK$ million 2016 2015
+tA—H At 1 July 6,262 5,693
EUTHRBRNRE/ (F518) B8 Total gains/(losses) recognised in
LVEnE. Income statement 127 34
2HENEE Statement of comprehensive income (48) 366
BA Purchases 1,789 560
HE Sales (361) (391)
~A=1+H At 30 June 7,769 6,262
FRFTARSERIEIERFIRER Total gains for the year included in income statement and
REBREAS BB LEEE presented in surplus from securities investments and
long-term investment portfolios 127 34

EBBRSANEEREENFATARER
WHERSRERRIKREASBERIINSEAE

(c) ZO—AREAA=Z+HRZO—FZENAZF
B & s ERAN2AAE9 2 FEEFE ARG E IR
ANSEUT :

Total gains for the year included in income statement for assets
and liabilities held at the end of the reporting period and
presented in surplus from securities investments and

long-term investment portfolios

(c) The valuation technique and inputs used in the fair value measurements within Level 2 as at

30 June 2016 and 2015 were as follows:

f-tic] fRERTS ERBASH
Description Valuation technique Significant inputs
B ERE/EE
Financial assets/liabilities
BHESEH FRAERE IR
Forward contracts on bonds Discounted cash flow Discount rate
EHMNESH FRAERE ABRER
Foreign exchange forward contracts Discounted cash flow Observable exchange rates
HitE MO - EEERR X - RERRKIE
Options Black-Scholes model Exchange rates, interest rates and volatility levels
=5 FRAERE ABRER - RERIEHE
Swaps Discounted cash flow Observable exchange rates, interest rates and

swap rates
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34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)
34.3 Fair value estimation (cont.)
(d) Additional information about fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs

within Level 3 as at 30 June 2016 and 2015 were as follows:

BANSEABHEIIEFEIT :

Ehic) fEERHTS BERELEERASH 1B (IREF19)

Description Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs Range (weighted average)

MREE/8&

Financial assets/liabilities
EEESRE EEFE" i i
Real estate fund investments Net asset value* n/a n/a
REREESRE EEFE" i i
Private equity fund investments Net asset value* n/a n/a
HAHAESRE EEFE" i i
Hedge fund investments Net asset value* n/a n/a
ZREERE EEFE" EA TEA
Multi-assets investments Net asset value* n/a n/a

ELRBIIBBAUHRALFEFRTSETE
B - BB RANEERESE SRR AR
ESHENEBRRENERAABERSELE
HMEETEE  KERHMREEFERRSRE
fOATAEE -

e RZO—ANENA=ZF+HRZO—FENA=F
it fEFFEI B ol B L 2 P BB SIAR -

*

The investments classified as level 3 and presented in the table above are not traded in an active
market. These have been valued based on information derived from individual fund reports, or
audited reports received from respective fund managers and considering other relevant factors if
deemed necessary. The Group has determined that the reported net asset values represent a fair

value of the captioned investments.

(e) At 30 June 2016 and 2015, no non-financial assets or liabilities were carried at fair value.



35 BEMBRARRFEES

35 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF

THE CLUB
BEMBMRAR Statement of financial position of the Club
AA=+A at 30 June
BEBT in HK$ million FfizF Note 2016 2015
FERBEE Non-current assets
M - REREM Property, plant and equipment 8,084 7,481
REYE Investment properties 1 1
MBARIRE Investments in subsidiaries 1,117 1,140
EENTRE Investments in joint ventures 15,787 14,529
HRESRE Contingency Fund investments 7,522 3,464
REREAS Long-term investment portfolios 2,789 6,295
REFFENTIE Long-term prepayment 67 =
35,367 32,910
MENEE Current assets
BRERES Debt securities portfolio 507 1,009
BB AR EMNER Loans to subsidiaries 1,676 1,676
Bk EWRFE Loans and receivables 272 271
HiRBEE Other current assets 239 252
FEWEHEA R HRIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 2,050 1,827
TESmMIA Derivative financial instruments 13 21
EEER Short-term deposits 1,966 1,577
ReRBEESLEEY Cash and cash equivalents 4,012 4,292
10,735 10,925
mEAE Current liabilities
B 5 R HMENIR Trade and other payables (4,233) (4,210)
FE R IE Receipts in advance (111) (106)
FEF B A R RYFRIE Amounts due to subsidiaries (5,482) (5,185)
TEAEHAE Current income tax liabilities (46) (33)
PTEEmMIA Derivative financial instruments (16) 3)
(9,888) (9,537)
MENEEFE Net current assets 847 1,388
FERBAE Non-current liabilities
BEFMSHAR Deferred income tax liabilities (308) (237)
RERFIFTE Defined benefit scheme (871) (580)
(1,179) (817)
35,035 33,481
& Reserves 35 (a) 17,278 21,111
ERES Contingency Fund 35 (b) 17,757 12,370
ERAE Total equity 35,035 33,481
£ Simon SO Ip
EHR Anthony W K Chow
Ak Stewards

57



58

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 5 3% % Bit &

35 BEMBRARRBERS (F)

(a) BEMREED

35 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF

THE CLUB (cont.)
(a) Reserve movement of the Club

REEFHE
2Rf#fE  Investment
Accumulated  revaluation kol
BEBT in HK$ million reserves reserve Total
—O—&=%tA—H At 1 July 2015 20,306 805 21,111
MRBIB A FEERER Net surplus after taxation 2,157 - 2,157
ERTHEAES Transfer to Contingency Fund (5,012) (624) (5,636)
AHHENKEENEHER Deficit on revaluation of available-for-sale
financial assets - (146) (146)
A ERKEE N ERBERD Realised gains on disposal and impairment
EERWREHBERAMEER of available-for-sale reclassified
to income statement - (21) (21)
- (167) (167)
BRI E BRI R ENEBNENAE Remeasurements of post-employment
benefit obligations, net of tax (187) - (187)
—O—~EXAZ+H At 30 June 2016 17,264 14 17,278
—O—mMEER—H At 1 July 2014 19,814 459 20,273
MRBIB A FEERER Net surplus after taxation 804 - 804
ERTHEAES Transfer to Contingency Fund (231) - (231)
AHHENKEENEHRER Surplus on revaluation of available-for-sale
financial assets = 398 398
A SR E E HE R Realised gains on disposal of available-for-sale
EERNRBH D ERARER financial assets reclassified to income statement - (52) (52)
- 346 346
BRI E BRI R ENEBNENAE Remeasurements of post-employment
benefit obligations, net of tax (81) = (81)
—O—EHFERA=1+H At 30 June 2015 20,306 805 21,111




35 BEMBRARRBERS (F)

(b) FERREEEH

35 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF

THE CLUB (cont.)
(b) Contingency Fund movement of the Club

REEFHE
H&e#8  Investment
Fund  revaluation wE
BEBT in HK$ million balance reserve Total
—O—&=%tA—H At 1 July 2015 11,906 464 12,370
ERAEE Transfer from Reserve 5,012 624 5,636
AHHENKEENEHRE Surplus on revaluation of available-for-sale
financial assets - 221 221
A ERKEE N ERBERD Realised gains on disposal and impairment of
EERWREHBERAMEER available-for-sale financial assets reclassified
to income statement - (470) (470)
- (249) (249)
ZO—R~"EXRA=FH At 30 June 2016 16,918 839 17,757
—O—mMEER—H At 1 July 2014 11,675 281 11,956
ERESRENRE Surplus from Contingency Fund investments 231 - 231
AHHENKEENEHRE Surplus on revaluation of available-for-sale
financial assets - 240 240
A EREE E HERN Realised gains on disposal of available-for-sale
EERNRBH D ERARER financial assets reclassified to income statement - (57) (57)
- 183 183
—O—®EXRA=FH At 30 June 2015 11,906 464 12,370
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FEBAE
RZO—A"FEARA=ZTH  FSENTEMBLARERE
FERENEREDL
TEEY ERARMBEBRA/ EHES B G
LEBAMKY  FE2EHEN
BROBRAE] :
EEEEEREEERARA REBFEYEY —fEBT 100
BERERREEERLA KRBT ER =BT 100
EREERFERAA RERNEFRSHEE —BBBT 100
ETEREEHARAA" EEEEEEYENHERELEIE —BET 100
BEERESE (K8) BRAA" ERETRABRGFEMNEEA =t#Ex 100
BBREERA EEEERBENER —TEBR 100
HAREEEEERAR BEEENERREERA R FTERENER —8ET 100
EREEEBARERLR WEEKEE — &8 100
EREEEBAR (FE) BRAF BESERANEERE HEERT 100
BE2REHNIERARAF -
BEBESE (BE) ARAR" REBBESSREENEENRBAR 100
BELREEEREMARAANKRE
TEHENRRFEZMAT -
BE2EHFANIMELRBRAT :
TtREBEEEMERLA S EEEE BN HERLRE ARTEEEER 100
ERBEREERMFAERARAT TR I BARE A 2 BRAF RV R B 2% IR R R AR —FEBER 100
BMNEBEESESIRERAR TEf LB R K B HIERR ARE+HENTET 100
RYIBREERIMFEEBRAT TR I BARE A 2 BRAF A BRI B 2% I R R RS ZHBER 100

REARBZEAFHRABRAL  FENESTEARKEIFSETHELAANES - SEBETSHEARNEMESERE BEXALE  ARNXELE - BER
S BHEREL Ezﬁﬂﬁi FMELL ~ ERBILE - BRMEE - BRELE - TEMELE - RZAR%LE  Martin Thomas Purbrick 84 (H=O—RF
—B=+EHAR)  WMUBEE (HZO—RE-A—HR)  BEPLL (H-O—HEFLtA—HBEZ=-O—HFNA+IMH) * Stephen Arrowsmith £ 4
(EZ=0— .’EL¢‘HEJ—E| &* EBAE (EEZO—A~EZA—H) -

*HEITHXA



SUBSIDIARIES
The following is a list of the Club’s principal subsidiaries at 30 June 2016:

Effective percentage
Issued and fully paid up held by the Club

Principal activities share capital / registered capital Directly Indirectly

Incorporated in Hong Kong, limited
by share capital and wholly owned:

HKJC Horse Race Betting Limited operates the horse race betting business HK$200,000,000 100

HKJC Football Betting Limited operates the football betting business HK$300,000,000 100

HKJC Lotteries Limited operates the Mark Six lottery business HK$1,000,000 100

The Jockey Club Membership manages Members’ social and HK$100 100
Services Limited recreational facilities

The Hong Kong Jockey Club acts as administrator for staff retirement HK$20 100
(Managers) Limited benefits scheme

HKJC Racing Club Limited manages the Racing Club’s operations HK$10,000,000 100

The Racing Club manages the HKJC Racing Club Limited’s HK$10,000 100
Horse Management Limited horse related activities

HKJC Business Ventures Limited inactive HK$100,000,000 100

HKJC Business Ventures holds the equity interests of the Group’s HK$500,000,000 100
(China) Limited business ventures in China

Limited by guarantee and

wholly controlled:

The Hong Kong Jockey Club acts as nominee for selected projects and - 100
(Charities) Limited holds investments in Beijing Hong Kong

Jockey Club Clubhouse Limited, on behalf
of The Hong Kong Jockey Club

Established in The People’s Republic

of China, limited by registered capital

and wholly owned:

Beijing Hong Kong Jockey Club manages Members’ social and US$65,000,000 100
Clubhouse Limited* recreational facilities

Beijing HKJC Technology provides computer hardware and software US$10,000,000 100
Development Limited* technology development and consulting services

Guangzhou HKJC Race Horse constructs and operates horse training facilities RMB1,540,000,000 100
Training Limited* in Conghua

Shenzhen HKJC Technology provides computer hardware and software US$3,000,000 100

Development Limited* technology development and consulting services

During the year and up to the date of this report, the Stewards are also directors in certain subsidiaries of the Club. Other directors of the Club’s
subsidiaries include: Mr Winfried Engelbrecht-Bresges, Mr Chow Ding Man, Mr Christoph Ganswindt, Dr Gene W W Tsoi, Dr George Mok Yuen Chee,
Ms Gloria Y M Wong, Mr Herbert Tsoi Hak Kong, Mr Julian Chow Kai Wo, Mr Kim K W Mak, Mr Lee Hock Ee, Mr Richard C K Cheung, Mr Martin Thomas
Purbrick (from 25 January 2016), Mr Anthony Brian Kelly (from 1 February 2016), Ms Philana W Y Poon (from 1 July 2015 until 14 August 2015),
Mr Stephen Arrowsmith (until 2 October 2015) and Mr William A Nader (until 1 February 2016).

* Unofficial English name
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PROFORMA CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT FOR FULL RACING SEASON

HEEXEEFHFEWER
BEBT in HK$ million 2016* 2015*
ESHHE Number of race meetings 83 83
i EEE LA Amounts wagered by local customers 198,008 191,310
ESR ot s ERIIMNOEEEE Amounts of non-local bets placed by commingling partners 3,477 2,644
REHEE Total amounts wagered 201,485 193,954
EEREFWA Betting and lottery revenue 32,474 31,629
EEBRESELH Betting and lottery duty (20,222) (19,839)
RIRFIMBEFHE Payment to racing jurisdictions outside Hong Kong (47) (49)
REES Lotteries Fund (1,282) (1,167)
R REE Net margin and commission 10,923 10,574
Hg A Other revenue 3,325 3,213
14,248 13,787
R A Operating costs (9,627) (9,000)
BEFEIESHTE Donations to the Trust (3,500) (3,500)
RERE Operating surplus 1,121 1,287
FRA Bk Interest income from deposits 109 156
BERERRHREAEGH (FB)/ Btk (Deficit)/surplus from securities investments and
long-term investment portfolios (378) 407
BERESKREN (BB)/ Btk (Deficit)/surplus from Contingency Fund investments (67) 231
BisE A Finance costs (7) (8)
(343) 786
FHEE&E AT (BE)/ &F Share of (losses)/profits of joint ventures (550) 815
HIBRFLIE AT B Surplus before taxation 228 2,888
g Taxation (559) (570)
BREERFEE (B5R)/ Bt Net (deficit)/surplus after taxation (331) 2,318

ESHETRERE -

* Refer to note 1 on page 15.




SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS
EBEME

EEEREEER THE HONG KONG JOCKEY CLUB GROUP
EBERITERNE RACING AND BETTING FACILITIES
HEBT in HK$ million 2016* 2015* 2014* 2013* 2012"
ESHHE Number of race meetings 83 83 83 83 83
iR BEERTEE™ Amount wagered by

local customers on horse races™ 102,665 105,281 101,818 93,956 85,637
i BFEEE S RE Horse race betting dividends and

rebates on local bets (86,026) (88,419) (85,656) (78,797) (71,723)
i B FIEEIRA Horse race betting revenue on local bets 16,639 16,862 16,162 15,159 13,914
NI E R Horse race betting duty on local bets™* (12,134) (12,300) (11,783) (11,045) (10,125)
A IOE SR T It HAE Payment to racing jurisdictions

outside Hong Kong on local bets (47) (49) (36) (26) (24)
At B S ALR Horse race betting net margin

on local bets 4,458 4,513 4,343 4,088 3,765
BIRIZFHEEE Amount wagered on football 86,795 78,249 62,197 50,606 47,285
BIREBEELE Football betting dividends (74,892) (67,061) (52,435) (42,193) (39,404)
EEREBERA Football betting revenue 11,903 11,188 9,762 8,413 7,881
BBIEEH Football betting duty (5,951) (5,594) (4,881) (4,207) (3,940)
BIREEAF Football betting net margin 5,952 5,594 4,881 4,206 3,941
RERFBEE Amount wagered on lottery 8,548 7,780 7,910 7,627 7,693
RERE Lottery prizes (4,616)  (4,201)  (4,271)  (4,119)  (4,154)
REWA Lottery revenue 3,932 3,579 3,639 3,508 3,539
BHBYB Lottery duty 2,137) (1,945 (1,977) (1,906) (1,923
BEES Lotteries Fund (1,282) (1,167) (1,187)  (1,144)  (1,154)
R"EEL Lottery commission 513 467 475 458 462
HFRA Other net revenue

(FIRREEWERER) (excluding gain on sale of properties) 1,515 1,472 1,269 1,210 1,050

PRl Total operating income 12,438 12,046 10,968 9,962 9,218
BELERAR Direct operating costs (6,474) (6,132)  (5,765)  (5,424)  (4,921)
IEIBA Miscellaneous donations (29) (60) 91) (118) (279)
e - # REREEXEH Depreciation, amortisation, impairment

and expensed project costs (1,493) (1,202) (1,074) (890) (757)
MBI PR AR Total operating costs (7,996)  (7,394) (6,930) (6,432) (5,957)
RERE Operating surplus 4,442 4,652 4,038 3,530 3,261
B8 Taxation (538) (522) (704) (416) @11)
HIRBIIERNEERER Operating surplus after taxation 3,904 4,130 3,334 3,114 2,850
BASSELONEIRERS Unclaimed prizes transferred to

the Snowball Pool 108 75 77 61 91

L OENRBIRER AR ARGBHRE
EEE - HEVREWRE  REERAER
TEREESRERESAMNKEE
Bfh o

" EEREUBESR - *

The above figures represent the operating surplus after taxation and before donations to the Trust, gain on sale
of properties, investment returns and transfer to Contingency Fund and Development Fund.

Financial data is for full seasons.
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SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS ¥ # %

EHEEREEEE (&) THE HONG KONG JOCKEY CLUB GROUP
EE RN (4) RACING AND BETTING FACILITIES (cont.)
HEBT in HK$ million 2016" 2015* 2014* 2013* 2012"
= BEBYIRTHELE ** Total amount wagered on horse races 106,142 107,925 101,970 93,956 86,117
W EEENEEEN Less: amount of non-local bets placed by
BESEURIMIEEEE commingling partners on horse races (3,477)  (2,644) (152) - (480)
RiEEESEERIEE Amount wagered by
local customers on horse races 102,665 105,281 101,818 93,956 85,637
o BEEEBARE > Total horse race betting duty 12,134 12,300 11,783 11,045 10,159
W ESELEEE Less: horse race betting duty of non-local bets
BN B IEELE placed by commingling partners - - - - (34)
iR BEFEEHR Horse race betting duty by
local customers 12,134 12,300 11,783 11,045 10,125
EXNEEEEHEMAT THE JOCKEY CLUB MEMBERSHIP SERVICES LIMITED
EERRE MEMBERSHIP FACILITIES
HEBT in HK$ million 2016" 2015* 2014* 2013* 2012"
Wiz Income
e Membership subscriptions 282 263 253 233 217
BE SERSEERE Members’ entrance and qualification fees 114 104 106 130 130
BEREBEE Catering deficit (41) 27) (37) (30) (23)
HibFFBEREK W= Other non-catering income 45 50 46 44 39
400 390 368 377 363
SEEKEETHREY Direct membership administration costs (309) (305) (284) (284) (267)
MEREEXSH Depreciation and expensed project costs (66) (76) (80) (88) (91)
(375) (381) (364) (872) (358)
RERE Operating surplus 25 9 4 5 5
85 (&i18)/ Bk Financial (deficit)/surplus (188) 40 52 51 26
BREAT (B518) / Btk (Deficit)/surplus before taxation (163) 49 56 56 31

Fr BERESSEEBARARCITLANRERE
X BNRAFEETRAEER SIS METERM
AENFIRER - TAEERMTANFSHE—RATH
BERBRLT (ZO—HF ! £) RESAREHEN
MNAFEEZS WS BREEFRANBBEE -

RZO—AREARA=ZTH EFSTEEKER
RAFEERTN\ELTEHEEERT (ZO—HF:
“HRETF-EEBT)  BEUE  RERSIMZ
B=FT=-g8EXT (ZO—IF: ZBtTtEEE
) REREEST-ROUFNEEER (Z0—
BE A ZR/ATERR) RBEELENTEE
BAERT (ZO—AF  tE=FTLtHEER)  BEH*
RBEE-—R=FTAEEERT (ZO—HF &) K
RBEE-RETHEEET (ZO—HF: ZfF—
FThEEBERT) -

" EEREUBESR -

During the year, The Jockey Club Membership Services Limited entered into interest rate swap
contracts with the objective of hedging against the interest rate exposure of a loan which is planned
to be drawn for funding of the Happy Valley Clubhouse extension. Net losses of derivative financial
instruments of HK$194 million were incurred (2015: nil), representing change in the fair value of
these interest rate swap contracts, and were included in the financial deficit during the year.

The net assets of The Jockey Club Membership Services Limited at 30 June 2016 were HK$1,874
million (2015: HK$2,051 million), including property, plant and equipment of HK$232 million (2015:
HK$277 million), long-term investment portfolios of HK$1,248 million (2015: HK$1,260 million),
and current assets of HK$784 million (2015: HK$727 million), less non-current liabilities of HK$136
million (2015: nil) and current liabilities of HK$254 million (2015: HK$215 million).

* Financial data is for full seasons.



STATISTICAL SUMMARY
RABFHME

'BE RACING
2016* 2015* 2014* 2013* 2012*
ESHHE Race meetings
HEXRE Day meetings 48 47 45 46 46
RERE Night meetings 35 36 38 37 37
HRE Total number of meetings 83 83 83 83 83
B BEFSH Races on turf 701 675 683 689 689
2 RIRMBEFSH Races on all-weather track 83 102 88 80 80
HRIZE Total number of races 784 777 771 769 769
=u Horses
B HEARE Total runners 9,840 9,755 9,627 9,653 9,704
B —5ESETHE Horses winning 1 race 302 300 269 276 321
BHWSESETHE Horses winning 2 races 134 129 132 132 112
BH=1EEEFTHE Horses winning 3 races 47 44 54 60 46
BH=5U LEEFTHE Horses winning over 3 races 17 20 18 11 20
BHEEFTHA Horses with winnings 500 493 473 479 499
FREBHBESEBANESTHE Horses not winning — placed 419 408 428 425 422
FREBHESTEBEAVESTHE Horses not winning — unplaced 387 380 371 379 380
REHEFTHAE Horses not raced 305 305 318 301 273
Brag Total horse population 1,611 1,586 1,590 1,584 1,574
BRERT Retirements 444 398 440 444 438
BEe Prize money
REBE (BEBT) Total prize money (HK$ million) 1,064 982 890 858 826
Fi5FHES (FBT) Average prize money
per race (HK$’000) 1,357 1,264 1,154 1,115 1,074
BUETHYRS (F8T) Average prize money
per horse (HK$’000) 660 619 560 541 525
FRERSREFT Percentage of horses
HETAHESL winning prize money in the year 61% 62% 62% 61% 63%
FRERSREFT Percentage of individual runners
HHBESTAZE DL winning prize money in the year 75% 76% 77% 75% 76%
FRBEEAREFE AN Percentage of horses recovering
BEZREFEHIL basic costs or more in the year 37% 36% 35% 38% 38%
ESBFEHANBAE (F) Average attendance
per meeting (‘000)
HEH Happy Valley 18.1 17.7 18.2 18.1 17.8
WH Sha Tin 29.3 29.3 28.4 29.6 28.8
ERRIE (BEHET) Total Racing Turnover (HK$ million)
BRIt Standard bets 91,204 92,730 88,301 81,427 74,530
1 RIF Exotic bets 14,149 14,286 12,737 11,796 10,967
B E BE R Fixed odds bets 789 909 932 733 620
#azg Total 106,142 107,925 101,970 93,956 86,117
FREEEHRTER * Racing statistical data is for full seasons.
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STATISTICAL SUMMARY #i &t 85 #E

BA%5 FINANCIAL
HEBET in HK$ million 2016* 2015* 2014* 2013* 2012*
B EEBABR Payments of duty and taxation

to Hong Kong Government
ESHEH Horse race betting duty 12,134 12,300 11,783 11,045 10,159
BHIEEH Football betting duty 5,951 5,594 4,881 4,207 3,940
BB Lottery duty 2137 1,945 1,977 1,906 1,923
FIBHE Profits tax 528 518 707 417 412

20,750 20,357 19,348 17,575 16,434

IREB BBEELARSE Donation in lieu of Entertainments tax*

to The Community Chest of Hong Kong 2 2 2 2 2

*

IRABE — AN FIA — AW -
ERRESESREEBRRENEEA
FREMBEBARS AUTFE=
OO=#=A=+-A ' RAMME=
O-NF=A=+-A8 -

# Entertainments tax was abolished with effect from 1 April 1993. The Club agreed to donate sums equivalent
to entertainments tax on racecourse admission to The Community Chest of Hong Kong for ten years up to 31

March 2003, subsequently extended to 31 March 2018.

== MEMBERSHIP
RAB=+E as at 30 June 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
EREEEZEEEAY Number of Hong Kong
Jockey Club Members
2EEE Full Members 14,736 14,594 14,421 14,292 14,064
2EEE (S) Full Members (S) 188 181 185 185 184
ESRHEMEE Racing and other Members 8,993 8,690 8,339 8,154 8,058
HREEE Absent Members 2,734 2,724 2,726 4,915 4,863
AFEE Corporate Members 189 186 182 180 178
26,3840 26,375 25,853 27,726 27,347
MREEEAN Number of The Racing Club Members
mReEes Racing Club Members 1,071 962 853 747 619
BERESAH Number of Mainland Members
BAEE Individual Members 908 828 768 708 587
AEEE Corporate Members 107 105 100 20 72
28,926 28,270 27,574 29,271 28,625
£EES GROUP EMPLOYEES
RAB=+E as at 30 June 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
el Full-time 6,469 6,101 5,912 5,737 5,545
FRE Part-time 15,793 18,308 18,888 18,427 20,859
FREEEHRTER * Racing statistical data is for full seasons.
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REPORT OF THE TRUSTEES
E2EtARE
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The Trustees have pleasure in submitting their annual report and the audited financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the year, The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust (the “Trust”) was primarily engaged
in supporting charitable organisations and community projects in Hong Kong in accordance with
the Trust Deed.

RESULTS

The results of the Trust for the year are set out in the income statement on page 70. All figures in
the annual report and the audited financial statements are expressed in millions of Hong Kong
dollars, unless otherwise stated.

FUNDS
Movements in funds of the Trust during the year are set out in note 9 to the financial statements.

DONATIONS
During the year, the Trust allocated HK$3,901 million for charitable purposes, as detailed in the
“Donations” section of the report.

TRUSTEES
The Trustees of the Trust are the twelve Stewards of The Hong Kong Jockey Club (the “Club”) as
listed in the “Board of Stewards” section of the report.

AUDITOR
The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.

This report is prepared in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Trustees and is signed for
and on behalf of the Board.

Simon SO Ip
Chairman
22 July 2016



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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TO THE TRUSTEES OF THE HONG KONG JOCKEY CLUB CHARITIES TRUST
(established in Hong Kong)

We have audited the financial statements of The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust (the
“Trust”) set out on pages 70 to 96, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30
June 2016, and the income statement, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in funds and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

TRUSTEES’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Trustees are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust Deed,
and for such internal control as the Trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit and
to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the Trustees, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Trust
as at 30 June 2016, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 22 July 2016
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INCOME STATEMENT
W 5 R

EAES BRES Lt
BEAA=TALEE for the year ended 30 June Capital Fund Allocations Fund Total
HEBT in HK$ million HfzE Note 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
REEEEGERAWELQR Donations from The Hong Kong
(UTHEHE a8E5E5HE]) Jockey Club and its subsidaries
OEEE (“the HKJC Group”) 13.4 - - 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500
HEREN (F5R)/ Btk (Deficit)/surplus on
sale of investments (7) 320 (37) 22 (44) 342
At EN K EERE Impairment of available-for-sale
financial assets (281) - (38) - (319) -
REEREWE Dividend income from investments
- kW — listed 85 97 10 9 95 106
- BERE - alternative investments - 130 - 64 - 194
RE SRS WG Interest income from investments
- kW — listed - - 4 8 4 8
- kLt - unlisted - 2 3 2 3
FRA Bk Interest income from deposits 3 23 31 25 34
TEERMI ANFRE Net gains of derivative
financial instruments 1 - - - 1 -
Friha& AR (EE) /%5 Share of (losses)/profits of
joint ventures 4 (479) 693 177) 159 (656) 852
BAREELERER Forfeited dividends and refunds - - 53 55 53 55
TEEA Management expenses 13.1 - - (102) (81) (102) (81)
BisE A Finance costs - - (39) @ (39) ()
BRIBREHER (Deficit)/surplus before allocation
H BB (B518) / Btk to charitable organisations
and community projects (679) 1,243 3,199 3,768 2,520 5,011
15 R B A VIR A R Previous allocations not utilised - - 342 53 342 53
BRTREMIBR Present value of allocation to
HEHEINERE charitable organisations and
community projects - - (3,789) (3,871) (3,789) (3,871)
BARSWTE (BB)/ Bt Net (deficit)/surplus
transferred to Funds 9 (679) 1,243 (248) (50) (927) 1,193

BRTESHER
HEENRE
HRENTE

BRASHER
HEFTERRIA

Present value of allocation to
charitable organisations and
community projects

Present value impact

Allocation to
charitable organisations
and community projects

(3,789) (3,871)
(112) -

(3,789) (3,871)
(112) -

(3,901) (3,871)

(3,901) (3,871)

FLt+REEATABENMEBEARGEREN—E2  The notes on pages 75 to 96 are an integral part of these financial statements.



STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2HEWER
EAES BRES Lt
BEAA=TALFE for the year ended 30 June Capital Fund Allocations Fund Total
HEBT in HK$ million K Note 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
R (F18)/ B Net (deficit)/surplus (679) 1,243 (248) (50) (927) 1,193
Htt2mE (F58) / ks Other comprehensive (loss)/income
HBWREEH D EHEA Items that may be reclassified
R HIEE subsequently to
income statement
AEHENKERE Available-for-sale
financial assets
BEZE Change in value 9 (496) 390 (57) 41 (553) 431
Frit&E AREMEE Share of other comprehensive
W/ (B518) income/(loss) of joint ventures 4 252 (206) 272 (144) 524 (350)
AEEHMER (BE)/ WE Other comprehensive
(loss)/income for the year (244) 184 215 (103) (29) 81
AEEZE (BE)/ WEEE Total comprehensive
(loss)/income for the year (923) 1,427 (33) (153) (956) 1,274

FLt+REEATABENMEBEARGEREN—E2  The notes on pages 75 to 96 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

MBRRAR
ERES BRES wzg
~B=+H at 30 June Capital Fund Allocations Fund Total
BEHBT in HK$ million 3 Note 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
FERBEE Non-current assets
EENTRE Investments in joint ventures 4 16,556 16,845 5,235 4,699 21,791 21,544
RERE Long-term investments 5 9,317 9,951 - - 9,317 9,951
Bk EWFIE Loans and receivables - - 106 43 106 43
25,873 26,796 5,341 4,742 31,214 31,538
MENEE Current assets
AUEZEEENRE Investments held to
fund charitable projects 6 - - 2,207 2,460 2,207 2,460
Bk EWRFE Loans and receivables 16 12 86 87 102 99
PTEEmMIA Derivative financial instruments 10 1 - 4 - 5 -
FEEE BRI EWERR Inter-fund receivable 9.1 - 5 500 - - -
ySEEER Short-term deposits 7 - - 3,778 1,088 3,778 1,088
ReRBEESLEEY Cash and cash equivalents 7 - - 1,418 3,354 1,418 3,354
17 17 7,993 6,989 7,510 7,001
mEAE Current liabilities
il F5 S2 AF Y HE R Allocations awaiting payment 8 - - (12,081) (10,944) (12,081) (10,944)
EES Z BEWEMAERER Inter-fund payable 9.1 (500) - - (5) - -
TEEmIA Derivative financial instruments 10 - - (4) - (4) -
(500) - (12,085) (10,949) (12,085) (10,944)
e (BfE)/ EEFE Net current (liabilities)/assets (483) 17 (4,092) (3,960) (4,575) (3,943)
25,390 26,813 1,249 782 26,639 27,595
& Funds 9 25,390 26,813 1,249 782 26,639 27,595
HEEEA Simon S O Ip
EHR Anthony W K Chow
Ak Trustees

FLt+REEATABENMEBEARGEREN—E2  The notes on pages 75 to 96 are an integral part of these financial statements.



STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS

EEBEHRER
EAES BRES Lt
Capital Fund Allocations Fund Total
BEBT in HK$ million 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
BEtA—HIEWESHEE Total funds at 1 July 26,813 25,386 782 935 27,595 26,321
R (F18)/ B Net (deficit)/surplus (679) 1,243 (248) (50) (927) 1,193
AEEHMEER (BE)/ WE Other comprehensive
(loss)/income for the year (244) 184 215 (108) (29) 81
AEERE (HE)/ W58 Total comprehensive
(loss)/income for the year (923) 1,427 (33) (153) (956) 1,274
FES 2 ERER Inter-fund transfer (500) - 500 - - -
BEAA=THLEWESHAE Total funds at 30 June 25,390 26,813 1,249 782 26,639 27,595

FLt+REEATABENMEBEARGEREN—E2  The notes on pages 75 to 96 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

He&RER
BEXB=1THILFE for the year ended 30 June
BEBT in HK$ million FfizF Note 2016 2015
=T Operating activities
BAREELETREBRK Forfeited dividends and refunds 53 55
REBEESSEENER Donations from the HKJC Group 3,500 3,500
ARTFEERBRIEEE Payments to charitable organisations and
community projects (2,337) (2,158)
FEWFRIE (3g1n) / m (Increase)/decrease in receivables 1) 6
HEARIER D Decrease in other payables - (1)
ESEXREBRARMEERK Loan made to The Jockey Club CPS Limited (75) (30)
EEHEA Management expenses (102) (81)
EEFEMEENTFRS Net cash generated from operating activities 1,038 1,291
REES Investing activities
ZHAA=@A LN (Increase)/decrease in short-term deposits
EHATER (3Ehn) /RS with maturities of more than 3 months (2,690) 19
2 WERI S Interest received 33 51
2UEURE Dividends received 95 300
HeEARMEEE Injection into joint ventures (2,237) (2,804)
m&E AR EE Redemption from joint ventures 1,858 2,329
BEUHEENKEE Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets (2,435) (2,797)
HETHEEMEEE Sale of available-for-sale financial assets 2,409 2,143
HITESRMIA Net (payment)/receipt for
(Frf) / PR S EERR 1B derivative financial instruments (4) 3
RETHFANZERE Net cash used in investing activities (2,971) (756)
BeRRSEEYF O ) /38m Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (1,933) 535
FURERRLEEY Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 3,354 2,829
RiEE Exchange losses (3) (10)
FRESRRESEEY Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1,418 3,354
ReRReEBNEFIN Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents
ySE-EER Short-term deposits 7 1,417 3,340
RITIFER Bank balances 7 1 14
1,418 3,354

FLt+REEATABENMEBEARGEREN—E2  The notes on pages 75 to 96 are an integral part of these financial statements.




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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1 GENERAL INFORMATION
The Trust is primarily engaged in supporting charitable organisations and community projects in
Hong Kong in accordance with the Trust Deed. The Trust is established in Hong Kong. The address
of its registered office is One Sports Road, Happy Valley, Hong Kong.

The financial statements are presented in millions of Hong Kong dollars (HK$ million), unless
otherwise stated.

The financial statements on pages 70 to 96 were approved by the Board of Trustees on 22 July
2016.

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set
out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified
by the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets, financial assets and financial liabilities
(including derivative instruments) at fair value through profit or loss which are carried at fair value.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Trust’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements
are disclosed in note 3.

(a) New interpretation and amendments that are relevant to the Trust’s operations and are
effective for the current accounting period

No new interpretation and amendments to published standards relevant to the Trust’s operations
are effective for the current accounting period.

(b) New standards and amendments that are relevant to the Trust’s operations but are not yet
effective and not early adopted

The following new standards and amendments have been published and are mandatory for the
Trust’s accounting periods commencing on or after 1 July 2016.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 16 Leases

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangement — Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in

Joint Operations

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 7

Statement of Cash Flows

Amendments to HKAS 27 Separate Financial Statements: Equity Method

Annual Improvements 2014 Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 5 3% % Bit &
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

2.1 Basis of preparation (cont.)

(b) New standards and amendments that are relevant to the Trust’s operations but are not yet
effective and not early adopted (cont.)

The Trust is still in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these new standards
and amendments, except for HKFRS 9, will be in the period of initial application. It is not yet in a
position to state whether these new standards and amendments will have a significant impact on
the Trust’s results of operations and financial position.

HKFRS 9 has three financial asset classification categories for investments in debt instruments:
amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (“OCI”) and fair value through profit
or loss. Classification is driven by the entity’s business model for managing the debt instruments
and their contractual cash flow characteristics.

A debt investment is classified as “Fair value through OCI” only if both of the following criteria
are met: the objective of the Trust’s business model is to hold the asset to collect the contractual
cash flows and to sell financial assets; and the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding. If either
of the two criteria above is not met, the debt instrument is classified as “fair value through profit
and loss”.

Investments in equity instruments are always measured at fair value.

Upon adoption, restatement of comparatives is not required but entities are permitted to restate
comparatives if they can do so without the use of hindsight. If an entity does not restate comparatives,
it should adjust the opening balance of its retained earnings to take account of the effect of applying
the new standard in the year of initial application.

2.2 Joint arrangements

The Trust has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint arrangements. Under HKFRS 11 investments in joint
arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures depending on the contractual
rights and obligations of each investor. The Trust has assessed the nature of its joint arrangements
and determined them to be joint ventures. Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint ventures are initially recognised at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Trust’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses and
movements in other comprehensive income. When the Trust’s share of losses in a joint venture
equals or exceeds its interests in the joint ventures (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Trust’s net investment in the joint ventures), the Trust does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
joint ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Trust and its joint ventures are eliminated to the
extent of the Trust’s interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred. Accounting policies of
the joint ventures have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Trust.

When the ownership interest in a joint venture is reduced, but continues to apply the equity
method, it shall reclassify to the income statement the proportion of the gain or loss that had
previously been recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that reduction in ownership
interest if that gain or loss would be required to be reclassified to the income statement on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

2.3 Funds

The Trust comprises two funds, the Capital Fund and the Allocations Fund. The Capital Fund is
held in the form of long-term investments with income reinvested for the future. The Allocations
Fund is invested in securities and short-term deposits, and is used for charitable donations. Income
to the Allocations Fund includes income from investments, interest earned on deposits, donations
from the Club and its subsidiaries, forfeited dividends and refunds.

2.4 Long-term investments

Long-term investments (including investments in the joint ventures HKJC Equity Trust Fund (“Equity
Trust”) and the Stellar Performer Global Series (“Bond Trust”)) are held for non-trading purposes.
They are stated at fair value at the end of the reporting period, except for loans and receivables
and investments in the Equity Trust and the Bond Trust. The accounting policy for the financial
assets of the long-term investments is stated in note 2.6.

2.5 Investments held to fund charitable projects

The primary purpose of investments held to fund charitable projects (including investments in the
Equity Trust and the Bond Trust) is to invest surplus funds for cash management and yield
enhancement. They are stated at fair value at the end of the reporting period, except for loans and
receivables and investments in the Equity Trust and the Bond Trust. The accounting policy for the
financial assets of the investments held to fund charitable projects is stated in note 2.6.

2.6 Financial assets
The Trust classifies its financial assets in the following categories: available-for-sale financial assets,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, and loans and receivables (including cash and
cash equivalents). The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired. Management determines the classification of the financial assets at initial recognition.
The long-term investments and investments held to fund charitable projects may contain these
financial assets. Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade day — the date
on which the Trust commits to purchase or sell the assets. Financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, with the transaction costs expensed in
the income statement. Financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs.

Financial assets are de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the Trust has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership.

(a) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category
or not classified in any of the other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless the
investment matures or management intends to dispose of it within 12 months of the end of the
reporting period. They comprise local and overseas listed or unlisted equities, debt securities and/
or alternative investments. Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently carried at fair value.
Changes in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income and retained in the investment
revaluation reserve until the assets are sold or impaired.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

2.6 Financial assets (cont.)

(a) Available-for-sale financial assets (cont.)

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included in the income statement as “Surplus/deficit on sale
of investments”.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the effective interest method is recognised
in the income statement as part of financial surplus. Dividends on available-for-sale equity
instruments are recognised in the income statement as part of financial surplus when the Trust’s
right to receive payments is established.

Alternative investments include investments in hedge funds, private equity funds, private real
estate funds and multi-assets. For those which do not have quoted market prices in an active
market, their fair values will be determined with reference to the values established by external
fund managers using valuation techniques.

(b) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category consists of derivative financial instruments. The Trust uses derivatives such as interest
rate swaps, equity options, foreign exchange forward contracts and future contracts to manage
its financial risks and to facilitate the implementation of its investment strategies. Derivatives are
initially recognised at fair value on the date derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at their fair values.

Changes in the fair value of these assets are included in the income statement in the period in
which they arise. Upon disposal or repurchase, the difference between the net sale proceeds or
the net payment and the carrying value is included in the income statement unless the derivatives
are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as current assets if expected to
be settled within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as non-current assets.

(c) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method and are included in current assets, except for amounts that are expected
to be settled or with maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting period where
these are classified as non-current assets.

The Trust’s loans and receivables comprise “Loans and receivables” in the statement of financial
position, short-term deposits, deposits and fund awaiting investments under non-current assets
and cash and cash equivalents as stated below.

Cash and cash equivalents include bank balances, cash in hand and other short-term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value and with original maturities of three months or less. Deposits
placed at the bank for a fixed term of more than 3 months are classified as “Short-term deposits”.

2.7 Impairment of financial assets

The Trust assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset is impaired. A financial asset is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and
only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset that can be reliably estimated.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)
2.7 Impairment of financial assets (cont.)
(a) Assets classified as available-for-sale
For debt securities, if any such evidence exists, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from equity and recognised in profit or
loss. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available-for-sale
increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through the income statement.
For equities and alternative investments classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of an investment below its cost is also evidence that the assets are impaired.
If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured
as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that financial asset previously recognised in the income statement - is reclassified from
investment revaluation reserve to income statement. Impairment losses recognised in the
income statement on equity instruments and alternative investments are not reversed through the
income statement.

(b) Assets carried at amortised cost

For loans and receivables, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the amount
of the loss is recognised in the income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the income statement.

2.8 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Trust are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The Trust
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Trust’s functional currency
and presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency transactions and from
translation at year-end exchange rate of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised directly in the income statement. Assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the closing rate at the end of the reporting period. The differences
arising from translation are recognised in the income statement except for translation differences
on non-monetary items of available-for-sale financial assets, such as equities, which are included
in the investment revaluation reserve.

Changes in the fair value of debt securities denominated in foreign currency classified as available-
for-sale are analysed between translation differences resulting from changes in the amortised cost
of the security and other changes in the carrying amount of the security. Translation differences
related to changes in amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss, and other changes in carrying
amount are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

2.9 Revenue recognition

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method.
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

2.10 Allocations to charitable organisations and community projects
Allocations to charitable organisations and community projects are charged to the income statement
when there is a legal or constructive obligation established.

2.11 Forfeited dividends and refunds

In accordance with The Hong Kong Jockey Club’s Rules, certain dividends and refunds which are
not claimed within the specified period are deemed to be donated for charitable purposes. These
amounts are paid directly to the Trust.

2.12 Related party

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered to be related to the Trust if
the Trust has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or exercise significant influence
over the party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the Trust and
the party are subject to common control. Related parties may be individuals or entities.

3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to exercise significant judgements
in the selection and application of accounting principles, including making estimates and
assumptions. The following significant accounting policies are impacted by judgements and
uncertainties and for which different amounts may be reported under a different set of conditions
or using different assumptions.

3.1 Impairment of available-for-sale equity investments
The Trust follows the guidance of HKAS 39 to determine when an available-for-sale equity
investment is impaired. This determination requires significant judgement. In making this judgement,
the Trust evaluates, among other factors, the duration and extent to which the fair value of an
investment is less than its cost; and the financial health of and short-term business outlook for the
investee, including factors such as industry and sector performance, changes in technology and
operational and financing cash flow.

If all of the declines in fair value below cost were considered significant or prolonged, the Trust
would suffer an impairment loss, being the transfer of the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in equity on the impaired available-for-sale financial assets to the income statement.
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4 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

ARFHEOT: Details of the joint ventures as of 30 June 2016 are as follows:
EERAKREHMRRA FERR
BRaE SRR A B R FTEEY Authorised and Measurement
Name of entity Country of incorporation Principal activities paid up capital method
EEESEREES HERS RERS EA =
HKJC Equity Trust Fund The Cayman Islands investment in equities n/a Equity
Stellar Performer Global Series HEHS REBKES EA =
The Cayman Islands investment in debt securities n/a Equity

RAB=1H  EAEeREEHEEERZESKR  The effective percentages directly held by the Trust and its related entities in Equity Trust and Bond

BEFESHESENERAE LT Trust as of 30 June were as follows:
BZES Equity Trust &% &% Bond Trust
2016 2015 2016 2015
EEESEREETES The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust 48.3% 49.2% 49.9% 50.7%
BERESE The Hong Kong Jockey Club 47.2% 45.6% 46.8% 45.4%
BEERESEETRINERGE The Hong Kong Jockey Club
Retirement Benefits Scheme 4.5% 5.2% 3.3% 3.9%
100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
EAES BRES fko)
Capital Fund Allocations Fund Total
HEBT in HK$ million 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
+tA—H At 1 July 16,845 16,475 4,699 4,092 21,544 20,567
A& Injection 1,416 1,555 821 1,249 2,237 2,804
e Redemption (1,478) (1,672) (380) (657) (1,858) (2,329)
Fiit (&518) /%7 Share of (losses)/profits (479) 693 177) 159 (656) 852
i E 2 mEmE/ (B5iE) Share of other comprehensive
income/(loss) 252 (206) 272 (144) 524 (350)
NA=1TH At 30 June 16,556 16,845 5,235 4,699 21,791 21,544
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4 REAERE (F)
RIESEARBE-O—AREAA=THLNEESR
CEXIRE MERNTBERRENT:

4 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (cont.)

A summary of financial information of the joint ventures based on their management or audited
accounts as of 30 June 2016 is as follows:

BREES BFES mEE
Equity Trust Bond Trust Total
(=% FrtES EEES
HENER BFENRER FENRER
Aot Elal=a Rl
Trust’s Trust’s Trust’s
effective effective effective
BEBT in HK$ million 100% interest 100% interest 100% interest
(VEnE. Income Statement
BB Loss (641) (308) (650) (348) (1,291) (656)
RBi B EE Deficit after taxation (641) (308) (650) (348) (1,291)  (656)
Htt2mE (F58) / ks Other comprehensive
(loss)/income (135) (117) 1,247 641 1,112 524
W (F18)/ W85 Total comprehensive
(loss)/income (776) (425) 597 293 (179) (132)
EEBEX Balance Sheet
FREBEE Non-current assets
A HERMKERE Available-for-sale
financial assets
[ES Equities
EEBLED Listed in Hong Kong 1,316 636 - - 1,316 636
wEHET Listed overseas 21,138 10,214 - - 21,138 10,214
BERES Debt securities
w8 E™ Listed overseas - - 16,327 8,182 16,327 8,182
E1 3] Unlisted - - 4,628 2,266 4,628 2,266
HEFRENES Funds awaiting investment 394 191 585 285 979 476
THESHmMIA Derivative financial instruments - - 411 205 411 205
MEEE Current assets
THESHmMIA Derivative financial instruments 23 11 226 112 249 123
REBEELE Total current assets 23 11 226 112 249 123
REBEE Current liabilities
THESRmMIA Derivative financial instruments - - (140) (68) (140) (68)
mENM B EEE Total current financial liabilities - - (140) (68) (140) (68)
FEREBEE Non-current liabilities
THESHMIA Derivative financial instruments - - (486) (243) (486) (243)
22,871 11,052 21,551 10,739 44,422 21,791
BEARES Capital Fund - 9,800 - 6,756 - 16,556
BRES Allocations Fund - 1,252 - 3,983 - 5,235
- 11,052 - 10,739 - 21,791
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4 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (cont.)

A summary of financial information of the joint ventures based on their management or audited
accounts as of 30 June 2015 is as follows:

BREES BFES mEE
Equity Trust Bond Trust Total
(=% EEES EEES
BENER BENER BENER
Aot Elal=a B
Trust’s Trust’s Trust’s
effective effective effective
BEBT in HK$ million 100% interest 100% interest 100% interest
iR Income Statement
Wz Income 1,045 SIS 651 337 1,696 852
MRBI B EER Surplus after taxation 1,045 515 651 337 1,696 852
Hib2mEE/ (5E) Other comprehensive
income/(loss) 188 94 (864) (444) (676) (3850)
2EWE/ (BE) 258 Total comprehensive
income/(loss) 1,233 609 (213) (107) 1,020 502
EEBEX Balance Sheet
FREBEE Non-current assets
A HERMKERE Available-for-sale
financial assets
[ES Equities
EEBLED Listed in Hong Kong 1,810 889 - - 1,810 889
1w EH Listed overseas 19,856 9,760 - - 19,856 9,760
BERES Debt securities
1w EH Listed overseas - - 14,729 7,464 14,729 7,464
FLEm Unlisted - - 4,817 2,447 4,817 2,447
HERENES Funds awaiting investment 482 237 1,428 729 1,910 966
THESHmMIA Derivative financial instruments - - 221 110 221 110
MEEE Current assets
THESHmMIA Derivative financial instruments - - 161 80 161 80
REBEELE Total current assets - - 161 80 161 80
REBEE Current liabilities
THESHmMIA Derivative financial instruments (@) @) (152) (76) (156) (78)
mEN B EEE Total current financial liabilities @) ) (152) (76) 156) (78)
FREBEE Non-current liabilities
THESRmMIA Derivative financial instruments - - (189) (94) (189) (94)
22,144 10,884 21,015 10,660 43,159 21,544
ERES Capital Fund - 9,962 - 6,883 - 16,845
BRES Allocations Fund - 922 - 3,777 - 4,699
- 10,884 - 10,660 - 21,544

BEQNTNESESIENERES &
EREANZES 2N =+t (ZO—HF : Ao2Z=%
Nt) o BEEFBHFNINEFIHRABLE (ZO—

HEF  RE) e

The debt securities carried weighted average effective interest rate of 4.37% for the joint ventures
under the Bond Trust (2015: 3.87%). Their weighted average maturities were 7 years (2015: 6 years).
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4 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (cont.)

RZEES Equity Trust

&% &% Bond Trust

2016 2016 2015
BTREUTIEEBINE : Underlying investments were denominated
in the following currencies:
ESV United States Dollars (“USD”) 67% 100% 100%
BT Hong Kong Dollars (“HKD”) 7% - -
HEE Pound Sterling (“GBP”) 7% - -
EEE Korean Won (“KWR”) 3% - =
875 Euro (“EUR”) 2% - -
Hih 5 Other currencies 14% - -
100% 100% 100%
EAESHNEENRMBENITEEmMIA Trust’s derivative financial instruments in joint ventures
REES Equity Trust
BEXRES e
Capital Fund Allocations Fund Total
&E &afE BE afE
BEET in HK$ million Assets  Liabilities Assets Liabilities
EHNESH Foreign exchange
forward contracts 10 - 11 -
ZO—R~"EXRA=FH At 30 June 2016 10 - 11 -
AHWMT ¢ Analysed as:
MENEB D Current 10 - 11 -
EHNESH Foreign exchange
forward contracts - @) = @)
—O-E&A~AZ=1H At 30 June 2015 - ©) - @)

DT

TRENER D

Analysed as:
Current - 2




4 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (cont.)

&% E$ Bond Trust
BRES BRES 4z
Capital Fund Allocations Fund Total
&E &afE &E afE BE afE
BEBT in HK$ million Assets  Liabilities Assets  Liabilities Assets  Liabilities
EHESFEHN Forward contracts on bonds 1 (1) - - 1 (1)
EHNESH Foreign exchange
forward contracts 39 (25) 23 (15) 62 (40)
BE Futures 27 (6) 16 (4) 43 (10)
HAfE Options 2 2 1 (1) 3 3)
=5 Swaps 131 (162) 77 (95) 208 (257)
ZO—REXA=1H At 30 June 2016 200 (196) 117 (115) 317 (311)
MW ¢ Analysed as:
MENEB D Current 71 (43) 41 (25) 112 (68)
IERENE D Non-current 129 (153) 76 (90) 205 (243)
200  (196) 17 (115) 317 (311)
EHNESH Foreign exchange
forward contracts 13 (29) 7 (16) 20 (45)
BE Futures 1 9) 1 (5) 2 (14)
HAfE Options 1 @ 1 (1) 2 ()
=5 Swaps 105 (68) 61 (40) 166 (108)
—O—EHFERA=1+H At 30 June 2015 120 (108) 70 (62) 190 (170)
MW : Analysed as:
TRENER D Current 51 (49) 29 (27) 80 (76)
IERENIB D Non-current 69 (59) 41 (35) 110 (94)
120 (108) 70 (62) 190 (170)
ERESESE A THIENERSTES R IMAREME - There were no contingent liabilities relating to the Trust’s interest in the joint ventures.
5 REIKE 5 LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS axne
Capital Fund
BEET in HK$ million 2016 2015
AMHENKEE Available-for-sale financial assets
ES Equities
EEBLEM Listed in Hong Kong 1,907 3,374
ey =3 inly 7] Listed overseas 221 193
2,128 3,567
BERE Alternative investments
FEm Unlisted 6,659 5,674
8,787 9,241
HFRENES Funds awaiting investment 70 83
eE Deposits 460 627
9,317 9,951

RN FIIERFNRESED 2ZTHEN (Z0—
HE BIZEHEIN) c ERREFRENESH
IREEEEE N FEERS  MENEFIRRUS
Z+RE (ZO—AF : £H) -

The deposits carried weighted average effective interest rate of 0.78% (2015: 0.38%). The carrying
amounts of the deposits and funds awaiting investment approximated their fair values. The weighted
average maturities of the deposits were 26 days (2015: 7 days).
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5 REARSE (&) 5 LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS (cont.)
2016 2015
REREUTIEERE ! Long-term investments were denominated
in the following currencies:
ESV UsD 78% 66%
BT HKD 21% 34%
5 EUR 1% -
100% 100%
6 ALEBEEEENIRE 6 INVESTMENTS HELD TO FUND CHARITABLE PROJECTS
BRES
Allocations Fund
BEBT in HK$ million 2016 2015
AEHENKERE Available-for-sale financial assets
S Equities
ERBLM Listed in Hong Kong 259 324
ey =3 Sinly 7] Listed overseas 30 19
289 343
BRES Debt securities
EEBLD Listed in Hong Kong - 184
ey =3 Sinly 7] Listed overseas - 29
E ik} Unlisted 78 146
78 359
BERE Alternative investments
3 EH Unlisted 1,831 1,750
2,198 2,452
HFRENES Funds awaiting investment 9 8
2,207 2,460
BEEFLNNEFHERNZABSZ—Z = (=  The debt securities carried weighted average effective interest rate of 1.39% (2015: 2.70%). The

O—FHF:Bo2=%+t) HMEFREMNESHWIRE  carrying amounts of the funds awaiting investment approximated their fair values. The weighted
BEEEAFEEREE  MEBZSWMETIME  average maturities of the debt securities were 124 days (2015: 183 days).
AlA—F=1tHmA (ZO—H&E: —AN+=AH) -

2016 2015
AUEMZEEENREUTIIESTE : Investments held to fund charitable projects
were denominated in the following currencies:
E uSD 88% 83%
BT HKD 12% 13%
AR RMB - 4%

100% 100%




7 EHERRESRESEEY

7.1 BEIENK
EHERNNEFHERINRLFI2BHN= (=
O—&h%F : BaZ—HN) - EHEFRHREEES

7 SHORT-TERM DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

7.1 Short-term Deposits

The weighted average effective interest rate on short-term deposits was 0.82% (2015: 1.40%).
The carrying amounts of short-term deposits approximated their fair values and their weighted

HAPEEES  mEMEFLSHRE—B=+TNIB average maturities were 139 days (2015: 183 days).
(ZO—EH&E : —BNA+=RH)
2016 2015
EHERUTIEEINE Short-term deposits were denominated
in the following currencies:
BT HKD 98% 82%
ARHE RMB 1% 18%
Epv uUsD 1% -
100% 100%
T2HRERBFECEEY 7.2 Cash and cash equivalents

FHMAR=EAATHERWINETIERNELSE
DREBEHAN(ZO—LF  BAZEHAN) - 7
FEREEEEE A PEERS - MENETIIHR
AIBM+ME (ZO—AF : [@+H) -

The weighted average effective interest rate on deposits with maturities of less than three months
was 0.66% (2015: 0.58%). The carrying amounts of deposits approximated their fair values and
their weighted average maturities were 44 days (2015: 40 days).

2016 2015
FMAAR=EAUTHERUATIEETE Deposits with maturities of less than 3 months
were denominated in the following currencies:

BT HKD 56% 91%
e usD 44% 4%
AR RMB - 3%
BT AUD - 2%
100% 100%

8 132 fTHIBERR

HIMEEE SR AN BIRFHSBRARILES
HERMRETHRD+ER 2K - ARETESS
EEANBHRIERBEE - AT - ERNMETESR
CRAREPNEZSRENE - LERRAE IR
TERZHARBHZN T ZEA - EEEMGE - &
ERASTHEFAHBRRARNT IR S

8 ALLOCATIONS AWAITING PAYMENT

The Trust classifies the allocations awaiting payment as current liabilities as the Trust does not
have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the allocations for at least 12 months after the
reporting period. However, due to the inherent nature of the projects for which allocations have
been made by the Trust, the period in which these allocations are expected to be paid may be
greater than 12 months after the reporting period. Based on the estimates of the management, as
at 30 June, the allocations awaiting payment are expected to be paid:

BEET in HK$ million 2016 2015
R—FR Within one year 3,819 3,227
RE-ZE=FR In the second to third year inclusive 4,586 3,505
RE=F#% After the third year 3,761 4,212

12,166 10,944
HESANRRRENEE Present value impact on allocations awaiting payment (85) -
1 A IR IRE Present value of allocations awaiting payment 12,081 10,944

BROREN PR T EAEEEE WEETE 3
T HLER TR (KA AR -

The actual timing of the payments is dependent upon the progress of the individual projects and
may differ from the expected schedule presented above.
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9 & 9 FUNDS
EAE#$ Capital Fund FE 2 Allocations Fund
BREEMG RESM
Cii #E
H&E 458 Investment HE#8 Investment
Fund revaluation Fkc) Fund revaluation k)
BEBT in HK$ million balance reserve Total balance reserve Total
—O—HZtA—H At 1 July 2015 24,237 2,576 26,813 686 96 782
HEB KRR Transfer from income statement (679) - (679) (248) - (248)
ZES 2 ERER Inter-fund transfer (500) - (500) 500 - 500
. e Deficit on revaluation of
AEHENKEENEMER .
available-for-sale
financial assets - (183) (183) - (56) (56)
A ERKEE N ERBERD Realised gains on disposal and
ERREWNEEH S ERARGEE impairment of available-for-sale
financial assets reclassified to
income statement - (313) (313) - (1) (1)
- (496) (496) - (57) (57)
it & & ARMEMEEKE Share of other comprehensive
income of joint ventures - 252 252 - 272 272
—O—RERA=+H At 30 June 2016 23,058 2,332 25,390 938 311 1,249
—O—mELA—H At 1 July 2014 22,994 2,392 25,386 736 199 935
HEBKEE Transfer from income statement 1,243 - 1,243 (50) - (50)
. Surplus on revaluation of
W SRS AN E RS -
available-for-sale
financial assets - 576 576 - 49 49
A SR E E HE R Realised gains on disposal
EREWNEEHN S ERANGEE of available-for-sale
financial assets reclassified
to income statement - (186) (186) - (8) (8)
- 390 390 - 41 41
it &E ARMNEMEEEE Share of other comprehensive
loss of joint ventures - (206) (206) - (144) (144)
—O—EHFERA=1+H At 30 June 2015 24,237 2,576 26,813 686 96 782

9.1 BE & Z BIREL/ TR
EXESHBRES CEANARBTRK/ BN
H - BREBRARATUEE (ZO—HF : AF
BET) -

9.1 Inter-fund receivable/payable

The inter-fund receivable/payable of HK$500 million between Capital Fund and Allocations Fund
was eliminated in the Statement of Financial Position (2015: HK$5 million).




10 fTESMTIR

10 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

EXES BRES

Capital Fund Allocations Fund ko)

(KfzE note 5) (Hi5E note 6) Total

BE afE BE afE &gE afE
BEBT in HK$ million Assets  Liabilities Assets  Liabilities Assets  Liabilities
=HIMNESH Forei h
EHINESH oreign exchange ’ _ A @ - @

forward contracts
ZO—REXRA=TH At 30 June 2016 1 - 4 (4) 5 (4)
AW : Analysed as:
TENER Current 1 - 4 (4) 5 (@)

—O—®EXRA=FH At 30 June 2015 - - - - - -
11 HIE 11 TAXATION

EHESERLANEERIEH - BB HBIR
el o

12 BERERME

HithEXIFREEH
BEZO—AREAA=1THLEE  FESHMH#
HERBEERBEGEBA=ZR—TAEESBT - BE
ZO—HEARA=THIEE > WEBBERE -

13 HAMEALTZR S
EEECHSERETEMBARGAREE - HNSE
SEERMETEREEERESERA  URES
SEANARSERARSERADVNEFTEXNRE
ERABDEZRNE @ IUETEESHESEEAMN
RNBEHAMEERAAREFTEXNREER AT
BERE -

BRTEEMNBRREMHIBEEN  FEES
HEEEBEALEETHNRZNT !

13.1 EEEH
EHERUENESRENTRRIERE A%
THNEREBA—REZE_HE8BT (ZO—&RF : \T
BET) o

No provision for taxation has been made because the Trust is exempt from Hong Kong profits tax.

12 NOTE TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Other significant non-cash item

During the year ended 30 June 2016, the impairment loss of available-for-sale financial assets for
the Trust was HK$319 million. For the year ended 30 June 2015, no such impairment was made.

13 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Trust is related to the Club and its subsidiaries. It is also related to The Jockey Club Kau Sai
Chau Public Golf Course Limited (“KSCGC”) and The Jockey Club CPS Limited (“CPS”) as the
Club’s Stewards are also the Trustees of the Trust and the Directors of KSCGC and CPS.

The following transactions were carried out by the Trust with related parties, except as disclosed
elsewhere in the financial statements:

13.1 Management expenses
Management expenses included HK$102 million (2015: HK$80 million) for administrative and
support services provided by the Club.
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13 ERHMAEALZRS (8)

132 EFEEAMARSEXRIKGHRAA
Efl: I EN

REZHRHR - FEESHRBEEANE R R EWRK
HRRE-FENTEBINFER (ZO—HF : \FT
BEn) EEREEAFTEEZAREFEZTAMA
REBARSERAAMEHERNER=TEET
BEENBARBFISMILEKR  BEANMSEES
EHEREEE  MAKREBHERNSSGITERT
T BAWEF SMIEIER - BEAR-O==F<A
StHRHEZE - AEFEANKREEERAEQATEE
EE=

133 AEFEXUMREFRAABHMER
REZHRHR - FEEESHFERBEEANER R Y
FEPEE-F-—FEZE EBEBI (ZO—1F : @
FT=EEBEL) WA - EEFARETEESHES
EXYRBEERADVELERNEL  BREREA
WEA) SRIEIER - BERE BB TENEFEXY
REABRNBEFBIERITHRERATET ZHEL W
KEE BN —FT-_E8ET (ZO—LF : LB
BEr) MEER  SRBEKRTER - BEREN
IREEEEE N FEERS

13.4 K
ERESEERTEESSEE=TREET (Z0—
BE =T HEBT) HEX -

14 BAF5EPGETR
141 BB EKRES
ETESHRETED (BEUAEARNRE) &Z
EZHHEMTEER @ miERKE (BEE¥RK - R
ZEREREFZAR) RDELARREER
%o SHESHEREARTIENE ST
SRETERIMASY B NEREREESTESHE
REWBEFRNSE - SEESEATESHTA
LUETE R R E AR S fhE T ER o
FEREEENEIENHEE  GREXR &5 R
EREMBERE  AESEEIRBUEXESK
BETER o
SEERNREEENER —REBESSHK
HREBRRERERIES  ETERREE - RER
HIRIES! 0 BIEREREET SR —IBD 55T
HERESEESHRERE  WENESTERE
Rigs|  LUETRERMEE -

(a) T AR

() B
SE¥ERRERUMEAENRERRX S T AE
RNFAFIZES - Mo BSENER -

FREENEEREETEUER TR BTG

He Bl R/IERRTEMER
B - HBRWERER - DRERRTESES T
LHREREFRERH -

13 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (cont.)

13.2 Loans to KSCGC

At the end of the reporting period, included under the loans and receivables in current assets was
HK$80 million (2015: HK$80 million) made by the Trust to KSCGC representing the balance of a
HK$30 million interest-free, unsecured loan repayable on demand and the balance of a HK$50
million interest-free, unsecured loan repayable by 30 June 2033. The carrying amounts of the loans
approximated their fair values.

13.3 Loans to CPS

At the end of the reporting period, included under the loans and receivables in non-current assets
was HK$106 million (2015: HK$43 million) made by the Trust to CPS representing the balance of
an interest-free, unsecured loan repayable by the maturity date which is the expiry of the term of
the tenancy agreement between CPS and the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region. A finance cost of HK$12 million (2015: HK$9 million) was recorded in the income statement
for the loan. The carrying amount of the loan approximated its fair value.

13.4 Donations
The Trust received donations from the HKJC Group of HK$3,500 million (2015: HK$3,500 million).

14 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

14.1 Financial risk factors

The Trust’s investment activities including investments in joint ventures, expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, equity price risk and interest rate risk), liquidity
risk and credit risk. The Trust’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Trust’s financial
performance. The Trust uses derivative financial instruments to manage and reduce certain risk
exposures.

The Trust’s major financial assets include deposits, bonds, equities and other alternative
investments, which are managed by the Treasury Department of the Club and external professional
fund managers.

Risk management is carried out by the Treasury Department of the Club under investment policies
and risk management guidelines approved by the Club’s Finance and General Purposes Committee.
Investment constraints and guidelines form an integral part of risk control. Fund-specific restrictions
and guidelines are set according to the investment objectives of each fund to control risks of
the investments.

(a) Market risk
(i) Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk of loss due to adverse movements in foreign exchange rates relating
to investments and transactions denominated in foreign currencies.
The Trust’s assets and liabilities are primarily denominated in USD or HKD. The HKD is pegged
to the USD, and thus foreign exchange exposure is considered as minimal. The remaining
currency exposure arises from globally diversified investments in equities and bonds.
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(a) TR AR ()

() BE¥mEpE (48)
TRERRERHR  BUTSEFEGR LB
KIERIZ T Y E D iR E s/ E5 » EEMAT
BU#RRPHEFTENERT @ FEEESNE
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14 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)

14.1 Financial risk factors (cont.)

(a) Market risk (cont.)

(i) Currency risk (cont.)
The following table indicates that at the end of the reporting period, if the following major
currencies had strengthened/weakened against the HKD by the stated percentages, with all
other variables held constant, the Trust’s surplus would have increased/decreased as follows:

2016 2015

FREER FREER

Rz Rz

HEWIETH i/ 08d) HEWIETH i/ D)

B LEHIRE Increase/ B LHIEE Increase/

e/ 85 (decrease) e/ 8855 (decrease)

If currency on surplus If currency on surplus

strengthened/ and equity strengthened/ and equity

BEBT in HK$ million weakened by  for the year weakened by  for the year
®#E EUR 5% 3/(3) 5% 6/(6)
AR RMB 5% 2/(2) 5% 20/(20)

W GBP 5% 2/(2) 5% (2)/2
H JPY 5% (7)/7 5% 8/(8)
BT AUD 5% - 5% 3/(3)

(i) IR EAEHS B (i) Equity price risk

REERRARRERRZERZBM I ZSEH
R - BERRRERTH®  ESRERENEE
T IAERESEAIZEREEREAR - L
REEMBMRRRATIATHREEHHEREET ©

REHFHR ZFRERAEZTANER
LA/ THED 2H - EHMTE TR EZGMES
FEHERT  EREESHNEZERAREREN
DNFEESBTEM/ BRSO LEELERET (=
O—&RF : tBAFTLEEER)

(iii) F /2
FERABRRERTSHEEE M BEENE
B 2BAAFEEFNXRRBREESRENRE
B o AFEEFERERIIETISRRES - 5|13
PREEERFBNER - B REFZRKA
EMEHEEE  SIHMKEEARRSRE
BEBOER HRAETESEEANER
E FURARASELAFEERRESRENE
[E R o

REFEPR  ARFIREERZLT  SRRG
ME+EE  EHMAETERZGEFTEN
BRT  EAESFANBRELA=TEEE
BT (ZO—HF : =FAHEBT) > MEtE
SHRESE TR BE-_TEEESET (ZO0—
HE: —EBNAT=FGEBTRT) °

EEELERRHUEEIRERAESRENRER
% BEETERE - E¥EMEBEEET/EL
HMERRER T RS - ERREERER - BIEBR
MBTEREZRRES T 2RARD BHEET
LURBE o RIREMSE - BIEBHIFTEERRESI R
RENZENESRFE TARES -

Equity price risk is the risk of loss arising from changes in equity prices. The Trust is exposed
to equity price risk as the value of its equity investments will decline if equity prices fall. These
investments are classified as available-for-sale financial assets in the statement of financial
position.

At the end of the reporting period, if the prices of the respective equity instruments had been
5% higher/lower, with all other variables held constant, the Trust’s equity would have increased/
decreased by HK$707 million (2015: HK$767 million) as a result of the changes in fair value of
its equity investments.

(iii) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk refers to the risk of loss arising from changes in market interest rates. This can
be further classified into fair value interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value
interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial asset will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows of a financial
asset will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Trust is exposed to both
fair value and cash flow interest rate risks as the Trust has significant investments that are
interest bearing.

At the end of the reporting period, since interest rates are essentially at close to zero, if there
had been a general increase of 50 basis points in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, the Trust’s surplus for the year would have been HK$35 million higher (2015: HK$36
million). The Trust’s equity would have been approximately HK$225 million lower (2015: HK$183
million) in response to the general increase in interest rates.

The Trust controls and monitors market risk through strategic asset allocation and the investment
benchmarks set for the funds. Currency risk is contained by monitoring the non-HKD/USD exposure.
Equity price risk is mitigated by adopting benchmarks that are diversified globally, by sectors and
by securities. Interest rate risk is controlled through benchmark duration guidelines and by investing
across a spectrum of fixed and floating rate instruments.
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RBESRMEIEREE S s A E [ 2 AR AR
R o tboh - SRES TN AREE RN E IR L
MAFEENEREMEEESR -
AEREERANESENLEE RERIEEE
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BENES WETERERIBETERNESHMER
TR
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14 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)

14.1 Financial risk factors (cont.)

(b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that available funds may not be sufficient to meet obligations as they
fall due. In addition, the Trust may not be able to liquidate its financial assets at a price close to
fair value within a short period of time.

To ensure sufficient liquidity to meet liabilities and the ability to raise funds to meet exceptional
needs, the Trust maintains sufficient cash and marketable securities and invests primarily in liquid
financial markets and instruments.

The Trust also employs projected cash flow analysis to manage liquidity risk by forecasting the
amount of cash required and monitoring the working capital of the Trust to ensure that all liabilities
due and known funding requirements can be met.

The non-derivative financial liabilities and net-settled derivative financial liabilities of the Trust as
at 30 June are analysed into relevant maturity buckets based on their contractual maturity dates.
The amounts disclosed in the table below are the contractual undiscounted cash flows:

2016 2015
ZEARUT =@BAE—F =EAEUT =@AZ—F
Upto >3 months —FHE fek) Upto >3 months —FHE ko)
BEBT in HK$ million 3 months to1year Over 1 year Total 3 months to1year Over1year Total
FOTEMBEE Non-derivative
financial liabilities
12 45 S A OB RR Allocations awaiting
payment 12,166 - - 12,166 10,944 = = 10,944
LURBEELEN Net-settled derivative
PTERBEE financial liabilities 27 1 242 270 29 2 95 126
12,193 1 242 12,436 10,973 2 95 11,070

RZO—ARFAA=1H  EEEEFFENRTR
ERNMESHESEREERERAT RNTEE
T(ZO—RF ! RTEENAFTNEEERT) - T&
HEAEEBE-O—RFARA=ZTHLEKR=0—H
FARA=TRENRFEERIESHELDT - &
LEOBRABESE  YRARTANIMASL A
BHRAR - TRABENRBESSHRITRESR
& HEERESHBRRRAFINREEE (BH
B) T@E -

As at 30 June 2016, the maximum gross notional value of outstanding foreign exchange forward
contracts held by the Trust was HK$6,180 million (2015: HK$6,488 million). The table below analyses
the Trust’s outstanding foreign exchange forward contracts as at 30 June 2016 and 2015 that
would be settled on a gross basis into relevant maturity buckets based on their remaining contractual
maturity dates. The amounts disclosed in the table are contractual undiscounted cash flows, which
are different from the carrying amounts (i.e. market values) in the statement of financial position.

2016 2015
Z@EARUAT =EAZE—F =BASUT =@AZE—F
Upto >3 months —FHE FLk) Upto >3 months —FHE ko)
BEBT in HK$ million 3 months to1year Over1 year Total 3 months to1year Over1year Total
EHNESH Foreign exchange
forward contracts
piitesl Outflows (5,707) (402) (71) (6,180) (6,325) (153) (10) (6,488)
A Inflows 5,739 404 71 6,214 6,298 153 10 6,461
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14 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)

14.1 Financial risk factors (cont.)

(c) Credit risk

The Trust is exposed to credit risk since a borrower or a counterparty may not be able or willing
to perform its contractual obligations in full when due. It arises mainly from the Trust’s deposit
placements, debt securities and derivative transactions.

The Trust limits its exposure to credit risk by rigorously selecting the counterparties and by
diversification, and deposits are only placed with financial institutions with good credit standing.
Credit limits are established to control the overall exposure to each authorised counterparty based
on its credit ratings and financial strength. Counterparty credit exposures are measured according
to the risk nature of financial products involved in the transaction. As at 30 June 2016, the Trust’s
maximum exposure to the credit risk of financial assets as defined in note 2.6 approximated their
carrying amounts in the statement of financial position.

14.2 Capital risk management
The Trust’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Trust’s ability to continue as a
going concern in order to
— be a major benefactor of public and community services through charitable contributions; and
— support the Trust’s stability and growth.

The Trust monitors its capital which is same as the Funds shown in its statement of financial
position to ensure an appropriate level of return is made to the community in the form of donations.

14.3 Fair value estimation

HKFRS 13 requires disclosure for assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value by level of
the following fair value measurement hierarchy, which is categorised based on the lowest level of
input that is significant to that fair value measurement.

Level 1: fair values measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets and liabilities.

Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in active markets for similar assets and liabilities,
or using valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or indirectly based
on observable market data.

Level 3: fair values measured using valuation techniques (e.g. discounted cash flow analysis) in
which any significant input is not based on observable market data.

A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency, and those prices represent
actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

The fair values of Level 2 financial assets and liabilities have been determined based on quotes
from market makers or alternative pricing sources supported by observable inputs. The most
significant input is market interest rates.

The financial assets classified as Level 3 and presented in the table consist mainly of alternative
investments that are not traded in an active market. These have been valued based on information
derived from individual fund reports, or audited reports received from respective fund managers
and considering other relevant factors if deemed necessary.
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14 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)
14.3 Fair value estimation (cont.)
(a) The following tables present the Trust’s financial assets and liabilities that were measured

BB EERERE - at fair value as at 30 June.
EARE$ Capital Fund
2016 2015
&A1 &Al 2 &HI3 ko) A A2 &AI3 s
BEBT in HK$ million Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BE Assets
REIRE Long-term investments
AEHE Available-for-sale
MisEE financial assets
BRE Equities 2,128 - - 2,128 3,567 - - 3,567
BEKRE Alternative
investments - - 6,659 6,659 - - 5,674 5,674
fTESRI A Derivative financial
instruments - 1 - 1 = - - -
2,128 1 6,659 8,788 3,567 - 5,674 9,241
B E £ Allocations Fund
2016 2015
A &Al 2 &AI3 ko) A &Al 2 &AI3 s
BEBT in HK$ million Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BE Assets
FRUEZEEEE Investments held to fund
HIRE charitable projects
e Available-for-sale
MisEE financial assets
RE Equities 289 - - 289 343 - - 343
BRES Debt Securities 78 - - 78 359 - - 359
BSEKRE Alternative
investments - - 1,831 1,831 - - 1,750 1,750
fTESBI A Derivative financial
instruments - 4 - 4 = - - -
=N Liabilities
THESHMIA Derivative financial
instruments - 4) = 4) - - _ _
367 - 1,831 2,198 702 - 1,750 2,452

ERESHNBERENEERNSHRBER B RE
B0 BROFEETTERINBAREL -
RZO—RERZO—FE  FRESE=ELA
FEBEFERBINEEE o

The Trust’s policy is to recognise transfer into and out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date
of the event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

During the years of 2016 and 2015, there were no transfers between the three levels of fair value
hierarchy classifications for the Trust.
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14 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)
14.3 Fair value estimation (cont.)

(b) The movements of the Trust’s balance of the assets and liabilities measured at fair value

REMFEHEBHNT | based on Level 3 were as follows:
EAES BRES
Capital  Allocations Feb)
BEBT in HK$ million Fund Fund Total
—O—&=%tA—H At 1 July 2015 5,674 1,750 7,424
EUTHRBRNRE/ (F518) B8 Total gains/(losses) recognised in
LVEnE. Income statement 52 2) 50
2HENEE Statement of comprehensive income (100) (45) (145)
BA Purchases 1,325 288 1,613
HE Sales (292) (160) (452)
—O—AREXA=TH At 30 June 2016 6,659 1,831 8,490
FRFTAREREIMERPIRER Total gains/(losses) for the year included in income statement
AUEBZEEA N and presented in surplus from long-term investments and
REBSNE/ (F18) 4248 investments held to fund charitable projects 52 2 50
ERPRISENEERBERFRFTA Total gains for the year included in income statement for
WaERIHIERAIRER assets and liabilities held at the end of the reporting period
AUEZEEBNRERBBRIINGEETE and presented in surplus from long-term investments and
investments held to fund charitable projects - - -
EAES BRES
Capital  Allocations wE
BEBT in HK$ million Fund Fund Total
—O—mEER—H At 1 July 2014 5,262 1,422 6,684
EUTHRRERN NS Total gains recognised in
LVEnE. Income statement 81 2 83
ZHEKEE Statement of comprehensive income 235 43 278
A Purchases 750 459 1,209
HE Sales (654) (176) (830)
—O—EHFERA=1+H At 30 June 2015 5,674 1,750 7,424
FRFFAREREIMERIRER Total gains for the year included in income statement and
AUEZEEBNRERBRIINGETE presented in surplus from long-term investments and
investments held to fund charitable projects 81 2 83

EBRBPREANEEREBENFAFTA
WERIFERBRER
RUEZEERBNRERSRINEAEE

Total gains for the year included in income statement for
assets and liabilities held at the end of the reporting period
and presented in surplus from long-term investments and
investments held to fund charitable projects
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14 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)

14.3 Fair value estimation (cont.)

(c) The valuation technique and inputs used in the fair value measurements within Level 2 as at
30 June 2016 and 2015 were as follows:

f-tic] fhERTS ERBASH

Description Valuation technique Significant inputs

BisERE/EE

Financial assets/liabilities
BHESEH FRAERE IR
Forward contracts on bonds Discounted cash flow Discount rate
EHIMNESH FRAERE ABRER
Foreign exchange forward contracts Discounted cash flow Observable exchange rates
HitE MO R-EFRA R EEERR X - RRRKIE
Options Black-Scholes model Exchange rates, interest rates and volatility levels
=5 FRAERE BESENIBRRERRIEHER
Swaps Discounted cash flow Observable exchange rates and

(d) R=O—AREANAZ+HRZO—FFENA=ZF
B @ s ERASARI L FREFEREX FLZHE

swap rates of respective currency

(d) Additional information about fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs
within Level 3 as at 30 June 2016 and 2015 were as follows:

BANSEA BB EFEIT

Ehic) fEERHTS BERELEERASEH 1B (IREF19)

Description Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs Range (weighted average)

MREE/8&

Financial assets/liabilities
EEESRE EEFE" i i
Real estate fund investments Net asset value* n/a n/a
REREESRE EEFE" i i
Private equity fund investments Net asset value* n/a n/a
HAHESRE EEFE" i i
Hedge fund investments Net asset value* n/a n/a
ZREERE EEFE" EA TEA
Multi-assets investments Net asset value* n/a n/a

FEERBIBRBISHIREYFEERTSETE
B WERENEEDRESESKEMRERAER
EEREICERRSNERRBZTEFERAME
BEEMEE ERESRBMEREEFELAZE
REMNDFEE -

e RZO—ANENA=+HRZO—FENA=F
it fEFFEI B B L 2N BB SIAR o

*

The investments classified as Level 3 and presented in the table above are not traded in an active
market. These have been valued based on information derived from individual fund reports, or
audited reports received from respective fund managers and considering other relevant factors if
deemed necessary. The Trust has determined that the reported net asset values represent a fair
value of the captioned investments.

(e) At 30 June 2016 and 2015, no non-financial assets or liabilities were carried at fair value.
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